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Hyprop is Africa’s leading listed property fund specialising in high quality  
shopping centres. The company is an internally managed REIT and is 
headquartered in Rosebank, Johannesburg. Hyprop has a presence in the 
rest of Africa through its co-investment with the Atterbury Group in the 
property investment company, Atterbury Africa. 

This integrated report is necessitated by Hyprop’s change of year-end from 
31 December to 30 June. In compliance with JSE regulations this integrated 
report presents the financial results and the environmental, social and 
governance performance of the group for the six months ended 30 June 
2013, and follows the integrated report for the year ended 31 December 2012 
which was published on 15 May 2013. All comparatives are to the 12 month 
period ended 31 December 2012, unless otherwise specified. 

Due to the close proximity of the publication of two integrated annual 
reports and minimal variance in content, online disclosure has been adopted, 
where possible. 

The content included in this integrated report is intended to identify and 
explain the material economic, social, governance and environmental issues 
facing the group and their impact, and to enable stakeholders to accurately 
evaluate Hyprop’s ability to create and sustain value over the short, medium 
and long-term.

For the purpose of this integrated report, Hyprop’s scope of reporting on its 
sustainability initiatives extends to the group holding company and to each 
of the shopping centres in its portfolio.

A series of transactions for the acquisition of Somerset Mall in exchange 
for the majority of Hyprop's investment in Sycom were initiated during 
the period. The transaction was concluded on 1 October 2013. In addition, 
Hyprop converted to a REIT structure as detailed on pages 23 and 57. 
These initiatives have had no material impact on the size, structure and/or 
ownership of the group.

Defining report content 

These results have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), International Accounting Standard IAS34 ‘Interim 
Financial Reporting’, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the 
Accounting Practices Committee and Financial Reporting Pronouncements 
as issued by the Financial Standards Council, the JSE Limited Listings 
Requirements and the South African Companies Act, 2008.

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these results are 
consistent with those applied in the audited financial statements for the 
prior financial year, except for the adoption of IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial 
Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other 
Entities, IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements and IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in 
Associates and Joint Ventures. 
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Approved as a REIT by the JSE 
Year-end  30 June

CONTENTS

About this report IFC

ABOUT HYPROP
Business at a glance 4
Investment performance 5
Portfolio at a glance 7
 
INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Chairman’s report 14
CEO’s report 16
Financial Director’s report 2 1
Investment property portfolio 24
Five year review  25 

GOVERNANCE
Board of directors 28
Senior management 31
Corporate governance 32
Risk 37

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS 39 

SUSTAINABILITY   
Environment 4 1
Social commitment 44
Remuneration policy 47
Human capital investment and development   49
Value added statement 52

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 54

UNITHOLDERS’ INFORMATION 
Unitholder analysis  100
Definitions 101
King III Application: Chapter 2 102
Combined unitholders’ diary                                                 105
Distribution details  105
Administration  105

We would welcome your feedback on our reporting and any 
suggestions as to what you would like to see incorporated in future 
reports. Please email investorrelations@hyprop.co.za.

For further detail and information, please visit www.hyprop.co.za 

The Hyprop Ethics Line toll-free number is 0800 00 65 63. 

Read more on www.hyprop.co.za

Page number reference for more information elsewhere in the report



The company has also considered and applied many of the recommendations 
contained in the Discussion Paper on the Framework for Integrated 
Reporting and the Integrated Report, and the Draft International Integrated 
Reporting Framework, issued by the Integrated Reporting Committee 
of South Africa in January 2011 and April 2013 respectively. The integrated 
report was further prepared based on principles and guidance from the GRI 
and the relevant Sector Supplement “Construction and Real Estate Sector 
(CRESS)” (collectively the GRI G3.1 Guidelines), and based on a self-declared 
Application Level C. 

 A comprehensive GRI index is available on www.hyprop.co.za.

Materiality

Materiality is a defining principle in determining the relevance of information 
for inclusion in this report and is one of the four reporting principles for 
reporting content in terms of the G3.1 Guidelines. The board has duly applied 
its mind to matters that would be considered material to the business of 
Hyprop and to its stakeholders, and has addressed issues that:

regulations and institutionalised norms and standards.

Stakeholder engagement is an ongoing process, and the group has currently 
identified the following stakeholder groups as material:

 See www.hyprop.co.za for further details.

ASSURANCE
The group’s external auditors, Grant Thornton, have independently audited 
the financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2013. Their 
unqualified audit report can be found on page 55. The scope of their audit is 
limited to the information set out in the financial statements on pages 
57 to 99. 

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The audit committee acknowledges its responsibility on behalf of the 
board to ensure the integrity of this Hyprop Integrated Report 2013. The 
committee has accordingly applied its mind to the report and believes that it 
appropriately and sufficiently addresses all material issues, and fairly presents 
the integrated performance of Hyprop, its subsidiaries and associates for the 
period, within the scope set out above. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This integrated report contains forward-looking statements that, unless 
otherwise indicated, reflect the group’s expectations as at 30 June 2013. 
Actual results may differ materially from the group’s expectations if known 
and unknown risks or uncertainties affect its business, or if estimates or 
assumptions prove inaccurate. The group cannot guarantee that any forward-
looking statement will materialise and, accordingly, readers are cautioned 
not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. The group 
disclaims any intention, and assumes no obligation, to update or revise any 
forward-looking statement even if new information becomes available as a 
result of future events or for any other reason, other than as required by the 
JSE Listings Requirements.

Pieter Prinsloo Laurence Cohen Lindie Engelbrecht
CEO  Financial Director  Audit committee 
   Chairperson

Hyprop is a R23 billion listed REIT with 11 prime 
shopping centres across South Africa, classified as 
regional, large regional, super regional and value/
lifestyle, with over 700 000m² of lettable area.
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Rosebank Mall on 
its way to revival
The redevelopment of the Rosebank Mall is one of Hyprop’s 
largest development projects to date and is in line with group 
strategy to enhance the existing portfolio and to invest in high 
quality shopping centres that dominate their catchment area.

DEVELOPMENT 
HIGHLIGHTS  

at 30 June 2013

Investment

Committed leases

Direct and indirect 
additional permanent jobs 
at any one time

attractive destination

R932m

 1 000

95% 

76% 

DEVELOPMENT 
TIMELINE  

April 2012  
implosion 

 July 2013 - phased opening of  
completed sections 

September 2012 - formal  
construction commenced 

September 2014 - development  
fully completed 

ABOUT HYPROP
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FEATURES OF THE NEW ROSEBANK MALL:

GLA 
(up from 36 000m²)

62 000m² 

stores
(up from 93)

International 
and local brands 
anchored by large 
national tenants

incl. lifts, 
escalators, 
ablutions and 
parking

between all areas 
and levels

from Bath, 
Sturdee, Baker 
and Cradock 
Avenues

160
DIVERSIFIED 
TENANTS

 REFURBISHED 
INFRASTRUCTURE

SEAMLESS 
INTEGRATION

MULTIPLE ACCESS 
POINTS

NEW BRANDS 
COMING:

ANCHOR 
TENANTS:

EXISTING TENANTS 
UPGRADING AND 
EXPANDING:
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VISION

Hyprop aspires to maintain its position as a leading listed REIT in Africa, offering access 
to income and capital growth through a specialist portfolio of premium, high quality 
shopping centres in a transparent, sustainable investment vehicle. 

MISSION

 Strong distribution growth maintained

 Somerset Mall acquisition

 First dividend from Atterbury Africa

 Successful conversion to a REIT

HIGHLIGHTS
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INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

INVESTMENT GROWTH
 Investment 

 property  
 Market  

 capitalisation
  Loan-to-value ratio 

(gearing)

Rbn LTV%

June 2013
0%

15%

30%

45%

60%

26,2% 23,2%7,7 7,0
8,7

7,6
9,4 9,5

17,4

12,9

17,7
19,018,7

20,2

22,9%

SUSTAINABLE DISTRIBUTION GROWTH

 Jan - June

 Jul - Dec

 Full year

Cents per unit

Sectoral profile by GLA ( m2 )

7%

93%

Geographical profile by GLA ( m2 )

60% 40%

Geographical profile by revenue ( R000 )

61%39%

Sectoral profile by revenue ( R000 )

95%

5%

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

 Gauteng  453 474 60%

 Cape  307 926 40%

 761 400 100%

 Gauteng  612 635 61%

 Cape  390 462 39%

 1 003 097 100%

 Retail  709 194 93%

 Offices  52 206 7%

 761 400 100%

 Retail  949 673 95%

 Offices  53 424 5%

 1 003 097 100%
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BUSINESS MODEL STRATEGY PROGRESS 

SCALE

Hyprop is South Africa's largest listed retail 
property fund with a market capitalisation, 
as at 30 June 2013, of R19 billion and assets of 
R23 billion. Most of our shopping centres are 
dominant in terms of size, trading densities 
and catchment areas. 

Our strategy is to expand the 
portfolio with properties of a 
similar size and quality. There are 
also significant opportunities to 
upgrade and enlarge our current 
portfolio of shopping centres. 

During the period, store 
enlargements and relocations at 
Hyde Park have been completed. 
Extensions to Edgars at The Glen 
and Canal Walk to accommodate 
Topshop, are scheduled to open 
in December 2013. In the rest of 
Africa, Atterbury Africa has made 
significant progress in developing 
quality shopping centres. The 
detail of which can be found on 
page 20 of the report.

FOCUS

Hyprop's portfolio includes 11 prime shopping 
centres, which comprise 95% of the total 
direct property portfolio. Flagship assets 
include Canal Walk in Cape Town, Clearwater 
Mall and The Glen in Johannesburg as well as 
Woodlands in Pretoria. Our core focus is to 
invest in large, high quality shopping centres. 
The remaining 5% of the portfolio is made up 
of select offices. 

We have a proven track record 
of buying existing centres 
and successfully improving 
and expanding them through 
refurbishment and development. 
The portfolio is actively managed 
with the sale of smaller, non-
core assets. This strategy has 
successfully created strong income 
and capital growth and will remain 
the focus in the future. 

In the last six months, Hyprop 
exchanged its holding in Sycom for 
direct ownership of Somerset Mall 
in the Western Cape. 

QUALITY

Hyprop's shopping centres are distinguished 
by their superior quality.  
Key differentiators include: 
- Size in terms of GLA 
-  Located in strong metropolitan areas with 

mid to high levels of income 
- Tenant diversity 
-  Presence of flagship national and 

international stores 
-  Preferred shopping destinations among 

shoppers 

The quality of Hyprop's 
portfolio is evidenced by the 
high occupancy level of 97,3%. 
The intention is to maintain 
and continuously improve the 
portfolio. Opportunities abound 
from national tenants to increase 
their footprint in large shopping 
centres, while international brands 
continue to enter South Africa 
with aggressive roll-out plans. 

To meet retailer demand, Hyprop 
has spent R91 million over the last 
six months on redevelopments 
and expansions. Several projects 
have been approved for the year 
ahead. The redevelopment of 
the Rosebank Mall is the largest 
project underway with a budget 
of R932 million. Details of progress 
can be found on pages 2 and 3 
of the report. 

DEFENSIVENESS 

Hyprop's portfolio is defensive due to 
prime locations and a diverse tenant mix, 
dominated by blue-chip retailers. Distribution 
growth has consistently surpassed 
expectations, yielding average growth of 
8,7% over the past 5 years. This reflects the 
fact that well-managed and high quality 
assets can weather a challenging economic 
climate. 

Hyprop's strategy is to maintain 
the quality of its portfolio in order 
to be defensive in challenging 
times and leveraged when 
economic prospects improve. Our 
leading position in terms of size, 
location and quality makes us the 
preferred landlord for premium 
local and international brands. 

For the period under review, 
we have signed 240 new leases 
with several retailers. We have 
an ongoing capital programme 
to ensure our centres are 
continuously improved.

INNOVATION

In order to remain competitive and relevant, 
Hyprop seeks to be innovative, especially 
in terms of adapting to changing consumer 
trends as a result of social media. Our efforts 
are not restricted to digital initiatives. 
They extend to innovative solutions for 
our retail tenants such as converting office   
space to retail space where feasible and 
demand exists.
We have also introduced initiatives designed 
to reduce the impact on the environment 
and conserve scarce resources. 

We introduced the green design 
and environmental strategy in 2012 
and have made significant inroads. 
Implementation is practical and 
takes into account a cost benefit 
analysis. 

Hyprop's portfolio has a total of 
233 000 followers on Facebook 
and our energy saving initiatives 
are widespread  
(See  www.hyprop.co.za and 
page 20 for further details).

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

ABOUT HYPROP

6    INTEGRATED REPORT 2013



8 CapeGate, Cape Town 
9 Willowbridge, Cape Town
10 Canal Walk, Cape Town
11 Somerset Value Mart, Cape Town

5 Atterbury Value Mart, Pretoria
6 Woodlands Boulevard, Pretoria
7 Clearwater Mall, Johannesburg

Standalone offices: 
Lakefield
Glenfield
Glenwood

1 Stoneridge, Johannesburg
2 Hyde Park, Johannesburg
3 Rosebank Mall, Johannesburg
4 The Glen, Johannesburg

Standalone offices: 
Cradock Heights

PORTFOLIO AT A GLANCE

FOOTPRINT

JOHANNESBURG 
REGION

PRETORIA 
REGION

CAPE TOWN 
REGION

A B    

SOUTH AFRICA

A

B

A

5

6

7 2

3

4

1

B  

89
10

11
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LARGE REGIONALSUPER REGIONAL

Canal Walk is one of South Africa’s premier 
super regional shopping centres situated in 
Century City, Cape Town.

Clearwater Mall is the prime shopping 
destination in the western suburbs of 
Johannesburg, situated in a rapidly expanding 
residential corridor.

Dis-Chem, Edgars, Game, Pick n Pay, 
Woolworths. 

community” - Roodepoort Chamber of 
Commerce

of Johannesburg - PMR Diamond Arrow

Checkers, Edgars, Game, Pick n Pay, 
Woolworths.

Vicky Vlok (40)Gavin Wood (47) 

marketing award - Annual South African 
Council of Shopping Centres (SACSC)

Rock the Runway and the Bold and Beautiful 
visit - Footprint Marketing Awards

RETAIL GLA  

STORES  

OFFICE GLA 

 

 
 

ACCOLADES 

143 447m2

407

10 084m2

8 009

10 163 798

80%

86 031m2

235

5 125

5 044 888

100%

ABOUT HYPROP
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CapeGate is located at the Okavango 

Town’s northern suburb of Brackenfell 
and comprises a regional mall,  
lifestyle centre and value centre.

Builders Warehouse, Checkers, Edgars,  
Fruit & Veg City, Pick n Pay, Superspar,  
Virgin Active, Woolworths.

Woodlands is ideally situated near the 
exclusive Woodhill Golf Estate and 
is known as the “fashion capital” of 
Pretoria.

Builders Warehouse, Dis-Chem, Edgars,  
Food Lovers Market, Game, Pick n Pay, 
Woolworths.

Overall leader for shopping centres in  
Pretoria for its contribution to the  
economic growth and development of the 
City of Tshwane – PMR Diamond Arrow

The Glen is the shopping destination 
of choice for the affluent suburbs of 
the south of Johannesburg.

Dis-Chem, Edgars, Game, Pick n Pay, 
Woolworths.

Malize Jacobs (37)Glen Maboe (36)

94 924m2

215

2 422m2

3 597

4 695 954

100%

74 348m2

194

 

3 700

6 989 840

75,15%

71 607m2

153

4 200

4 019 213

100%
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VALUE/LIFESTYLEREGIONAL

ACCOLADES 

Atterbury Value Mart offers shoppers 
a convenient one-stop shop-and-go 
shopping experience in Pretoria.

Builders Warehouse, Spar, 
Sportsmans Warehouse.

Danie de Beer (31)

47 745m2 

90 

 
2 135

*  

100%

Hailed as the grande dame of South 
African shopping, Hyde Park caters 
for the most discerning visitors with 
exclusive, high-end retail.

Clicks, Dion Wired, Pick n Pay, 
Woolworths.

Jacqui McGeehan (45)

Silver award - Mercedes Benz Fashion 
Week - Annual South African Council 
of Shopping Centres (SACSC).

27 673m2 

123 

9 330  

1 730 

2 481 493 

100%

RETAIL GLA  

STORES  

OFFICE GLA 

 

 
 

ABOUT HYPROP
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With 17 outlets Somerset Value 
Mart offers shoppers a wide variety 
to meet all shopper needs in one 
convenient location.

Fruit & Veg City, Hi-Fi Corporation,  
Sportsmans Warehouse, Toys R Us.

Located in the high growth 
Greenstone/ Longmeadow node, 
Stoneridge is a trendsetting open-air 
lifestyle centre that is designed to 
meet all shopping requirements in a 
family-oriented environment.

Food Lovers Market, Hi-Fi Corporation, 
Superspar, Toys R Us, Virgin Active.

Daphne Smith (42)

Located in the northern suburbs of  
Cape Town, Willowbridge provides 
a world class open-air shopping 
experience.

Barnyard Theatre, Builders Warehouse, 
Checkers, Dis-Chem, Food Lovers Market,  
Pick n Pay, Woolworths.

Salome Thonnard (40)

Double Up Awards for the 5c Project - Romans.

42 181m2 

99 

2 482m2 

2 302 

2 043 855 

100%

48 584m2 

92 

 
2 371

*  

90%

12 386m2 

17 

 
702

*  

100%

* Not measured as open air malls (not conducive to footfall measurement)
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Canal Walk - 
a decade in Hyprop
Originally acquired in 2003 for R1,16 billion (Hyprop share  
R934 million), the centre is today valued at R7 billion 
(as at June 2013), bringing Hyprop’s share to R5,6 billion. Retail 
turnover of R4,5 billion for 2012 reflects 400% growth since the 
centre’s inception. For the six months to June 2013, Canal Walk 
generated revenue of R245 million.

GETTING 
SOCIAL

FOREFRONT OF 
TECHNOLOGY

Facebook fans
Promotions court offering full stage 
facilities and state-of-the-art sound and 
lighting infrastructure

 Largest Facebook following in South Africa 
and second largest on Twitter 

First shopping centre in South Africa to 
launch own mobile phone application

 Largest social media presence for a 
shopping centre in South Africa

In-centre television station, CWTV, 
featuring two giant screens and 32 plasma 
screens

Soon to offer shoppers free Wi-Fi 
connectivity

> 75 000

15%

30 000m²

GOING 
GREEN

Active recycling programme

Tinted glazing installed in retail pods to 
increase temperature insulation

overall energy consumption 
saving since 2010

of skylights providing 
natural daylight

12 INTEGRATED REPORT 2013



FEATURES OF CANAL WALK:

143 447m² retail 
10 084m² office

153 531m² 

stores annual shopper 
footcount

Century City node new public transport 
initiative

established its 
own foundation 
to support 
empowerment 
projects in the 
education, 
humanitarian and 
cultural spaces. 

> 30 Footprint 
Marketing Awards - 
SACSC 

 ICSC 

 Marketing Award.

> 400
21 MILLION LOCATION MYCITI TRUNK 

STATION
EMPOWERING 
OTHERS

CLEANING UP ON 
AWARDS

NEW 
INTERNATIONAL 
BRANDS:

ANCHOR 
TENANTS:

STORES EXCLUSIVE 
TO CANAL WALK 
IN THE CAPE:

INTEGRATED REPORT 2013 13



CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

OVERVIEW
The long awaited South African REIT legislation became effective 
in April 2013 and a number of prominent property companies have 
announced their conversion to REIT status. Hyprop became a REIT 
with effect from 1 July 2013 necessitating a change to the company’s 
financial year-end and the production of a second integrated report 
within a six month period.

South African economic growth remained sluggish for the first six 
months of 2013. This was in line with our major trading partners 
whose economies are starting to show signs of recovery but who 
are still subject to very low rates of growth. Locally, consumer 
confidence is constrained and spending growth is moderating 
as growth in disposable income slows and banks limit unsecured 
lending to households. While this has resulted in slower retail sales 
growth, it is reassuring that a number of national retailers and certain 
international brands have proved fairly resilient.

Recent indications that the Federal Reserve may begin to taper its 
quantitative easing programme have resulted in a level of repricing 
in emerging countries' financial markets. The Rand weakened, local 
bond yields have risen and foreigners were net sellers of South 
African bonds in June and July. Although the latest decision by the 
Federal Reserve to delay the process of tapering will provide ongoing 
support to markets, the impact of the tapering when it commences 
is concerning in the context of South Africa’s large twin deficits and 
external financing requirements.

Despite international developments, growth in the South African 
listed property sector continued during the six month period with a 
total return of 8,76%. Hyprop produced a total return of 9,86%. The 
sector continues to be buoyant with a number of property entities 
raising significant amounts of capital during the period.

HIGHLIGHTS
After a busy 2012 there has been considerable focus on optimising 
the portfolio. Our operational metrics are showing improvements, a 
number of enhancements to properties have been completed and 
there will be further improvements to the portfolio going forward.

The R932 million redevelopment of the Rosebank Mall continued 
during the period. The redevelopment remains on track for 
completion in September 2014, however material portions of the 
centre will be brought into operation prior to that date. There has 
been a strong rejuvenation of the Rosebank node and we are excited 
about the unique retail offering the redevelopment will bring to this.

The company has exchanged the majority of its shareholding in 
Sycom for Somerset Mall. The transaction, which became effective 
on 1 October 2013, was priced on an income for income basis 
resulting in an acquisition at fair value, but nonetheless represents 
an exciting opportunity for Hyprop to convert a passive investment 
into a high quality operating asset with upside potential.

Hyprop’s investment into African retail via Atterbury Africa is 
progressing strongly. Existing developments are on track and there 
is a pipeline of exciting opportunities. Given the high levels of 
competition for quality retail assets in the South African market, and 
the lack of available assets at prices which would support investment, 
the African portfolio will be an important source of growth going 
forward. Investments will however be made selectively having regard 
for country and other risks.

The company has made progress in restructuring its debt, reducing 
its finance costs and optimising the tenure of the debt. While this will 
remain an area of focus going forward, there has been a tightening 
in the corporate debt markets and future funding costs are likely to 
be higher.

OUTLOOK
Despite the consistently gloomy views on the South African economy 
expressed by a number of market commentators, the listed property 
sector has shown strong growth in recent years. The continuation of 
this growth will be partly dependent on international markets and, 
specifically, on any tapering of the United States’ quantitative easing 
programme, and the pace thereof. All emerging market economies 

that impact is moderated in any particular country will be, inter alia, 
a function of the relative health of that country’s economy and the 
quality of its government and political leadership.

GAVIN TIPPER, CHAIRMAN

INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REVIEW
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Fundamentally, Hyprop is well positioned. We have an enviable 
portfolio of shopping centres, which should prove resilient regardless 
of stock market volatility. We have a high quality tenant base and 
considerable effort is devoted to improving the mix. Management 
will continue to dispose of non-core assets and revenue and costs 
will remain a core focus. While broad based measures of South 
African inflation remain at reasonable levels, increases in administered 
charges have consistently exceeded published inflation rates and the 
management of these charges is a significant challenge for landlords 
and tenants.

The company has invested significantly in redevelopments, 
particularly in the Rosebank Mall, has acquired Somerset Mall and has 
invested in African property. Prime South African assets are relatively 
scarce and are fully priced when they are brought to a highly 

assets where viable and target local assets where we see value. In 
addition, Hyprop will increase the level of its African investments 
over the next year.

The company proposed a long term incentive scheme for its 
executive directors and senior management to unitholders during 
the period. Unfortunately the scheme did not attract the required 
support. The lack of an appropriate long term incentive scheme is a 
weakness in a South African economy where there is a shortage of 
quality senior skills and we will propose an amended scheme, taking 
account of input from unitholders, at the company’s next annual 
general meeting.

In line with Hyprop’s conversion to a REIT, a resolution to simplify 
the company’s capital structure will be presented to unitholders in 
due course.

SUSTAINABILITY
We are committed to sustainability and have implemented a 
number of initiatives to enhance stakeholder engagement, improve 
environmental reporting and ensure good corporate citizenship. 
These are detailed in this integrated report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Hyprop remains committed to the highest standards of corporate 
governance. There are substantial related disclosures in this integrated 
report.

BOARD CHANGES
It is with regret that we notified unitholders of the passing of Les Weil 
on 28 June 2013. Les had been a director of Hyprop since 2003. He 
made a significant contribution to Hyprop and to the South African 
property industry, and will be sorely missed. Our condolences go to 
Les’ family.

Michael Aitken resigned as a director and as chairman of the company 
on 27 June 2013. Mike has been a director of Hyprop since August 
2000 and chairman since 2007. Mike’s wisdom and steady hand will 
be sorely missed. We thank him for his contribution and wish him 
well in his future endeavours. 

Marc Wainer resigned on 27 June 2013 after 11 years on the Hyprop 
board. Marc is an icon in the South African property industry and 
made a considerable contribution to the company during his tenure 
as a director. We will miss Marc’s guidance and counsel and thank him 
for all he has done for Hyprop. We wish him well as he focuses on 
Redefine Properties.

Jabu Mabuza resigned on 27 June 2013 to devote himself to his 
responsibilities as chairman of Telkom. We thank him for his 
contribution to Hyprop and wish him well as he confronts some 
important challenges.

On 28 August 2013, Thabo Mokgatlha joined the board as an 
independent non-executive director and a member of the audit 
commitee. We welcome Thabo to the Hyprop board and look 
forward to a long and productive relationship.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the board I would like to thank our executives, 
management and staff for their considerable efforts during the 
period. I also offer our thanks to our different stakeholders for 
their support and my thanks to my fellow board members for their 
contribution.

Gavin Tipper

Chairman
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CEO’S REPORT

PIETER PRINSLOO, CEO

INTRODUCTION
Hyprop’s quality shopping centres once again proved their resilience 
in an economic environment which saw rising inflation, higher 
administrative costs, low GDP growth and declining consumer spend. 
Income distribution to unitholders continued to grow strongly with 
an increase of 7,6% over the comparative period while the value of 
total assets rose by 6,8% to R23 billion. Operating efficiencies further 
improved with the total expense to income ratio reducing by 2,3% to 
34,6% and total rental arrears down 9,6% to R17,9 million.

Hyprop has made further progress in fulfilling its strategy of investing 
in dominant, quality shopping centres with the acquisition of 
Somerset Mall in the Western Cape and additional investments in 
the rest of Africa through its 37,5% shareholding in Atterbury Africa.

THE OPERATING ENVIRONMENT 
Prime shopping centres offering exciting brands, flagship stores and 
an attractive tenant mix in a safe, clean and friendly environment are 
continuing to attract successful retailers as well as shoppers. This 
is the hallmark of Hyprop’s core retail portfolio. Although interest 
from international retailers remains strong in large shopping centres, 

HIGHLIGHTS

Acquisition of Somerset Mall for R2,3 billion

First dividend of R1,4 million from Atterbury 
Africa

Improved liquidity in unitholding

Rosebank Mall redevelopment progressing well

finding sizable and suitable premises in the short term is challenging. 

and tenant relocations, which will see international fashion brands 
such as Topshop, Dune and Lipsy opening in December 2013. 

Trading densities across our shopping centre portfolio grew by 6% 
for the six months under review, with strong performances at Hyde 
Park (12,8%), Clearwater Mall (8,8%) and Woodlands (8,6%) (see graph 
on page 17). Footcount grew by 1% across the portfolio. 

LETTING ACTIVITY AND VACANCIES
Occupancy levels were well maintained at 97,3% with vacancies at the 
shopping centres notably below 1%. Total retail vacancies increased 
slightly compared to December 2012, mainly due to increased 
vacancies at the value centres (Stoneridge and Willowbridge). We 
continue to experience strong demand from retailers at our shopping 
centres with Clearwater Mall, Woodlands Boulevard and Atterbury 
Value Mart fully let at 30 June 2013.

Office vacancies reduced from 9,1% to 8,1% with a noticeable 
improvement in occupancies at Hyde Park and CapeGate Lifestyle 
offices.

Total letting activity, which includes new lettings and lease renewals, 
of 59 355 m² (7,7% of total portfolio) or 240 leases were recorded 
during the period. Average rental growth in the portfolio was 7,6% 
while the average escalation rate is 8,4%. The gross rent to turnover 
ratio, which is an indication of tenants’ affordability to pay rent, 
remained unchanged at 7,2% compared to June 2012.

SOMERSET MALL 
During the period, Hyprop acquired 100% of Somerset Mall from 
Sycom in exchange for 81,5 million Sycom units. The transaction was 
concluded on 1 October 2013.

The transaction, valued at R2,3 billion, is based on an income for 
income swap with no dilution in distributable earnings expected 

INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REVIEW
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TRADING DENSITY
Average portfolio growth: +6% ( June 2012: +9%) Per month (R/m2)

%
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3.7%

6,4%

5,1%

1,459

12.9%
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VACANCIES 
30 June 2013 31 December 2012
(m2) (%) (m2) (%)

Canal Walk 875 0,60 324 0,22
Super regional 875 0,60 324 0,22
Clearwater Mall 0 0,00 0 0,00
The Glen 659 0,90 345 0,50
Woodlands 0 0,00 0 0,00
CapeGate Regional Mall 302 0,50 254 0,40
Large regional 961 0,33 599 0,02
Hyde Park 65 0,20 0 0,00
Regional 65 0,20
Willowbridge 2 592 5,80 1 536 3,70
Stoneridge 4 447 9,20 3 743 7,30
Somerset Value Mart 289 2,30 289 2,30
CapeGate Value Mart 4 341 13,50 4 864 14,20
Atterbury Value Mart 0 0,00 0 0,00
Value centres 11 669 6,38 10 432 5,57
Shopping centres 13 570 2,09 11 355 1,73
Offices 6 192 8,09 6 923 9,14
Total 19 762 2,72 18 278 2,50

Portfolio average: +7.2% ( June 2012: +7.2%) 
GROSS RENT TO TURNOVER

Hyde Park

Hyde Park 
Corner

Clearwater
Mall

Clearwater
Mall

Canal Walk

Canal Walk

The Glen

The Glen 
Shopping 

Centre

Willowbridge

Willowbridge

Woodlands

Woodlands 
Boulevard

CapeGate 
Regional

CapeGate 
Mall

CapeGate 
Lifestyle

CapeGate 
Lifestyle 
Centre

Stoneridge

Stoneridge 
Shopping 

Centre

Somerset 
Value Mart

Somerset 
Value Mart

Atterbury 
Value Mart

Atterbury 
Value Mart

 Improvement 

 Deterioration

  Unchanged
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LEASE ACTIVITY

Area
Rental 

growth
Contractual  
escalation

Retail (m2) (%) (%)
New lettings  25 696 8,9 8,5
Renewals  24 812 6,3 8,4
Total  50 508 7,6 8,5
% of total portfolio 6,6%

Offices
New lettings  5 692 2,8 8,3
Renewals  3 155 4,1 8,5
Total  8 847 3,3 8,4
% of total portfolio 1%

Total lease activity  59 355 7,0 8,4
% of total portfolio 7,7%

TENANT PROFILE
Exposure to top 10 retailers

Rank Tenant
% of total 

GLA
% of total 

income
1 Edcon Group 7% 5%
2 Massmart Group 7% 4%
3 Pick n Pay Group 6% 2%
4 Woolworths Group 5% 2%
5 Foschini Group 4% 5%
6 Mr Price Group 3% 4%
7 Shoprite Holdings 3% 1%
8 JD Group 2% 1%
9 Nu Metro 2% 1%

10 Truworths Group 2% 2%

CEO’S REPORT CONTINUED

LEASE RENEWAL PROFILE 
By income 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 +
Canal Walk 17% 15% 38% 9% 21%
Clearwater 6% 40% 20% 7% 26%
The Glen 22% 29% 10% 16% 24%
Woodlands 10% 28% 17% 6% 39%
CapeGate 22% 43% 15% 15% 5%
Hyde Park 22% 22% 16% 16% 25%
Willowbridge 20% 15% 41% 7% 18%
Stoneridge 38% 11% 14% 5% 32%
Somerset Value Mart 11% 10% 22% 37% 21%
Atterbury Value Mart 22% 19% 22% 17% 19%
Offices 20% 31% 34% 8% 8%
Total 17% 26% 24% 11% 22%

By area Vacancy 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 +
Canal Walk 1% 10% 10% 39% 8% 32%
Clearwater 0% 3% 34% 14% 4% 45%
The Glen 1% 26% 23% 8% 15% 27%
Woodlands 0% 5% 26% 10% 7% 52%
CapeGate 5% 20% 38% 15% 16% 6%
Hyde Park 0% 33% 34% 9% 8% 16%
Willowbridge 6% 16% 8% 39% 11% 19%
Stoneridge 9% 32% 14% 11% 6% 27%
Somerset Value Mart 2% 16% 8% 20% 34% 20%
Atterbury Value Mart 0% 18% 16% 22% 21% 22%
Offices 8% 21% 27% 31% 7% 6%
Total 3% 16% 23% 21% 10% 26%
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WEIGHTED AVERAGE RENTAL* 

Business segment

2013 
Rental
(R/m2)

2012
Rental 
(R/m2)

Shopping centres
Hyde Park Corner 305  291 
Canal Walk 257  236 
Clearwater 193  182 
The Glen 193  189 
Woodlands 156  148 
CapeGate - Regional 133  126 
Value/lifestyle
Atterbury Value Mart 140 133
Willowbridge  107  96
Somerset  105  101
CapeGate - Value 99  88 
Stoneridge 84  73 
Offices 112  110

* Includes basic rent and operating costs.

Tenant grading by income

TENANT PROFILE BY GRADE

Tenant grading by GLA

 A Grade
 B Grade
 C Grade61%20%

19%

 A Grade
 B Grade
 C Grade

47%

27%

26%

Tenants in the portfolio have been categorised by grade as follows:

A Grade:  Large national tenants, large listed tenants and major 
franchisees (including all national retailsers and tenants 
part of large listed groups)

B Grade:  Smaller national tenants, medium sized franchisees, 
medium to large retailers

C Grade: Smaller line stores  

Due to the nature of the Hyprop portfolio, the above categorisations 
are largely subjective.

by Hyprop. As part of the transaction, Hyprop will dispose of its 
remaining 2,7 million Sycom units. In May 2013 Hyprop disposed of its 
Sycom rights offer nil paid letters for R28 million.

Somerset Mall is an elegant fit to our existing portfolio. The 66 000 m²  
regional shopping centre boasts 188 shops. Approximately 44% of 
leases, measured in GLA, will expire in the next two years which 
provides us with the opportunity to enhance the tenant mix. This 
is supported by strong demand from existing retailers to expand as 
well as from retailers who are currently not represented in the centre. 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 
Construction work on the Rosebank Mall redevelopment is 
progressing well. The basement parking and the Bath Avenue 
entrance have been completed while a number of newly built shops 
are already open. Final completion is scheduled for September 2014. 

The total capital cost, including a further extension to the Bath 
Avenue bridge, totals R932 million with an anticipated yield of 7%. 
The redevelopment is already 95% let.

The store enlargements and relocations at Hyde Park have been 
completed. Extensions to Edgars at The Glen and Canal Walk to 
accommodate international brand Topshop, totalling 5 400m², are 
scheduled to open for trading by December 2013. The total cost of 
these projects is R91 million (Hyprop share: R72,3 million) and they are 
expected to generate an average yield of 11%.

SUSTAINABILITY 

in dominant, quality shopping centres. As a result Hyprop is planning 
expansions to further enhance the quality of our tenant mix. In 
addition, attention is also given to upgrades and refurbishments to 
modernise the shopping centres in order to remain attractive and 
functional while simultaneously improving the sustainability and 
greening features of our buildings. In particular, Hyprop has taken 
advantage of Eskom’s energy saving initiative. Eskom has established 
aggressive goals and targets to support customers in their drive 
towards optimised energy consumption. With its understanding of 
the fact that reducing energy demand within industry may require 
investments in newer technologies, equipment and processes, 
Eskom’s Integrated Demand Management (IDM) programme makes 
funds available to its clients in support of reduced energy demand 
or consumption. Hyprop’s energy initiative savings since inception 
to June 2013 total R887 000. Further details are set out on page 42.

Read more on www.hyprop.co.za and www.eskom.co.za

We recognise the need to respond to the global realities of energy 
and resource depletion and this is encapsulated in our Green Design 
and Environmental Sustainability Strategy. Our approach in this 
regard is practical and based on a sound business plan taking the 
benefit as well as cost and feasibility of retrofitting green design into 
account. We have made successful inroads in adopting commercially 
and practically viable solutions. More detail on our strategy and 
initiatives is available on page 41 of this report. 
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SOCIAL MEDIA
With more than 8.2 million people in South Africa active on Facebook 
and other social media platforms such as Twitter, Instagram, Pinterest 

in touch with its shoppers. Currently, the Hyprop portfolio has a 
total of 233 000 people following the respective shopping centres’ 
Facebook pages. The remarkable growth in social media use has and 
will continue to significantly change the way Hyprop approaches 
marketing. 

Through Hyprop’s marketing company, Word4Word Marketing, which 
has a dedicated specialist team dealing with social media marketing, 
social media will remain a priority to connect and communicate with 
shoppers and other stakeholders.

Company structure 

Salient features

HYPROP
Mauritius100% 37.5%

Atterbury
Africa

Property
companies

Property Location
Rentable area 

 (m2) 
Atterbury Africa 

ownership

Atterbury Africa 
attributable value 

USD ‘000 Comments

Accra Mall Accra, Ghana 19 000 47% 35 250 Existing centre, currently fully let, financial results ahead of 
budget

West Hills Mall Accra, Ghana 26 500 45% 42 087 Construction work on new mall is progressing well and is 
scheduled for opening in October 2014

Achimota Land Accra, Ghana 75% 41 623 Acquisition of land rights concluded. Design finalised and  
pre-letting commenced

Waterfalls Project Lusaka, Zambia 25% 1 374 Land holding with development rights for retail and a hotel

PROSPECTS
The size and quality of its assets with strong contractual escalations 
and operational efficiencies provide Hyprop with a defensive property 
portfolio in a challenging South African economy. In the near term, 
Hyprop will continue meeting tenant demand with yield-enhancing 
expansions of existing centres while disposing of non-core assets. 
In the medium to long-term we intend growing our assets through 
our investment in Atterbury Africa and where feasible, through the 
acquisition of dominant shopping centres, such as Somerset Mall. 

Taking into account the short-term dilution effect of the Rosebank 
Mall redevelopment, Hyprop expects distributions to grow between 
6,5% and 8,5% for the year ending June 2014. 

APPRECIATION
I wish to extend my gratitude to the board for their wise counsel 
and support. I thank the executive team and all our employees for 
their dedication and hard work as well as to our tenants for their 
continued support in challenging economic times. 

Pieter Prinsloo

CEO

INVESTMENT IN AFRICA 
Hyprop received its first dividend of R1,4 million from its 37,5% 
shareholding in Atterbury Africa during the period (refer to the 
diagram below demonstrating the company structure).

Atterbury Africa, jointly controlled by Hyprop and the Atterbury 
Group, has made significant progress in developing quality shopping 

centres in the rest of Africa, having secured additional development 
projects in Accra, Ghana. Refer to the table below for the salient 
features of our investments.

In addition, the extension to Accra Mall, phase 2 development of 
West Hills Mall and the development of a 15 000m² shopping centre 
at Achimota are being planned.

INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REVIEW
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Audited 

30 June 2013
Rm

Unaudited 
30 June 2012

Rm
Revenue 1 084 1 067

Investment property 1 009 989
Listed property 75 78

Property expenses (347) (351)
Net property income 737 716
Other operating expenses (26) (24)
Operating income 711 692
Net interest (196) (211)
Net operating income 515 481
Atterbury Africa 1
Non-core income 1
Net income 517 481
No. of combined units (000) 243 113 243 113
Distribution cpu (cents) 213.0 198,0

FINANCIAL DIRECTOR’S REPORT

LAURENCE COHEN, FD

HIGHLIGHTS

Distribution growth up 7,6% to 213 cpu

to R606 million

Total assets up 6,8% to R23 billion

INTRODUCTION 
Hyprop has delivered a strong set of results with the regional, large 
regional and super regional malls in particular exhibiting resilience. We 
continue to maintain a sound balance sheet and have successfully 
further diversified our sources of funding. The growth in distribution 
is testament to a world-class retail portfolio and in line with our 
objective of providing sustainable income growth and capital 
appreciation to investors over the long term. Overall, Hyprop is 
well positioned to take advantage of increased tenant demand and 
maintain the high quality of our shopping centres 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
Distributable earnings from shopping centres grew by 7,2%, despite 
dilution from the Rosebank Mall redevelopment. Canal Walk achieved 
a strong performance with distributable income up 10,2%. Similarly, 
distributable earnings from Hyde Park were up 10,9% period-on-
period. The marginal decrease in distributable earnings from offices 
of 6,4% was due to a once-off rental guarantee received in the prior 
period.

Rosebank Mall is undergoing a R932 million redevelopment with final 
completion expected by September 2014. Despite extensive planned 
vacancies and the related disruptions to trading, the centre achieved 

distributable earnings of R20 million for the period. The dilution in 
distributable earnings was in line with budget and is expected to 
continue for the next 12 months, while the centre remains under 
construction.

Income from listed property securities reduced due to the disposal 
of the investments in Vunani and Acucap during 2012. Income from 
associates of R4,2 million includes the first dividend from Atterbury 
Africa of R1,4 million. Hyprop has a 37,5% shareholding in Atterbury 
Africa, which is jointly controlled by Hyprop and the Atterbury 
Group. For the period under review, Hyprop increased its investment 
by R226 million to R337 million (USD34 million). Hyprop’s initial 
commitment is R750 million. 

The reduction in net interest paid is primarily due to asset sales of 
R524 million during 2012.

Costs were well contained with the property cost-to-income ratio 
improving to 34,4% (31 December 2012: 35,4%), while the total cost-
to-income ratio at a fund level improved to 34,6% (31 December 2012: 
35,4%). Total arrears at 30 June 2013, comprising normal arrears, legal 
cases and outstanding tenant deposits, improved to R17,9 million (31 
December 2012: R19,8 million) and the total allowance for doubtful 
debts was R9,0 million (31 December 2012: R10,2 million).
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FINANCIAL DIRECTOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO 
Value attributable to Hyprop Value per  

rentable area

Business segment
Rentable area 

(m2) 
30 June 2013

R’000 
31 December 2012 

R’000 
30 June 2013 

(R/m2)
Canal Walk 153 531 5 627 200 5 200 000  45 815 

Super regional 153 531 5 627 200 5 200 000  45 815 

Clearwater 86 031 3 203 000 2 945 000  37 231 

The Glen 74 348 1 854 094 1  751 130  33 182 

Woodlands Boulevard 71 607 1 886 000 1 770 000  26 338 

CapeGate 97 346 1 602 000 1 509 000  16 457 

Large regional 329 332 8 545 094 7 975 130  27 808 

Hyde Park 37 003 1 556 000 1 420 000  42 051 

Regional 37 003 1 556 000 1 420 000  42 051 

Atterbury Value Mart 47 745 987 000 952 000  20 672 

Willowbridge 44 663 585 000 620 000  13 098 

Stoneridge 48 584 421 200 432 900  9 633 

Somerset Value Mart 12 386 185 000 170 000  14 936 

Value centres 153 378 2 178 200 2 174 900  14 507 

Shopping centres 673 244 17 906 494 16 770 030  29 667 

Stand-alone offices 52 206 749 000 710 000  14 347 

Development property(1) 35 950 1 187 000 990 000  

Held-for-sale (2)   130 000  

Investment property 761 400 19 842 494 18 600 030  

Listed property securities(3)  2 279 253 2 282 095  

Atterbury Africa  336 994 111 109  

761 400 22 458 741 20 993 234  

(1) Rosebank Mall - transferred to development property from September 2012
(2) Southern Sun Hyde Park - sold 2012
(3) Sycom (30 June 2013) - held-for-sale

Revenue spread Total net income

 Shopping centres

 Sycom

 Stand-alone offices
58%23%

7%

5%  Retail rental
 Municipal cost recovery
 Operating cost recovery
 Customer/monthly parking
 Office rental
 Storerooms & other 
 Turnover rental

4%

1%
2%

5%

85%

As indicated in the diagram above turnover rental is only 1% of total revenue, which supports the contractual and predictable nature of Hyprop’s 
revenue stream. Municipal cost recoveries, which include rates, electricity and other utilities have grown from 13% of total revenue five years ago 
to 23% at 30 June 2013, in line with the excessive increases in utility costs over that period. Hyprop has implemented several initiatives to reduce 
the consumption of electricity, details of which can be found on page 42 of this report.

10%
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment property was independently valued by Old Mutual 
Investment Group South Africa using the discounted cash flow 
method. The investment property portfolio showed good growth 
of 6,7% to R19,8 billion, after a fair value adjustment for the period 
of R1,2 billion.

The increase in the valuation of the shopping centre portfolio by 
6,8% to R17,9 billion was driven primarily by income growth and 
reductions in discount rates and cap rates, supported by strong 
demand for quality shopping centres.

NET ASSET VALUE

tax at 30 June 2013 was R68,43, representing a 28,5% increase on the 

per combined unit was primarily as a result of the elimination of 
deferred capital gains taxation, following the conversion to a REIT 
on 1 July 2013. 

South African REITs are not subject to capital gains taxation on 
the disposal of investment property and on the disposal of listed 
property securities that are constituted as REITs. Accordingly, at 
30 June 2013, Hyprop eliminated accumulated deferred capital 
gains taxation applicable to the investment property portfolio and 
the investment in Sycom. The deferred capital gains taxation was 
eliminated through the statement of comprehensive income, and 
resulted in a material increase in earnings, headline earnings and net 
asset value per combined unit.

December 2012: R62,59), a 9,5% increase on the prior year, primarily 
due to an increase in the independent valuation of the investment 
property portfolio. The closing combined unit price of R78 at  

excluding deferred taxation.

BORROWINGS 

billion) equate to a gearing ratio of 22,9%, down from 23,1% in 2012. 
The lower ratio is mainly due to the increase in valuation of the 
property portfolio. 

Hyprop views the ideal gearing level as being between 30% and 
40%. However, increasing gearing is dependent to a large extent 
on corporate activity, particularly acquisitions. In the absence of 
significant acquisitions, it is not likely that the gearing ratio will reach 
these levels.

At year-end, interest rates were hedged in respect of 87% (31 
December 2012: 82%) of borrowings, at a weighted average rate of 
8,1% (31 December 2012: 8,4%). 

Hyprop increased its debt capital market (“DCM”) issuance in April 
2013, with the conversion of R648 million of existing bank debt to 
DCM funding. This brings total DCM issuance to R1,6 billion, or 31% of 
total borrowings.

The maturity profile of Hyprop’s various debt facilities, fixed rates 
and swaps are depicted in the adjacent graphs.

APPRECIATION
Hyprop’s change in year-end resulted in two year-ends in the last 
six months, materially increasing the financial team’s workload. I 
would like to thank them for their dedication and commitment in 
this regard. I also wish to extend my appreciation to the board of 
directors for their continued advice, guidance and support.

Laurence Cohen
Financial Director
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY PORTFOLIO 
AT 30 JUNE 2013

Property description Location
Ownership

(%)
GLA
(m2)

Cost
(Hyprop share)

R000

Fair value
(Hyprop share)

R000

Date of  
acquisition/ 

development
SHOPPING CENTRES
Canal Walk(1) Century City, CT 80  153 531  1 253 062  5 627 200 October 2003
Clearwater Strubens Valley, Jhb 100  86 031  2 432 576  3 203 000 September 2011
CapeGate Brackenfell, CT 100  97 346  1 500 453  1 602 000 September 2011
The Glen(2) Oakdene, Jhb 75,15  74 348  659 009  1 854 094 
Woodlands Pretoriuspark, Pta 100  71 607  1 601 034  1 886 000 September 2011
Hyde Park(1) Hyde Park, Jhb 100  37 003  328 024  1 556 000 Pre-listing 1988
Atterbury Value Mart Faerie Glen, Pta 100  47 745  918 684  987 000 September 2011
Willowbridge Bellville, CT 100  44 663  605 860  585 000 September 2011
Stoneridge Greenstone Park, Modderfontein 90  48 584  542 508  421 200 September 2008
Somerset Value Mart Somerset West 100  12 386  160 290  185 000 September 2011
Total - shopping centres  673 244  10 001 500  17 906 494 
OFFICES

The Mall Offices Rosebank, Jhb 100  18 177 
 Included with 
Rosebank Mall  307 000 January 2003

Cradock Heights Rosebank, Jhb 100  4 506  84 322  82 000 June 2009
Glenfield Office Park Faerie Glen, Pta 100  10 360  210 547  165 000 September 2011
Glenwood Office Park Faerie Glen, Pta 100  3 474  70 277  40 000 September 2011
Lakefield Office Park Centurion, Pta 100  15 689  241 581  155 000 September 2011
Total - stand alone offices  52 206  606 727  749 000 
DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY
Rosebank Mall Rosebank, Jhb 100 35 950(3)  1 187 000 January 2003
Total - development property 35 950  1 187 000 

Total - portfolio  761 400  10 608 227  19 842 494 

(1) Includes office component
(2) The 75,15% undivided share in The Glen was acquired on the following dates:
 - 33,33% in December 2001
 - 16,77% in September 2002
 - 25,05% in October 2004
(3) GLA for Rosebank Mall reflects historical GLA, prior to additional space due to re-development
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FIVE YEAR REVIEW 
AT 30 JUNE 2013

30 June 31 December

2013(1)

R000
2012(2)

R000
2011(2)

R000
2010(2)

R000
2009(2)

R000
Revenue  1 099 489  2 177 625  1 583 157  1 119 048  923 655 

Investment property income  1 008 671  2 016 184  1 350 937  984 910  790 568 
Straight-line rental income accrual  15 879  9 208  100 214  14 148  13 318 
Listed property securities income  74 939  152 233  132 006  119 990  119 769 

Property and other operating expenses  (347 277)  (714 284)  (511 681)  (371 932)  (259 380)
Net property income  752 212  1 463 341  1 071 476  747 116  664 275 
Other operating expenses  (27 729)  (53 885)  (43 855)  (36 044)  (47 840)
Net interest  (191 723)  (404 827)  (208 325)  (121 554)  (70 829)

Received  17 234  22 180  31 416  7 006  26 931 
Paid  (208 957)  (427 007)  (239 741)  (128 560)  (97 760)

Net operating income  532 760  1 004 629  819 296  589 518  545 606 
Change in fair value  1 403 721  1 273 905  335 646  586 121  583 733 

Investment property  1 198 105  1 137 924  236 654  517 262  580 121 
Straight-line rental income accrual  (15 879)  (9 208)  (100 214)  (14 148)  (13 318)
Listed property securities  (2 842)  315 259  258 716  75 430  32 391 
Derivative instruments  224 337  (170 070)  (59 510)  7 577  (15 461)

Surplus on disposal  28 061  (15 221)  (9 835)
Investment property  90  (11 886)  (6 129)
Listed property securities  27 971  (3 335)  (3 706)

Amortisation of debenture premium  49 119  487 925  231 354  110 810  97 696 
Amortisation of financial guarantee for associate  953  715 
Impairment of goodwill  (547 654)
Non-core income  1 009  4 555  905  905 
Income before debenture interest  2 014 670  2 751 238  833 362  1 288 307  1 228 656 
Debenture interest  (517 831)  (994 333)  (741 703)  (593 024)  (544 851)
Net income before share of income from associate  1 496 839  1 756 905  91 659  695 283  683 804 
Share of income from associate  4 262  144  9 949  55 201  20 305 
Net income before taxation  1 501 101  1 757 049  101 608  750 484  704 109 
Taxation  2 239 008  (753 169)  (185 639)  (80 696)  (152 084)
Net income after taxation  3 740 109  1 003 880  (84 031)  669 788  552 025 
Investment property at fair value  18 655 496  17 480 030  17 271 864  9 425 626  8 788 928 
Distribution per combined unit (cents) 213  409  383 357 328

(1) 6 months
(2) 12 months
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CLEARWATER, 
JOHANNESBURG

Clearwater Mall is the prime 
shopping destination in the western 
suburbs of Johannesburg, situated 
in a rapidly expanding residential 
corridor.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ETHAN (EG) DUBE (54) 
MSc (Statistics) Executive MBA 
(Sweden)

Ethan chairs Hyprop’s remuneration 
and nomination committee. He has 
significant corporate finance and 
asset management experience. Ethan 
worked for Southern Life Asset 
Managers for three years as a senior 
analyst and for Standard Bank for 
two years in the corporate finance 
division. In 1996 he founded Infinity 
Asset Management with three other 
partners and in 1998 founded Vunani 
Limited, a financial services company, 
where he is currently CEO. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

LINDIE (L) ENGELBRECHT (38) 
CA(SA)

Lindie chairs Hyprop’s audit committee. 
She is a former technical director at 
KPMG and director of governance 
and sustainability services at Ernst  

the chief executive of the Institute of 
Directors. She is a member of the King 
Committee on Corporate Governance 
and has advised, consulted and 
presented to boards in the public and 
private sectors on corporate, legal and 
governance matters.

Gavin was appointed Chairman with 
effect from 27 June 2013. He has been 
involved in the financial services 
industry for more than 20 years, and 
was formerly an executive director of 
Coronation Investments and Trading 
Limited and a technical partner at 
KPMG South Africa. He is a director of 
a number of listed companies.

GAVIN (GR) TIPPER (48) 
BCOM BACC CA(SA) MBA
CHAIRMAN

LOUIS (LLS) VAN DER WATT (46) 
CA(SA) CIMA (UK)

Louis co-founded Atterbury Property, 
one of the largest property 
developers in South Africa, in 1994, 
after completing his articles at 
Deloitte Consulting (the management 
consulting arm of Deloitte & Touche). 
He also co-founded Attfund Limited, 
which was subsequently acquired by 
Hyprop.

IT IS WITH GREAT SADNESS 
AND REGRET THAT HYPROP 
ANNOUNCED THE PASSING OF  
LES WEIL ON 28 JUNE 2013. LES 
SERVED AS A NON-EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR ON THE BOARD OF 
HYPROP FOR TEN YEARS. 

Les had a distinguished career in 
property management and consulting 
with over 40 years of experience in 
property and related fields. He was a 
chartered accountant and also held a 
Masters in Business Administration. 

Les worked as the property consultant 
to the Airports Company South Africa, 
prior to which he spent several years 
in merchant banking and commerce. 
He also served as the president of the 
South African Chamber of Business 
and as Chairman of JHI properties. 

He participated in the formation of 
a number of listed property vehicles, 
as well as the initial conceptualisation 
and assembly of Melrose Arch 
in Johannesburg and other 
developments. He was a member of 
the King Committee on Corporate 
Governance and a fellow of the 
Institute of Directors. 

In 2007, Les was recognised by the 
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors 
in London for his contribution to 
South Africa’s property industry. 

Les' diligence, knowledge, experience 
and unwavering commitment will be 
sorely missed by the industry at large 
and by Hyprop in particular. We use 
this opportunity to again extend our 
heartfelt condolences to Dorianne, 
Dean, Jemma and family.

IN MEMORIAM
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

STEWART (S) SHAW-TAYLOR (61) 
CA(SA) HARVARD PMD

Stewart chairs Hyprop’s risk committee. 
He has almost 30 years’ experience in 
investment banking and real estate. 
He is currently the head of CIB Real 
Estate and Private Equity Investments, 
Standard Bank Group. He is responsible 
for the real estate, equity and private 
equity related activities undertaken 
by Standard Bank Corporate and 
Investment Banking Division.

MIKE (MJ) LEWIN (58)
BCOM BAGRIC MANAGEMENT

Mike has over 20 years’ experience in 
the property industry and heads the 
retail division of Redefine. He was 
previously with Edgars Consolidated 
Stores Limited for 18 years as their 
property development executive.

LOUIS (L) NORVAL (57) 
BSC (QS)

Louis co-founded Attfund Limited 
and was executive chairman and chief 
executive of Attfund Retail Limited, 
on acquisition of Attfund Retail by 
Hyprop. He is managing director of the 
Parkdev Group of companies. Louis 
was a founding member and senior 

director of Baker Street Associates 
Holdings Proprietary Limited. He 
currently serves as a non-executive 
director of Capital & Regional Plc.

Kevin joined the family business, 
Ellerine Holdings, in January 1991 as 
merchandise manager. In 1993 he 
became property manager of Ellerine 
Bros. Proprietary Limited, and was 
appointed managing director of the 
property division in 2000 where he 
remains today. He sits on the boards 
of all the property and private equity 
companies in which Ellerine Bros. is 
invested.

KEVIN (KM) ELLERINE (45) 
NATIONAL DIPLOMA IN COMPANY 
ADMINISTRATION
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAURENCE (LR) COHEN (40)
BCOM CA(SA)  
FINANCIAL DIRECTOR

Pieter previously held the position of CEO of 
Hyprop for seven years from 2002 to 2009. He 
was re-appointed to the position with effect 
from 1 May 2011. A quantity surveyor, he has 
been engaged in every aspect of property 
development, management and finance for 
over 20 years, having worked previously at 
Sanlam Properties, Standard Bank Properties 
and ABSA Commercial Property Finance.

Laurence joined Hyprop in 2003 as Financial 
Director of Hyprop Manco, after spending 
three years at Grant Thornton in their corporate 
finance division. He was appointed to the board 
as Financial Director in 2006, and has been 
involved extensively in various aspects of the 
business during his tenure with the company.

PIETER (PG) PRINSLOO (48)
BSC (QS)
CEO

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

NICOLE GREENSTONE (45)
Regional Executive: Johannesburg 

WAYNE ABEGGLEN (47)
Regional Executive: Cape Town

YVETTE VAN DER MERWE (40)
Regional Executive: Pretoria

REGIONAL EXECUTIVES

GOVERNANCE
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

MARK DE KLERK (52)
National Technical Manager 

STEVEN RILEY (43)
Development Executive 

BRENDA FRYLINCK (50)
National Facilities Manager

NIKKI CATRAKILIS-WAGNER (39)
Investor Relations Executive

KARIN EICHHORN (36)
Human Resources and IT Systems

DESIRÉE NAFTE (47)
National Legal Executive

RIEGARDT MARAIS (42)
Marketing Executive 

Detailed CV’s of executive management are available on www.hyprop.co.za
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See  
www.hyprop.co.za  

for terms  
of reference.

See  
www.hyprop.co.za  

for terms  
of reference.

Details of 
the group's 

remuneration 
policies and 

practices are set 
out on page 47. 

See  
www.hyprop.co.za  

for terms  
of reference.

See page 36 for 
further detail.

See  
www.hyprop.co.za  

for terms  
of reference.

See page 56 for the  
audit committee 

report.

See  
www.hyprop.co.za  

for terms  
of reference.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pieter Prinsloo 
(Chairman)

Stewart Shaw-Taylor
Laurence Cohen

Kevin Ellerine

Stewart Shaw-Taylor
(Chairman)

 Lindie Engelbrecht 
Pieter Prinsloo

Laurence Cohen

Pieter Prinsloo 
(Chairman)

Vasti Booysen
Karin Eichhorn

Mike Lewin

Steven Riley

Ethan Dube 
(Chairman)

Lindie Engelbrecht
Stewart Shaw-Taylor

Gavin Tipper

 
LIndie Engelbrecht 

(Chairman)
Gavin Tipper

Thabo Mokgatlha

Audit  
Committee

Risk 
Committee

Remuneration 
and nomination 

committee

Investment 
committee

Social and ethics 
committee

HEAD OFFICE 
(Located in Rosebank, Johannesburg)

CEO

Shopping centres/offices
Hyde Park 
The Glen

Rosebank Mall
Stoneridge

Cradock Heights 

Shopping centres/offices
Woodlands

Atterbury Value Mart
Clearwater
Lakefield
Glenfield

Glenwood

Shopping centres/offices
Canal Walk
CapeGate

Willowbridge
Somerset Value Mart

Finance, Developments, Technical, Facilities, Legal, HR & IT systems, Marketing, Investor Relations

JOHANNESBURG REGION PRETORIA REGION CAPE TOWN REGION

HYPROP BOARD

M
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The board structure set out below represents the Hyprop board as it currently stands subsequent to post year-end changes.

GOVERNANCE
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APPROACH TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
Our approach to corporate governance is based on a set of values 
and principles that underpin the day-to-day activities of the group 
which include responsiveness, collaboration, transparency, integrity 
and accountability. This approach encompasses a commitment to 
excellence in governance standards, which we see as fundamental to 
the sustainability of the group’s performance.

APPLICATION OF GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES 
The board is committed to applying the recommendations of  
King III and relevant regulation including the JSE rules and regulations, 
and complying with legislation such as the Companies Act as well as 
relevant standards of best practice. In line with the King III Report’s 
‘apply or explain’ approach, the directors will continue to state the 
extent to which the company applies these corporate governance 
principles to create and sustain value for stakeholders over the 
short, medium and long-term, and to explain any instances of non-
compliance. The application of Chapter 2 of King III can be found on 
page 102. 

 The full application of King III is available on www.hyprop.co.za

ETHICAL LEADERSHIP AND CORPORATE 
CITIZENSHIP
Hyprop’s board aims to integrate responsible corporate citizenship 
into the company’s growth strategy and daily operations in order to 
ensure the company's sustainability. In accordance with the board 
charter, the board is the guardian of the values and ethics of the 
group. The board strives to lead by example and to embody the 
values set out in our Code of Conduct and Ethics. As a business 
imperative the directors strive to ensure that the company conducts 
its business with the utmost integrity towards all its stakeholders. 

  A copy of our Code of Conduct and Ethics is available on www.hyprop.co.za

The social and ethics committee, a committee of the board, 
monitors compliance with Hyprop's Code of Conduct and Ethics 
and other relevant social, ethical and legal requirements as well as 
best practice, and ensures Hyprop is meeting its responsibility to 
its various stakeholders. This includes social transformation in the 
workplace, and the safety, health and dignity of all employees. The 
committee reports to unitholders on matters that fall within the 
scope of its mandate at the annual general meeting of the company 
and by contributing to this integrated report. 

Hyprop further monitors ethical behaviour through the Hyprop 
Ethics Line, an independent ethics hotline operated by KPMG. KPMG 
provides Hyprop with a regular analysis of calls received to enable 
the company to investigate all allegations timeously. Formal reports 
of matters which may impact financial reporting are submitted to 
the audit committee. Only two reports were received during the 
period, which have been addressed adequately. 

 Further detail can be found on www.hyprop.co.za

BOARD AND DIRECTORS
Role and function of the board

The board is governed by a formal charter supported by relevant 
authority limits. 

  The charter and complete terms of reference of the board are available on 
www.hyprop.co.za

The overarching objective is to ensure that the group delivers 
sustainable returns for our stakeholders. The board takes overall 
responsibility for directing the company towards the achievement 
of its strategic objectives, vision and mission, and for the group’s 
integrated performance. This encompasses financial performance as 
well as all considerations of responsible corporate citizenship. 

Composition of the board

Subsequent to year-end, Hyprop’s board comprises eleven directors, 
five of whom are independent non-executives, four of whom are 
non-executive, and two of whom are executive directors. 

The non-executive directors have diverse backgrounds in 
commerce and industry. Their collective experience enables them 
to provide sound, objective judgement in decision-making. They 
review and ratify Hyprop’s strategy, in addition to monitoring the 
group’s performance and that of executive management against 
key performance indicators. Specifically they provide opinion and 
advice regarding the group’s financial, audit, governance and risk 
management controls. In order to ensure sustainable leadership they 
also review transformation and succession planning at senior levels 
and provide input into the remuneration process.

All directors exercise unfettered discretion in the fulfilment of their 
duties, resulting in constructive debate at meetings that continues to 
yield well-considered decisions. 

The position of Chairman is currently held by an independent 
non-executive director, Gavin Tipper, whose role is clearly defined 
and separated from that of the CEO, Pieter Prinsloo. Likewise, the 
responsibilities of CEO and Financial Director are strictly separated 
from those of the non-executive directors to ensure that no single 
director can exercise unilateral decision-making. The Chairman 
provides leadership and guidance to the board and encourages 
proper deliberation on all matters requiring directors’ attention, 
while obtaining input from other directors. The CEO and Financial 
Director are responsible for implementing strategy and operational 
decisions. 

The independent and other non-executive directors are not involved 
in the daily operations of the company. 

Changes to the board

During the period Chairman Michael Aitken retired, independent 
non-executive director Jabulane Mabuza and non-executive director 
Mark Wainer resigned, with effect from 27 June 2013. 

Independent non-executive director Les Weil passed away on 
28 June 2013. Over the last decade, Les made a vital contribution to 
the success of Hyprop and he will be sorely missed. A tribute to Les 
can be found on page 28 of the report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Company secretary 

The company secretary, Probity Business Services Proprietary 
Limited, is an independent company secretarial practice providing 
services to numerous JSE-listed companies. The board is satisfied 

Toerien, maintains an arms-length relationship with the board at all 
times and is sufficiently qualified and skilled to act in accordance 
with, and update directors in terms of the recommendations of the 
King III Report and other relevant regulations and legislation. 

      Further detail on the role and functions of the company secretary are 
available on www.hyprop.co.za

Performance self-assessment 

An evaluation of the board and individual directors was performed 
in 2012 and an evaluation of the sub-committees is scheduled for 
October 2013. 

The board is satisfied that all of the independent non-executive 
directors meet the criteria of King III.

Access to information 

Access to the advice and services of the company secretary and 
to company records, information, documents and property is 

the external and internal auditors, and to management, at any time. 
All directors are entitled, at Hyprop’s expense, to seek independent 
professional advice on any matters concerning the affairs of the 
company.

Access to the board 

Unitholders are able to provide recommendations or direction to 
the board at the annual general meeting, one-on-one meetings, 
investor presentations and through semi-annual investor polls.

Dealing in securities 

The board complies with the requirements of the JSE regarding 
restrictions on the trading of Hyprop’s units by directors, the 
company secretary and employees during the defined closed 
periods. In terms of the Code of Ethics and Conduct directors are 
required to declare to the Chairman and company secretary their 
unitholdings, additional directorships and any potential conflicts of 
interest. In conjunction with the Financial Director and sponsor, they 
ensure that any required disclosure in respect of trades in Hyprop 

access to the company’s financial results and other price sensitive 
information are barred from dealing in Hyprop’s units for specified 
time periods preceding relevant announcements. A notification 
is sent to all directors and affected staff alerting them that the 
company is entering a closed period.

Board committees 

Please see the outline of board committees on page 32.

The board is satisfied that all committees have fulfilled their 
responsibilities during the year. Each committee operates under an 
approved charter which is reviewed on an annual basis. 

On 28 August 2013, Thabo Mokgatlha was appointed to the board 
of Hyprop as an independent non-executive director. He was also 
appointed to the audit committee. Thabo is a Chartered Accountant 
(SA) and began his career as a senior lecturer - accounting and 

manager in the Rustenburg office of the auditor general and finance 
manager of Royal Bafokeng Administration (RBA). Thabo is a director 
on the boards of a number of listed companies. 

Directors standing for re-election at the upcoming annual general 
meeting are Ethan Dube, Lindie Engelbrecht, Mike Lewin and Pieter 
Prinsloo.

Board appointment process 

The board, supported by the remuneration and nomination 
committee, is responsible for new appointments. Identification and 
selection of candidates is conducted in a formal and transparent 
manner. The board and committee take into account the necessary 
blend of skills and experience required to drive the company’s 
operational progress and sustainable transformation, with specific 
relevant factors taken into consideration including diversity and 
regulatory compliance. 

An induction process is in place which includes, amongst other 
things, a briefing by the Chairman, CEO, Financial Director and the 

to key senior management at company and shopping centre levels 
and site visits to the shopping centres are facilitated. 

The appointment of new directors is confirmed by combined 
unitholders at the first annual general meeting following their 
appointment, in terms of the MOI. 

Rotation of directors 

The company’s MOI provides for one-third of the non-executive 
directors to retire by rotation after a three-year term of office. Being 
eligible, the directors in question will offer themselves for re-election 
in accordance with the company’s MOI. 

Interim appointees retire at the next annual general meeting, when 
they may make themselves available for re-election. As appropriate, 
the board, through the remuneration and nomination committee, 
proposes their re-election to the unitholders. There is no limit on 
the number of times a non-executive director may seek re-election.

Succession planning 

It is the responsibility of the remuneration and nomination 
committee to ensure adequate succession planning for all board 
directors, as well as to ensure that all committees are appropriately 
constituted and chaired. The committee gives due consideration to 
succession planning on an ongoing basis. The board is comfortable 
that the depth of skill meets current board succession requirements.

Director development 

To the extent necessary directors have access to experts and 
other parties in carrying out their duties. In addition, directors are 
encouraged to undergo continuing professional development in 
their personal capacity.

GOVERNANCE
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Directors Years of service
Board  

meetings
Audit  

committee
Risk  

committee

Remuneration 
and nomination 

committee *

Social and 
 ethics  

committee
MS Aitken b (Chairman)  
(retired 27 June 2013) 13 2 (2)

PG Prinsloo (CEO) g 10 2 (2) 2 (2) c 1 (1) 1 (1) c 1 (1)
LR Cohen (Financial Director) 10 2 (2) 2 (2) c 1 (1) 1 (1) c

EG Dube b f 7 2 (2) 0 (1)
KM Ellerine a 4 2 (2)
L Engelbrecht b d 2 2 (2) 2 (2) 1 (1) 1 (1)
MJ Lewin a 3 2 (2) 1 (1)
JA Mabuza (resigned 27 June 2013) b 0 (2)
L Norval a 2 2 (2)
S Shaw-Taylor a e 13 2 (2) 1 (1) 0 (1)
GR Tipper (Chairman) b 1 2 (2) 2 (2) 1 (1)
LLS van der Watt b 2 2 (2)
M Wainer a (resigned 27 June 2013) 11 2 (2) 1 (1)
LI Weil b  (deceased 28 June 2013) 10 1 (2) 2 (2)
Executives
V Booysen (Financial Manager) 4 1 (2) c 1 (1) c 1 (1)
M de Klerk 2 1 (1) c

K Eichhorn 13 1 (1) c 1 (1)
N Greenstone 10 1 (1) c

M Hattingh (Financial Manager) 2 2 (2) c 1 (1) c

D Nafte 2 1 (1) c 1 (1)
S Riley 3 1 (1) c 1 (1)
Y van der Merwe 2 1 (1) c

a  Non-executive
b  Independent non-executive
c  By invitation
d Chairman audit committee
e  Chairman risk committee
f  Chairman remuneration and nomination committee
g Chairman social and ethics committee
* Now combined into one committee

Details of directors’ attendance at board and committee meetings for the period 1 January 2013 to 30 June 2013 are set out below. Given the six 
month period of review, two board meetings were held during this period:

The need for additional committees is evaluated on a regular basis. 
Hyprop's remuneration and nomination committees are combined. 
Discussions pertaining to agenda items related to nomination 
committee matters are chaired by the Chairman of the board, Gavin 
Tipper.

There is transparency and full disclosure from board committees to 
the board. Committee chairmen provide the board with a verbal 
report on recent committee activities and the minutes of committee 
meetings are available. In addition, the Chairman of the board and 
Chairman of the audit committee attend the company’s annual 
general meetings, to answer any questions from stakeholders. 

Board meetings and attendance 

The board meets at least four times a year with ad-hoc meetings 
when necessary, to review, amongst other matters, strategy, 
planning, financial performance, resources, operations, risk, capital 
expenditure, reporting and compliance matters, standards of 
conduct, transformation, diversity, employment equity, human 
resources and environmental management.

Relevant information is supplied timeously in advance of meetings, 
ensuring that directors can make well-researched and reasoned 
decisions. 
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RISK

THE BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITY 
Hyprop’s systems of internal control are designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute assurance as to the integrity and 
reliability of the financial statements. The systems are designed to 
manage rather than eliminate applicable risks. They are intended 
to safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of Hyprop’s assets. 
They are further intended to identify and minimise significant fraud, 
potential liability, loss and material misstatement while complying 
with applicable laws and regulations. Review and approval of the 
efficacy of the systems of internal control is the responsibility of the 
board, assisted by the audit and risk committees.

INTERNAL AUDIT 
The audit and risk committees are assisted by management reporting 
and periodic reviews as well as KPMG, to whom the internal audit 
function has been outsourced. The committees report to the board 
on the findings of the internal audit function.  

 Further detail on Hyprop’s internal audit can be found on www.hyprop.co.za

 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR RISK 
MANAGEMENT 
Executive management implements controls to ensure the validity, 
accuracy and completeness of financial information. These controls 
are reviewed by internal and external audit when reliance is placed 
on the controls. External audit reports on the fair presentation of 
financial information at statutory reporting level. On an operational 
level, this is done by the executive committee. 

RISK COMMITTEE 
The committee reports directly to the board. 

The committee’s role and responsibilities are set out on www.hyprop.co.za

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Remuneration of directors and senior executives

The remuneration paid to directors during the period, together 
with information relating to the direct and indirect holdings of the 
directors at 30 June 2013 and their participation in share incentive 
schemes (where relevant), is disclosed in note 24 of the financial 
statements.

Compliance with laws, rules, codes and standards

management, ensure that the company complies with all current 
regulations and legislation. In doing so they liaise closely with the 
company’s sponsor. Areas of non-compliance are formally tabled 
through the risk management process under the supervision of the 
risk committee. 

familiar with the Property Sector Charter and has established a 
subcommittee of the board to monitor progress against the charter, 
with particular focus on transformation. 

As Hyprop is a listed REIT, the company is required to comply with 
the JSE Listings Requirements, including rules that are specific to REITs 
in South Africa.

Anti-competitive behaviour

Hyprop has not been party to any legal actions for anti-competitive 
behaviour or monopoly practices during the period. 

Information technology

The board recognises IT governance as an integral part of the 
company’s holistic approach to governance. It is management's  
responsibility to effectively manage relevant IT risks with oversight 
from the risk committee. During the prior year an internal IT audit 
was conducted and all systems and operations were deemed sound 
and sufficient for the purposes of the business. 

Hyprop is in the process of reviewing its IT structures to increase 
operational efficiency and establish standardised policies and 
procedures for effective IT governance. The review will be 
completed within the next financial year. The group’s database has 
been restructured and a single property management system has 
been implemented across the company. 

Hyprop's aims for the year ahead include the formulation of a formal 
IT governance policy and charter, and implementing an IT internal 
control framework.

      Acts with which the company is required to comply are listed on                 
www.hyprop.co.za

GOVERNANCE
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Key: 

   Risk increased from 2012     Risk decreased from 2012     Risk unchanged

RISK MATRIX
Risk Impact Mitigation Change from 2012 Comments
Property market conditions
Slowdown in consumer spend 
negatively impacting on retailers' 
trading densities unitholders

highest quality to encourage 
consumer spend in Hyprop centres

Currently, affordability 
remains high as shown 
by the rent to turnover 
ratio of 7,2% across the 
portfolio

Oversupply of rentable space Occupancy is at 97,5%

Reduction in property values 
assets 

growth prospects are impaired

Strong demand for 
quality assets

Strategy and execution
Incorrect investment strategy

income 

funding facilities
undertaken prior to approval

Inability to enhance quality of assets to 
ensure sustainable distribution growth assets 

growth prospects are impaired
Development and acquisitions
Inability to deliver developments on 
time and within budget returns undertaken prior to approval of 

extensions 

contactors and professionals to 
ensure timely delivery 

Rosebank Mall 
re-development 
on track

Negative impact of extensions to 
existing operations/income during 
construction

and longer period for centre to 
recover after a major extension, 
resulting in lower distributable 
income

undertaken prior to approval of 
extensions 

contractors and professionals with 
experience in this field to ensure 
as little disruption to the centre as 
possible

management in project planning and 
implementation

Acquisitions not in line with strategy 
and failure to achieve estimated 
investment returns

income

funding facilities

investment committee 

undertaken prior to approval of 
acquisitions

The table below sets out the main risks identified through our risk management process. It also provides mitigation plans. We have not ranked 
the risks in order of priority as all are considered important.
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Risk Impact Mitigation Change from 2012 Comments
Treasury
Lack of available funding

opportunities value ratios 

capital requirements

R5 billion debt capital 
market programme in 
place. Moody's rating: 
A3.za / P-2.za

Reduction in values/net income forcing 
breach of financing covenants immediately monitored

market programme
Interest rate increases

reduced distributable income average maturity of 4,3 years

expiries in one year 

Due to weakening of 
bond market, long-
term interest rates 
increased 

Currency risk
off-shore income (USD).

Hyprop increased 
its investment in 
Atterbury Africa to 
R337 million  
(USD 34 million)

Operations
Lease renewals and tenant retention. 
Significant volume of leases expiring in 
any one period

shopping centre 

under achieving budget expectations

expiries 

throughout their tenure 

 

Incomplete lease documentation 
impair landlord’s enforceability of 
its rights

between landlord and tenant 

documentation status

This is monitored by 
the National Legal 
Executive

Tenant failure and ability to pay rent
throughout their tenure 

lease agreements 

Inability to maintain the quality of 
assets tenants signing at lower than market 

rentals 

inability to acquire additional funding

assets are well maintained 

and reviewed regularly 

improvements

 

Inability to adequately insure assets
replacement cost as well as loss of 
income 

reviewed

 

Reputational and brand risk when 
asset does not comply with customer 
expectations

quality 

foster a good relationship

 

Increases in municipal cost charges
to contribute to their portion of the 
charge

tenants are retained

to measure and reduce consumption 

authorities to contest excessive rates 
increases

Ongoing programmes 
in place to reduce 
consumption

RISK CONTINUED

GOVERNANCE

38    INTEGRATED REPORT 2013



Risk Impact Mitigation Change from 2012 Comments
Deterioration of municipal 
administration and service delivery development and extension of assets 

acquisitions and disposals 

and tenants not trading efficiently

recovery 

consultants to optimise local 
authority approval processes

 

Failure to recruit and retain key 
executives and staff implement its strategic objectives account performance incentives, 

remuneration benchmarking, 
performance evaluation, personal 
development plans 

Introducing a 
long-term incentive 
scheme for executive 
directors and senior 
management 
during 2013

Health, safety and environmental 
compliance

increase in insurance premiums compliance 

at all times
Effectiveness of internal controls

financial data regular basis 

annual basis and reported back to the 
audit committee

 

Compliance risk
Failure to comply with legislation

legislative compliance 

committee

There have been no 
incidences of non-
compliance

Information technology 
Disaster recovery plan

information 

rentals

governance and controls 
 

  Refer to section on IT governance

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS 
Our sustainability is dependent on providing the optimal shopping 
experience through designing, developing and managing quality 
shopping centres and optimising the tenant mix. To this end, 
engagement with stakeholders at all levels is a fundamental 
contributor to our business success. Stakeholder engagement is an 
important channel for ensuring both inclusivity of all stakeholders 
and management’s accountability therefor, in line with our Code of 
Conduct and Ethics. 

See www.hyprop.co.za for a detailed stakeholder engagement table
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WOODLANDS,  
PRETORIA

Woodlands is ideally situated near 
the exclusive Woodhill Golf Estate 
and is known as the “fashion capital” 
of Pretoria.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS
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ENVIRONMENT

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT POLICY AND 
MANAGEMENT
We are committed to the continuous improvement of our 
operations with the aim of reducing our environmental impact. With 
this in mind, we introduced the Green Design and Environmental 
Strategy in 2012 and have made significant inroads during the period. 
The strategy adopts a three-pronged approach with equal focus on 
energy, water and waste. To the extent that there are no standards 
guiding the environmental sustainability of existing buildings nor a 
silver bullet that will solve the environmental challenges overnight, 
our strategy remains dynamic and we continually review it in light 
of best practice and new developments. Implementation is practical 
and takes into account a cost, benefit analysis as well as the feasibility 
of retro-fitting green design. 

GREEN BUILDING
Hyprop is a member of the GBCSA, and as such has committed to 
actively support and adhere to its vision and mission. 

A green building is one that incorporates design, construction and 
operational practices that significantly reduce or eliminate the 
negative impact of development on the environment and occupants 
with strategies for addressing: 

HIGHLIGHTS 

Eskom rebate programme achieving 
significant savings

Central waste collection system at all sites

The group’s Development Executive, Steven Riley, is responsible 

and Technical Managers. The social and ethics committee takes 
responsibility for overseeing and monitoring our progress against 

conducted to assess progress in line with group strategy. The risk 
committee is also informed of policy principles, targets and progress 
for each property. 

Group environment strategy and policy are communicated at 
executive committee level and operationally to the centres’ 
operations managers. 

Hyprop’s Green Design and Environmental Sustainability Strategy 
continues to be implemented and its effectiveness monitored.

FINES

Hyprop did not incur any fines for non-compliance with 
environmental laws and regulations during the period. 

www.gbcsa.org.za

The strategic objectives that have been identified are set out on 
www.hyprop.co.za
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ENVIRONMENT CONTINUED

Hyprop Energy Initiative: Energy saving to end June 2013

Property kWh savings
Demand kWh 

saving per 
month

Rand savings 
per month Installation date

No of 
months in 
operation

kWh saved to 
end of June 

2013
Eskom rebate Rand savings to 

end June 2013
Total Rand 

savings

Lakefield 20 606 78.41 22 667 August 2012 10 206 060 R205 247 R226 670 R431 917

Clearwater 15 488 21.22 13 303 December 2012 6 92 928 R70 336 R79 818 R150 157

Woodlands 23 168 31.74 19 899 March 2013 3 69 504 *R105 212 R59 697 R164 909

Atterbury Value Mart 263 432 30.07 20 226 April 2013 2 526 864 *R99 689 R40 452 R140 141

Total 322 694 161.44 76 095 R480 484 R406 637 R887 121

* Rebate outstanding

Our success in this regard is evidenced by the inroads we have made in energy saving, as indicated below.

The following energy initiatives were identified during the period under review:

Initiative Progress
Detection of faulty metering and reticulation Audits of reticulation and meter systems are underway.

Photovoltaic panels Two pilot studies have been completed (see highlight box below).

Light coloured surfaces Light coloured sheeting has been specified for the Rosebank Mall 
and pastel light coloured paint for the re-painting of Hyde Park.

Energy efficient lamp replacements LED and T5 energy-efficient lamp replacements have taken place in 
seven malls and one office park with another four LED cove lighting 
projects currently under evaluation.

Preventative maintenance programmes All sites have service level agreements with relevant suppliers and 
identified maintenance areas (such as escalators, lifts and compliance 
certificates) are implemented and monitored each month. 

Case study

In line with our commitment to improve the environmental efficiency of our portfolio, Hyprop is continually assessing relevant opportunities. 
Projects are identified using the following criteria:

A study to leverage off South Africa's sun-rich climate in photovoltaic installations was concluded in March 2013. Pilot projects were assessed over  
a three month period, which entailed the installation and monitoring of 1,000kW photovoltaic systems at Clearwater Mall and Canal Walk. 

Our assessment identified certain challenges and barriers to implementation: 

Initial capital outlay: The large capital outlay resulted in a payback period which falls in excess of what is required by Hyprop for projects of 
this size. The return on investment was adversely impacted by the termination of Eskom's rebate programme that would have partly subsidised 
the capital expenditure. This and other solutions will be re-evaluated once Eskom re-introduces the rebate programme. 

Track record in South Africa: Although the product has a credible track record overseas, it has no operational track record in South Africa. In 
particular, it is unclear how the plant will respond to specific weather conditions such as excessive lightening and hail storms that are prevalent in 
South Africa. The lack of clarity would likely result in customised maintenance and service level agreements, which would impact maintenance costs. 

Hyprop will remain abreast of developments and assess relevant opportunities accordingly.

CONSERVING ENERGY AND WATER

We consider resource scarcity, particularly of energy and water, a risk to the sustainability of our buildings and business model. A lack or short 
supply of water or electricity will adversely impact current operations and future projects. Hyprop has a long-term strategy in this regard, which 
is continuously reviewed, updated and improved. In terms of implementation we are pursuing 'low hanging fruit' and chasing 'quick wins' in order 
to establish a credible track record as well as a base from which to gain momentum. 
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WATER

Water saving initiatives implemented during the period include the 
installation of waterless urinals at two facilities at Cradock Heights. 
In addition, drought resistant landscaping was used at Lakefield 
to address recurring leaks. Channels connecting two of the three 
ponds were replaced with dry river beds of indigenous, low water 
consumption plants.

Bulk water consumption is monitored daily at centres to identify 
unusual consumption patterns and thereby leaks.

ENVIRONMENTAL SENSITIVITY

biodiversity areas. 

Canal Walk forms part of the greater Century City Precinct, which is 
located in and around a national wetland conservation area -Intaka 
Island - an award winning 16 hectare wetland conservation area rich in 
birdlife and indigenous plants. The Century City Property Association, 
which manages the Century City Precinct, has an Environmental 
Management Plan ("EMP") to which Canal Walk adheres. The EMP 
requires that no sewerage, fertilisers, herbicides or chemicals are 
discharged into the canals which run through the precinct. Only 
biodegradable cleaning products are used when cleaning areas such as 
parking decks, walkways and walls to minimise any water pollution. In 
addition, Hyprop contributes financially towards maintaining the EMP. 

Willowbridge is located adjacent to the Elsiekraal River and adheres to 
the EMP as set by the council, guarding against water pollution. 

Details to ongoing sustainability opportunities relating to energy,  
water, waste and indoor environmental quality can be found on  
www.hyprop.co.za

  The individual shopping centre’s progress in terms of these 
objectives are detailed more fully on www.hyprop.co.za
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SOCIAL COMMITMENT

TRANSFORMATION 
Hyprop recognises that integrating transformation into business 
practice is crucial for the sustainability of the company and South 
Africa. The company complies with the Employment Equity Act and 
has a comprehensive skills development plan to assist transformation. 

The company is aware of the Property Transformation Charter.  
A BEE committee has been established as a subcommittee of 
the social and ethics commitee to drive and monitor sustainable 
transformation within the group. 

Hyprop has been verified as a Level 8 BEE contributor. 

PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT 
The company encourages preferential procurement. All of the 
company’s suppliers have been verified. 
suppliers have a BEE rating of 4 or higher. 

CSI
CSI spend for the period amounted to R986 000. 

Our shopping centres have always played a central role in their 
local communities, and individual centres are involved in an array 
of programmes to assist local charities and initiatives. The various 
centres raised an amount of R561 000 during the period. 

Further detail of activities at each centre is set out on www.hyprop.co.za

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Details of Hyprop's approach to health and safety are set out on  
www.hyprop.co.za

The Hyprop Foundation 

The foundation provides a centralised vehicle for Hyprop’s 
social investment projects, ensuring they are not isolated 
activities but are rather part of the broader socially 
responsible performance of the group. Funding for the 
foundation is generated by employees accumulating ‘care 
shares’ by participating in defined charitable events, with 
Hyprop then donating a set sum per care share to the 
foundation. This ensures that all employees are encouraged 
to participate in the group’s CSI initiatives and have the 
opportunity to give back to society. 

FFOOFFF UUNNDDAADDD TTAAA IIOONN

Further details on the foundation can be found on www.hyprop.co.za

http://www.hyprop.co.za/downloads/BEECertificate_HypropInvestmentsLtd.pdf

The social and ethics committee is responsible for overseeing and 
monitoring Hyprop’s activities in relation to social and economic 
development, including: 

strategic policy initiative for businesses that are committed to 
aligning with ten universally accepted principles in the areas 
of human rights, labour, environment and anti-corruption.), 
broadbased black economic empowerment, employment 
equity and the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and 

equality, prevention of unfair discrimination, corporate social 

development.

SUSTAINABILITY
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CANSA SHAVATHON AT CAPEGATE

BAREFOOT DAY AT WOODLANDS

CHEQUE HANDOVER TO SHILOHBACK TO SCHOOL DRIVE

ST JOSEPH'S HOME IN CAPE TOWN
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THE GLEN, 
JOHANNESBURG

The Glen is the shopping destination 
of choice for the affluent suburbs of 
the south of Johannesburg.
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REMUNERATION STRATEGY AND POLICY 

OVERVIEW AND PHILOSOPHY
Our remuneration philosophy is intended to promote the 
achievement of the company’s strategic objectives, encourage 
individual performance and reward sustainable value creation. Our 
philosophy emphasises the role of our employees in building long 
term sustainable value through fair and balanced remuneration. 

Hyprop is an internally managed REIT.

The remuneration policy is based on the following key principles:

experienced and motivated individuals, who can execute our 
business strategy, vision and mission. Both short- and long-term 
incentives are used to achieve this. 

drivers of performance. A significant portion of senior 
management’s reward is variable and is based on the achievement 
of realistic performance targets together with the individual’s 
personal contribution to the growth and development of their 
immediate business, the applicable division and wider company. 
The company rewards employees who deliver superior 
performance in line with the company’s strategic goals. When 
warranted by exceptional circumstances, special bonuses may be 
considered as additional awards. 

the board and the investment interests of unitholders.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration committee is responsible for the implementation 
of the remuneration policy. The policy is designed to ensure:

and are linked to realistic performance objectives that support 

GOVERNANCE
Board responsibility

The board has ultimate responsibility for the remuneration policy 
and may deviate from this policy if there are specific reasons to do so 
in an individual case. The remuneration and nomination committee 
operates in accordance with a board-approved mandate. The board 
may, when required or appropriate, refer matters for unitholder 

schemes and non-executive director and committee fees. 

The board evaluates the effectiveness of the remuneration and 
nomination committee annually.

In terms of King III recommendations, the company’s remuneration 
policy is tabled for a non-binding advisory vote at the annual general 
meeting of the company.

Remuneration committee

In order to improve efficiencies, the remuneration and nomination 
committees are combined. The committee meets at least twice a 
year. 

It is chaired by an independent non-executive director and 
comprises non-executive directors with a majority of independent 
non-executives. The CEO and any other director or executive may 
attend meetings by invitation, but are excluded from deliberations 
relating to their individual remuneration. 

A formal charter codifies the tasks and responsibilities of the 
committee. Updates to the charter to effect application of King III 
recommendations, or other identified best practice, are approved 
during the year. The committee chairman attends the annual general 
meeting of the company to liaise with unitholders on matters under 
the ambit of the committee. 

The committee: 

remuneration philosophy and policies for directors and staff

of stakeholders, is comparable to the general remuneration 
environment in the sector, and complies with relevant principles 
of good corporate governance

have been achieved

and units, is aligned with the company’s strategic objectives

that govern the vesting of incentives

financial arrangements, are justified and correctly valued

directors and as executives, when determining their remuneration

levels

unitholder interests and that they are administered in terms of 
their rules

in the integrated annual report, to ensure that it:

 o  provides a clear explanation of how the remuneration policy 

 o  provides sufficient forward-looking information to the board 
regarding the fees of non-executive directors so as to enable 
the board to propose to unitholders, for their consideration 
and approval, a special resolution in terms of section 66(9) of 
the Companies Act, 2008.

REMUNERATION POLICY
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EXTERNAL ADVISORS
The committee utilises the services of independent advisors on an 
ad hoc basis.

REMUNERATION 
Non-executive directors

Remuneration for non-executive directors comprises a base fee, 
predetermined annually and approved by unitholders at the annual 
general meeting. The remuneration and nomination committee 
reviews non-executive directors’ fees annually. Recommendations 
are made to the board, which in turn proposes fees for approval by 
unitholders at the annual general meeting. It is the responsibility of the 
remuneration and nomination committee to provide the necessary 
information to unitholders to enable them to appropriately consider 
the relevant resolution. 

The company’s policy is to reward competitively for the role 
while being cognisant of the required time commitment. Fees are 

contractual arrangements are entered into to compensate for loss 
of office.

do they participate in any long-term incentive schemes except 
where non-executive directors previously held executive office and 
they remain entitled to unvested benefits arising from their period of 
employment. The company does not provide pension contributions 
to non-executive directors. 

Full details of the non-executive directors’ fees are set out on 
page 87. 

Directors' and senior executives’ remuneration

Executive directors are permanently employed by the company. 
Employment agreements include a notice period and do not include 
restraints of trade. Hyprop aims to be regarded as an employer of 
choice. In order to ensure the attraction and long-term retention of 
high calibre individuals, the group offers competitive remuneration 
packages which are reviewed annually. All employees are evaluated 
according to the Patterson job grading system, with six grades 
defining the employee’s remuneration scale.

Hyprop’s remuneration structure includes: 

Base salary 

At all levels, basic salaries are market-related and benchmarked 
against industry norms with adjustments made for the employee’s 
particular experience, qualifications, responsibilities and nature of 
work. Base salaries are reviewed annually.

Short-term incentives (STI)

An annual performance bonus aligns short term rewards with annual 
performance and supports retention. Performance reviews of staff 
are weighted significantly to deliverables. Key Performance Indicators 
(“KPI”) measurements, agreed by the executive committee, are set 
annually at property and company levels and are formally measured. 

These include :

 o Performance against budget
 o Increases in trading densities

budget

 o Tenant arrear collections and management 
 o Tenant deposit and bank guarantee management
 o Documentation administration 
 o Internal audit outcomes

Exceptional performance is rewarded with higher incentives. 
Recommendations from general managers, regional executives 
and executive directors are taken into account in this regard. The 
maximum bonus for senior management is six months’ salary and 
is at the committee’s discretion. Bonuses for executive directors 
are aligned with strategic objectives and are at the committee’s 
discretion.

Long-term incentives (LTI) 

 These are designed to reward long term decisions intended to drive 
distributions and capital growth. They are also designed to align 
employee behaviour with unit holders’ interests. Hyprop’s current 
LTI structure comprises a phantom share scheme however, no annual 
allocations have been made since 2008.

In addition, Hyprop’s employees are members of a defined 
contribution pension fund which has death, disability and funeral 
benefits. 

The company recognises the importance of career development. 
Through consultation with employees, development needs are 
identified and, where appropriate, training and other relevant plans 
are implemented.

The remuneration of executive, non-executive directors and the top 
three earning employees is disclosed in the integrated report. 

TERMS OF SERVICE
The minimum terms and conditions applied to executive directors 
are governed by South African legislation. 

In exceptional situations of termination of executive directors’ 
services, the committee assisted by labour law advisers, oversees the 
settlement of terms.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS
Directors’ interests and related party transactions are disclosed in the 
integrated report.

REMUNERATION CONTINUED

REMUNERATION
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HIGHLIGHTS
R2,525 million net operating income 
per employee

R2,474 million distributable income 
per employee

209 permanent employees

HUMAN CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

Male Female Total
Occupational level Black Coloured Indian White Black Coloured Indian White 
Top management 0,0% 0,0% 0,0% 0,8% 0,0% 0,0% 0,0% 0,0% 0,8%
Senior management 0,4% 0,0% 0,4% 2,3% 0,0% 0,4% 0,0% 5,1% 8,6%
Professionally qualified 0,8% 0,0% 1,2% 5,1% 0,0% 0,0% 0,8% 4,3% 12,2%
Skilled 0,0% 0,4% 0,4% 2,7% 3,1% 1,6% 2,0% 7,8% 18,0%
Semi-skilled 2,7% 0,8% 0,8% 4,4% 6,3% 3,1% 1,6% 7,0% 26,7%
Unskilled 9,8% 3,5% 0,0% 1,6% 2,0% 0,4% 0,0% 0,4% 17,7%
Total permanent 13,7% 4,7% 2,8% 16,9% 11,4% 5,5% 4,4% 24,6% 84,0%
Temporary employees 1,2% 3,1% 0,0% 2,0% 4,7% 2,7% 0,0% 2,3% 16,0%
Grand total 14,9% 7,8% 2,8% 18,9% 16,1% 8,2% 4,4% 26,9% 100,00%

Our people are a critical driver of our business performance and 
sustainability, and a key competitive strength. The high calibre 
of current management at head office and senior operational 
level is instrumental in creating stakeholder value and long-term 
sustainability.

A main focus is to align all human capital investment with the core 
strategy and values of the company.

Our core staff values are to implement and nurture each employee’s 
highest potential, to reward performance and address non-
performance and take responsibility for our actions and outcomes.

WORKPLACE PROFILE BY OCCUPATION LEVEL
We are committed to creating and maintaining an environment 
which provides equal opportunities for all employees, with special 
consideration of previously disadvantaged groups. The formal 
company employment equity policy codifies this commitment and 
stipulates the promotion of equal opportunity, the elimination of 
unfair discrimination and the implementation of positive measures to 
redress disadvantages previously experienced by designated groups. 
Hyprop's 5 year equity plan was submitted to the Department of 
Labour in January 2013. A consolidated equity report is set out below: 

Staff earnings ratio 

Hyprop’s performance per employee in terms of net operating 
income and distributable income as a measure of productivity is 
benchmarked annually against peers. 

Number of  
employees

Net operating  
income per  
employee 

Distributable  
income per  
employee

R000 R000
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
209 214 2 525 2 184 2 474 2 249

Allocation of employees in the group

2013 2012
Hyprop 209 214
Hyde Park Corner Merchants 
Association 3 3
Word4Word 28^ 29^
Total 241 246

^  Word4Word total number of employees is 72. 17 are directly involved 
with Hyprop shopping centres, 11 appointed as Word4Word head office 
employees and 44 outsourced to external management teams.
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During the period, a combination of internal and outsourced training 
sessions were conducted covering, among others, the following 
areas:

Graduate programme

Hyprop introduced a graduate programme in 2010 aimed at 
developing staff into middle and senior management roles, and 
ultimately board positions where viable. The programme is intended 
to develop and incentivise candidates while addressing the group's 
succession planning. The number of participants has increased from 
five to nine, three of which are black, one is coloured, three are indian 
and two are white. Five are males and four are females. Employees 
applying for the programme are required to meet certain criteria to 
be considered. Length of service, performance and financial situation 
are taken into account. Successful applicants receive assistance with 
tuition and related costs. 

Our first graduate, Tumi Sebone will complete her studies by 
December and has already been promoted within the company.

VALUE OF TRAINING INVESTMENTS
2013 training

Designation Number of people Average training spend per 
person for the 6 months to 

June 2013
Black 53  1 557
Coloured 14  1 002
Indian 7 4 096
White 68  1 781
Female 81 1 611
Male 61  1 263
Average 1 560

Performance management 

Performance reviews in terms of individual competency are 
performed annually while performance reviews related to the 
deliverables set out below are conducted bi-annually. 

Staff retention

The high level of retention of staff, especially at senior level, reflects 
our people’s commitment to the group and the amicable working 
environment. In addition, the low turnover of staff ensures continuity 
and aligns the performance of the group with our long-term strategic 
objectives.

Hyprop 
Average employment  

period in years
Top management 100% 11
Senior management 100% 6
Middle management 93% 5
Administration 95% 6
Maintenance 96% 5

Movement Number of employees
Internal placements 7
New appointments 7
Dismissals 2
Resignations 6
Retirements 0

During 2012, a system of performance benchmarking, training and 
leadership development was introduced. The system is continously 
reviewed. During the period, the methodology related to 
performance assessments was enhanced. 

Skills development and training 

Hyprop's training and development takes into account Hyprop's 
skills requirements, skills shortages in the property industry at large 
and transformation requirements. Managers and staff are consulted 
on training requirements and the skills base is objectively assessed. 
From this, the focal areas requiring training are identified for the year 
ahead. Training and skills development is the responsibility of the 

Objectives of our training strategy include:

A primary objective is to up skill our junior management to middle 
management to ensure a solid pipeline of skills eligible for succession 
(see Graduate programme). 

The 2013 training plan was based on the outcome of performance 
reviews in the last quarter of 2012. There were 219 training sessions 
held during the six months to June 2013, and 72% of employees 
participated. The assessment process determined the focal areas 
requiring training during the year and 94% of the training planned 
was completed. The process will continue in 2013. 

SUSTAINABILITY
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CASE STUDY 
Kevin Naidoo 
Head Office 

Employment date 
1 January 2007

Current job title  
Group Accountant

Studying 
Postgraduate Diploma in Property Development  
and Management

Kevin has a BCom degree in Accounting and joined Hyprop in 
2007 as an accountant gaining experience in various finance 
functions. As part of its employee investment initiative, 
Hyprop has introduced a programme aimed at developing 
staff into middle and senior management roles. The vision 
of the programme is to develop and encourage candidates 
while enhancing the group's pipeline for succession. Kevin 
qualified for this programme and was awarded a bursary 
towards a postgraduate diploma at the University of the 
Witwatersrand (WITS). He is in his first year and has so far, 

Studies. 

“In my current role, I've had ample exposure to the 
accounting aspects of redevelopments and other property 
related projects. Through the postgraduate diploma in 
property development and management I am building 
my technical property knowledge. This, together with my 
accounting background, will equip me with a unique blend 
of skills. In addition, the postgraduate diploma affords 
me entry to a Masters degree offered by the School of 
Construction Economics and Management at WITS. I look 
forward to completing my studies and exploring the many 
opportunities it will afford me.” 

Key performance indicators (KPI's):

For the six months ended June 2013 the company outperformed in 
terms of the above KPIs, achieving an overall score of 111%.

Performance against the above KPI's carries a 90% weighting towards 
executive directors and senior management's final performance 
score. The individual's performance carries a 10% weighting and 
individuals are assessed annually. Bonuses are approved by the 
remuneration and nomination committee and are payable in 
December. More detail on our remuneration policy is available on 
page 47 of this report.

HUMAN CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT CONTINUED
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Value distribution - 6 months to June 2013

52%

20%

5%

 Employees
 Finance costs
 Municipal charges  
 Combined unitholders

23%

Value distribution - 6 months to June 2012

50%

22%

5%

 Employees
 Finance costs
 Municipal charges  
 Combined unitholders

23%

Value added is a measure of the wealth created by the group and its employees through its various business activities. This statement shows the 
value added and how it was shared.

Unaudited 
June 2013 %

Unaudited
June 2012 %

Unaudited         
December 2012 %

R000 R000 R000
Property income  1 009 1 002  2 016 
Listed property securities income  75 78  152 
Property expenses excl employee remuneration and municipal charges  (70) (96)  (162)
Other operating expenses  (26) (24)  (54)
Dividends received  1 
Non-core income  1 
Total value created  990 960  1 952 
Value distribution
To employees

remuneration and benefits  45 5 44 5  99 5
To providers of finance

finance costs  195 20 211 22  403 21
To government

current tax  2 0
municipal charges  232 23 224 23  454 23

To providers of capital
distributions to Hyprop unitholders  518 52 481 50  994 51

Total value added  990 100 960 100  1 952 100

REMUNERATION
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APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

The financial statements set out on pages 57 to 99 are the 
responsibility of the directors. They are responsible for selecting and 
adopting sound accounting practices, for maintaining an adequate 
and effective system of accounting records, for safeguarding assets 
and for developing and maintaining a system of internal control 
that, among other things, will ensure the preparation of the financial 
statements achieves fair presentation. The financial statements set 
out in this integrated report have been prepared by the directors 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. They 
are based on appropriate accounting policies which have been 
consistently applied and which are supported by reasonable and 
prudent judgements and estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern 
basis as the directors have every reason to believe that the company 
has adequate resources in place to continue operations for the 
foreseeable future.

DECLARATION BY COMPANY SECRETARY

We declare that, to the best of our knowledge, the company has 
lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Property Commission 
all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of the 
South African Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended, and that all 
such returns are true, correct and up to date. 

Probity Business Services Proprietary Limited 
Company Secretary

Johannesburg
28 August 2013

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing 
and reporting on these financial statements in conformity with 
International Standards on Auditing. Their report is set out on page 
55 of the integrated report.

The financial statements were approved by the board and were 
signed on its behalf by:

Pieter Prinsloo Laurence Cohen 
CEO Financial Director

Johannesburg 
28 August 2013

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HYPROP 
INVESTMENTS LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Report on the financial statements 

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements 
of Hyprop Investments Limited and subsidiaries set out on pages 57 
to 99, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 30 
June 2013, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements 
of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the period 
then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the financial statements

The company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of these consolidated and separate financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that 
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and 
separate financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether 
the consolidated and separate financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated and separate 
financial position of Hyprop Investments Limited and subsidiaries as at 
30 June 2013, and its consolidated and separate financial performance 
and consolidated and separate cash flows for the period then ended 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and 
the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

Other reports required by the Companies Act

As part of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements for the period ended 30 June 2013, we have read the 
Directors' Report, Audit Committee Report and Company Secretary's 
Certificate for the purpose of identifying whether there are material 
inconsistencies between these reports and the audited consolidated 
and separate financial statements. These reports are the responsibility 
of the respective preparers. Based on reading these reports we 
have not identified material inconsistencies between these reports 
and the audited consolidated and separate financial statements. 
However, we have not audited these reports and accordingly do not 
express an opinion on these reports.

GRANT THORNTON 
Chartered Accountants (SA)  
Registered Auditors

EFG Dreyer 
Partner 
Chartered Accountant (SA)  
Registered Auditor

28 August 2013

Grant Thornton Office Park  
137 Daisy Street 
Sandown 
Johannesburg 
2196
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

The audit committee has pleasure in submitting this report, as 
required by section 94(7) (f) of the Companies Act, for the period 
under review.

The audit committee is governed by a formal charter which codifies 
its role and responsibilities including the responsibility for reviewing 
accounting, auditing and financial reporting matters. The committee 
reviews adherence to the company’s systems of internal controls 
and, where necessary, monitors improvements.

Members of the audit committee and attendance at 
meetings 

Details of composition of the committee and attendance at 
meetings is set out on page 35, and CVs in respect of each member 
are set out on pages 28 and 34. The committee comprises exclusively 
independent non-executive directors, in compliance with King III 
requirements and the Companies Act. The external auditors and 
executive management are invited to attend every meeting.

During the period independent non-executive director Les Weil 
passed away. With effect from 28 August 2013 Lindie Engelbrecht was 
appointed as committee chairman in his stead. The chairman reports 
to the board on the activities and recommendations made by the 
committee. On 28 August, 2013 Thabo Mokgatlha was appointed 
to the board of Hyprop as an independent non-executive director. 
Thabo was also appointed to the audit committee.

Functions of the audit committee

During the period under review, the audit committee:

auditors for non-audit services to maintain independence.

The audit committee is satisfied:

after considering the report to the audit committee motivating 
their independence and has recommended their re-appointment 
at the forthcoming annual general meeting

auditor for the period ended 30 June 2013 

utilised in the preparation thereof and has recommended the 
integrated report, including the financial statements, to the 
board for approval

which it has reported on to the board for its deliberation

necessary expertise and experience to carry out his duties, as 
required by the JSE Listings Requirement 3.84(h).

All concerns and complaints that were received from within or 
outside the group relating to accounting practices and internal 
financial controls, and the content or auditing of the company’s 
financial statements were considered by the audit committee and 
dealt with as appropriate.

Lindie Engelbrecht
Audit committee chairman

28 August 2013
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their report, which 
forms part of the financial statements for the six months ended  
30 June 2013.

Nature of business

Hyprop is a professionally managed listed property company 
specialising in prime quality shopping centres and is listed on the JSE.

Hyprop provides investors with the opportunity to invest in 
quality retail real estate and distributes all of its distributable 
earnings on a semi-annual basis. The company grows the portfolio 
through acquisitions and developments as and when appropriate 
opportunities arise.

The property portfolio includes 11 prime shopping centres, classified 
as regional, large regional, super regional and value centres. The 
centres are located in primary economic hubs in Gauteng and the 
Western Cape, and are the preferred shopping destinations in their 
respective nodes, with diverse tenant bases, including a strong 
national retailer profile and a number of flagship national stores. The 
company also has investments in Africa through a 37,5% interest in 
Atterbury Africa.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Review of activities

The results of the group and the company are commented on in 
the Chairman, CEO and FD’s Reports and are set out in the financial 
statements on pages 57 to 99.

Capital structure

All combined units comprise one ordinary share and one debenture 
and may only be traded on the JSE. The terms and conditions 
governing the debentures are contained in the Hyprop Debenture 
Trust Deed.

Full particulars regarding the authorised and issued share capital at 30 
June 2013 are set out in note 14 to the financial statements, and full 
particulars regarding the debentures are set out in note 17.

Following the introduction of Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) 
legislation in South Africa, Hyprop converted to a REIT from 1 July 
2013. The REIT structure is an internationally recognised vehicle 
for listed property, and will provide the sector with tax certainty 
and uniformity in capital structures. Hyprop will in all likelihood 
undertake a capital restructure to 'de-link' its combined units and do 
away with its debentures. Further information will be communicated 
to unitholders in this regard in due course.

Directors’ interests

The interests of the directors in the combined units of the company at 30 June 2013 were as follows:

30 JUNE 2013
BENEFICIAL 

30 JUNE 2013 
NON-BENEFICIAL

31 DECEMBER 2012 
BENEFICIAL

Direct Indirect Indirect Direct Indirect
Independent non-executive

Michael Aitken(1)  15 000  25 000
Les Weil (2)  21 153  

Non-executive 
Louis Norval  7 611 619 488 930 6 985 346  1 115 203
Stewart Shaw-Taylor 8 479   8 479  
Marc Wainer (3)     474 699

Executive
Pieter Prinsloo  305 049   295 049
Laurence Cohen  147 154   132 000

8 479 8 063 822 488 930 7 029 978 2 041 951

(1) Retired 27 June 2013
(2) Deceased 28 June 2013
(3) Resigned 27 June 2013
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED

Directorate

Independent non-executive chairman Mike Aitken retired and non-
executive directors Marc Wainer and Jabu Mabusa resigned from the 
board on 27 June 2013.

Gavin Tipper replaced Mike Aitken as independent non-executive 
chairman on the same date.

Les Weil, an independent non-executive director and chairman of the 
audit committee, passed away on 28 June 2013. Lindie Engelbrecht, 
also an independent non-executive director and incumbent audit 
committee member, replaced Les as chairman of the audit committee. 
On 28 August 2013, Thabo Mokgatlha was appointed to the board 
of Hyprop as an independent non-executive director. Thabo was 
also appointed to the audit committee. Thabo's appointment as a 
director is subject to confirmation at the forthcoming AGM.

Ethan Dube, Lindie Engelbrecht, Mike Lewin and Pieter Prinsloo, in 
accordance with the company’s memorandum of incorporation, 
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible 
offer themselves for re-election.

An abridged curriculum vitae for each of the directors is set out on 
pages 28, 29 and 34.

Company secretary

The company secretary is Probity Business Services Proprietary 
Limited. The business and postal addresses of the company secretary 
are set out on the inside back cover (IBC).

Company 30 June 2013 %
Redefine Properties Limited 27 770 683 11.4
Government Employees Pension Fund 25 536 079 10.5
STANLIB 19 610 829 8.1
Investec 15 004 317 6.2
Old Mutual 13 101 452 5.4

 

Beneficial unitholders holding 5% or more
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Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

Disclosure of the company’s investments in subsidiaries, joint 
arrangements and associates is included in notes 5, 6, 7 and 8, 
respectively to the financial statements.

Administration and management

Property management and asset management are fully internalised. 

during the year.

Audit committee report

The audit committee has fulfilled its responsibilities during the 
year (refer to the audit committee report on page 56 for details 
in this regard). The committee has further satisfied itself as to the 
independence of the external auditors and their suitability for 
reappointment for the ensuing year.

Auditors

Grant Thornton will continue in office in accordance with part C of 
section 90 of the South African Companies Act.

Directors’ interest in contracts

entered into during the year, other than the transactions detailed in 
note 33 to the financial statements.

Going concern

The directors consider that the group and company have adequate 
resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future and that 
it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 
group and company financial statements. The directors have satisfied 
themselves that the group and company are in a sound financial 
position and that they have access to sufficient borrowing facilities 
to meet their foreseeable cash requirements.

Special resolutions

The following special resolutions were passed by unitholders during 
the year (at the annual general meeting of unitholders held on 27 June 
2013), and where necessary have been registered by the Companies 
and Intellectual Property Commission (CIPC): 

assistance to group interrelated entities (in terms of section 45 of 

units.

Johannesburg 

28 August 2013
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 30 JUNE 2013

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

NOTE R000 R000 R000 R000
ASSETS
Non-current assets  20 282 124  20 996 662  19 945 129  20 885 388 

Investment property 2  18 287 042  17 135 433  18 287 042  17 135 433 
Development property 2  1 187 000  990 000  1 187 000  990 000 
Straight-line rental income accrual 2  308 686  292 807  308 686  292 807 
Building appurtenances and tenant installations 3  63 065  55 356  62 899  55 206 
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 4  2 282 095  2 282 095 
Investment in subsidiary 5  12 059  12 059 
Derivative instruments 19  39 857  39 857 
Investment in associate 8  108  117 803 
Goodwill 9  12 059  12 059 
Loan receivable 10  384 307  111 109  47 586  1 1 7  788 

Current assets  298 996  398 364  407 518  390 008 
Trade and other receivables 11  224 175  183 056  219 293  180 500 
Loan receivable 10  47 434  117 600  47 434 
Cash and cash equivalents 12  74 821  167 874  70 625  162 074 

Non-current assets classfied as held-for-sale 13  2 400 822  131 074  2 279 253  131 074 
Listed property securities  2 279 253  2 279 253 
Investment in associate  121 569 
Investment property  131 074  131 074 

Total assets  22 981 942  21 526 100  22 631 900  21 406 470 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity capital and reserves  10 814 409  7 073 981  10 810 740  7 075 856 

Share capital 14  1 661  1 661  1 661  1  661 
(Accumulated loss) / Retained earnings  (5 373)  523 302  (5 195)  (30 376)
Non distributable reserves 16  10 817 808  6 549 024  10 814 274  7 104 571 
Foreign currency translation reserve 15  313  (6)

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities  10 341 977  12 718 115  10 009 660  12 607 453 

Debentures and debenture premium 17  5 822 497  5 871 616  5 822 497  5 871 616 
Long-term loans 18  4 436 486  4 371 035  4 103 914  4 260 159 
Derivative instruments 19  52 984  204 519  52 984  204 519 
Deferred taxation 20  30 010  2 270 945  30 265  2 271 159 

Current liabilities  1 825 556  1 734 004  1 811 500  1 723 161 
Trade and other payables 21  353 802  369 110  345 669  362 247 
Taxation  5 923  3 980 
Short-term loans 18  948 000  815 000  948 000  815 000 
Derivative instruments 19  32 945  32 945 
Combined unitholders for distribution  517 831  512 969  517 831  512 969 

Total liabilities  12 167 533  14 452 119  11 821 160  14 330 614 
Total equity and liabilities  22 981 942  21 526 100  22 631 900  21 406 470 
Net asset value per combined unit ( R )  68,43  53,25  68,42  53,26 
Net asset value per combined unit 
 - excluding deferred taxation liability ( R )  68,56  62,59  68,54  62,60 
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GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

NOTE R000 R000 R000 R000
Revenue  1 099 489  2 177 625  1 093 916  2 156 203 

Investment property income  1 008 671  2 016 184  1 003 098  1 994 763 
Straight-line rental income accrual  15 879  9 208  15 879  9 208 
Listed property securities income  74 939  152 233  74 939  152 232 

Property expenses  (347 277)  (714 284)  (342 898)  (695 581)
Net property income  752 212  1 463 341  751 018  1 460 622 
Other operating expenses  (27 729)  (53 885)  (27 652)  (53 550)
Operating income  724 483  1 409 456  723 366  1 407 072 
Net interest  (191 723)  (404 827)  (195 589)  (405 135)

Received 22  17 234  22 180  9 674  21 530 
Paid 23  (208 957)  (427 007)  (205 263)  (426 665)

Net operating income 24  532 760  1 004 629  527 777  1 001 937 
Change in fair value  1 403 721  1 273 905  1 403 721  1 273 905 

Investment property  1 198 105  1 137 924  1 198 105  1 137 924 
Straight-line rental income accrual  (15 879)  (9 208)  (15 879)  (9 208)
Listed property securities 4  (2 842)  315 259  (2 842)  315 259 
Derivative instruments  19  224 337  (170 070)  224 337  (170 070)

Profit / (Loss) on disposal  28 061  (15 221)  28 061  (15 221) 
Investment property  90  (11 886)  90  (11 886)
Listed property securities  (3 335)  (3 335)
Sycom rights offer nil paid letters  4  27 971  27 971 

Amortisation of debenture premium  49 119  487 925  49 119  487 925 
Impairment of loan to subsidiary  5  (67 285)
Non-core income  1 009  1 009 
Income before debenture interest and taxation  2 014 670  2 751 238  2 009 687  2 681 261 
Debenture interest  (517 831)  (994 333)  (517 831)  (994 333)
Net income before share of income from associate  1 496 839  1 756 905  1 491 856  1 686 928 
Share of income from associate 8  4 262  144 
Dividends received 5  2 134 
Net income before taxation  1 501 101  1 757 049  1 493 990  1 686 928 
Taxation 27  2 239 008  (753 169)  2 240 894  (750 709)

Current taxation  (1 927)  (601)
Capital gains taxation  (1 443)
Deferred taxation  2 240 935  (751 125)  2 240 894  (750 709)

Profit for the year  3 740 109  1 003 880  3 734 884  936 219 
Other comprehensive income: 
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations  15  319  (6) 
Total comprehensive income for the year  3 740 428  1 003 874  3 734 884  936 219 
Basic and diluted earnings per combined unit (cents) 28  1 751,4  821,9 
Basic and diluted headline earnings per combined unit (cents) 28  395,5  445,2 
Distributable earnings per combined unit (cents) 28  212,8  409,8 

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

GROUP

Share
capital

Non-
distributable

reserve
(NDR)

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve
(FCTR)

Retained
income/

(Accumulated 
loss) Total

R000 R000 R000 R000 R000
Balance at 31 December 2011  1 661  5 543 916  524 530  6 070 107 
Profit for the year  1 003 880  1 003 880 
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of taxation  (6)  (6)
Net transfer to non-distributable reserve  1 005 108  (1 005 108)
Balance at 31 December 2012  1 661  6 549 024  (6)  523 302  7 073 981 
Profit for the period  3 740 109  3 740 109 
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of taxation  319  319 
Net transfer to non-distributable reserve 4 268 784  (4 268 784)
Balance at 30 June 2013  1 661  10 817 808  313  (5 373)  10 814 409 

COMPANY

Share
capital

Non-
distributable

reserve

Retained
income / 

(Accumulated 
loss) Total(NDR)

R000 R000 R000 R000
Balance at 31 December 2011  1 661 6 099 464  38 512  6 139 637 
Profit for the year  936 219  936 219 
Net transfer to non-distributable reserve  1 005 107  (1 005 107)
Balance at 31 December 2012  1 661  7 104 571  (30 376)  7 075 856 
Profit for the period  3 734 884  3 734 884 
Net transfer to non-distributable reserve  3 709 703  (3 709 703)
Balance at 30 June 2013 1 661  10 814 274  (5 195)  10 810 740
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GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

NOTE R000 R000 R000 R000
Cash flows from operating activities  (49 773)  191 277  (53 043)  259 067 

Cash generated from operations 29.2  660 705  1 478 600 661 705  1 478 631 
Interest received 22  17 234  22 180  9 674  21 530 
Interest paid 23  (215 147)  (427 007)  (211 453)  (426 665)
Income from associate  388 
Distribution to Hyprop combined unitholders 29.3  (512 969)  (814 429)  (512 969)  (814 429)
Taxation paid 29.4  16  (68 067)

Cash flows from investing activities  (241 730)  125 580  (15 161)  168 833 
Acquisition of and additions to investment property  (175 010)  (147 429)  (174 941)  (147 380)
Proceeds on disposal of investment property  131 074  178 332  131 074  178 332 
Proceeds on disposal of listed property securities  27 971  206 002  27 971  206 002 
Acquisition of subsidiary  (434)
Loan to Atterbury Africa  (225 800)  (111 109)
Dividends received 29.5 700
Inter-group loans  35  (216)  35  (67 687)

Cash flows from financing activities  198 450  (352 879)  (23 245)  (463 755)
(Decrease)/increase in long-term and short-term loans 198 450 352 879 (23 245) (463 755)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (93 053)  (36 022)  (91 449)  (35 855)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  167 874  208 394  162 074  202 427 
Cash and cash equivalents transferred to non-current assets held-for-sale  (4 498)  (4 498)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 12  74 821  167 874  70 625  162 074 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRESENTATION OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1.1  Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, the SAICA Financial 
Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, 
and Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial 
Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Limited Listings Requirements 
and the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008, as amended.

1.2  Basis of preparation

In the current period, the group has applied a number of new and 
revised IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board 
(IASB) that are mandatory effective for accounting periods that begin 
on or after 1 January 2013. 

The company considered the effect of the following new and 
revised standards:

IFRS 7 Financial instruments – disclosures (amendments).

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of 
the group.

In the current period, the group has applied for the first time:

IFRS 13 Fair value measurements

The impact of the application of these standards is not material.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical 
cost basis, except for the measurement of investment properties, 
investment property classified as held-for-sale and certain financial 
instruments which have been disclosed at fair value and incorporate 
the principal accounting policies set out below. 

Fair value adjustments do not affect the calculation of distributable 
earnings, but have an effect on the net asset value per combined 
unit to the extent that such adjustments are made to the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities.

Various new accounting standards, or revisions to current accounting 
standards, have been issued with effective dates applicable to future 
financial statements. Refer to note 1. 23 for further information.

1.3  Basis of consolidation 

The group financial statements comprise the consolidated financial 
statements which incorporate the financial statements of the 
company and entities controlled by the company. 

Control is achieved when the company:

The company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts 
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of 
the three elements of control listed above.
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities, 
income, expenses and cash flows of the group and all entities controlled 
by the group. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during 
the year are included in the consolidated financial statement from the 
date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal. 

All intercompany transactions, unrealised profits and balances 
between group enterprises are eliminated on consolidation. 

 1.4  Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of a business and represents the 
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the groups’ interest in the 
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
acquired. Where the net recognised amount of the identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the fair value of the 
consideration transferred, this excess is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss. Goodwill is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition 
less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss recognised 
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.On disposal of the 
relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is 
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each 
of the group’s cash-generating units that is expected to benefit from 
the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is 
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there 
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, 
the impairment loss is allocated first to the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the 
unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. 

1.5  Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the group has control. 

When the company has less than a majority of the voting rights of 
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights 
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant 
activities of the investee unilaterally. 

The company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in 
assessing whether or not the company’s voting rights in an investee 
are sufficient to give it power, including:

company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the 
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, 
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

In the separate financial statements of the company, investments in 
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost and adjusted for impairment 
if applicable.

1.
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required. The profits or losses are recognised in the statements of 
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements 
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for 
using the equity method from the date on which the investee 
becomes an associate or a joint venture.

When the reporting period of the investor is different from that of 
the associate or joint venture, the associate or joint venture prepares 
for the use of the investor, financial statements as at the same date 
as the financials of the investor.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate or joint venture 
of the group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the 
group’s interest in the relevant associate or joint venture.

In the separate financial statements of the company, investments in 
associates or joint ventures are accounted for at cost and adjusted 
for impairment if applicable.

1.8  Building appurtenances and tenant installations 

Building appurtenances and tenant installations are carried at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. 

Depreciation is provided on all building appurtenances and tenant 
installations to write down the cost, less residual value, by equal 
instalments over their useful lives as follows: 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised when it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the group and its cost can be reliably 
measured. All other expenditure is recognised as an expense in the 
period in which it is incurred. Gains and losses on the disposal of 
building appurtenances and tenant installations are recognised in 
profit or loss and are calculated as the difference between the sale 
price and the carrying value of the item sold.

1.9  Investment property and development property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for 
capital appreciation (including property under development for such 
purposes). 

Investment property is initially recognised at cost including 
transaction costs. Cost includes initial costs as well as costs incurred 
subsequently to extend or refurbish investment property. 

Investment property is subsequently measured at fair value as 
determined on a semi-annual basis by an independent registered 
valuer. The valuations are done on an open-market basis and valuers 
use the discounted cash flow method. Gains or losses arising from 
changes in fair value are included in net profit or loss for the period 
in which they arise. These gains or losses are transferred to non-
distributable reserves in the Statement of Changes in Equity. 

Realised gains or losses arising on the disposal of investment properties 
are recognised in net profit or loss for the year and transferred to 
non-distributable reserves in the Statement of Changes in Equity. 

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no 
future economic benefits are expected from the property. Any gain 

1.6  Interests in joint operations 

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that 
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and 
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control 
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement 
which exists when decisions about the relevant activities require 
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity transacts with its joint operation, profits and 
losses resulting from the transactions with the joint operation are 
recognised in the group’s consolidated financial statements only 
to the extent of interests in the joint operation entity that are not 
related to the group.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations, 
the group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in 
a joint operation:

the joint operation.

operation.

The group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses 
relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance with the IFRSs 
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

In terms of the co-ownership agreements for Canal Walk, The Glen 
and Stoneridge, material capital expenditure requires mutual consent 
of the co-owners. In view of the significant increases in development 
costs, most capital expenditure that is undertaken is material and 
accordingly these centres are not considered to be solely controlled 
by Hyprop. The interests in these centres are therefore treated as 
joint operations.

In the separate financial statements of the company, interests in joint 
operations are accounted for in the same manner.

1.7   Investments in associates and joint ventures 

An associate is an enterprise over which the company can exercise 
significant influence, through participation in the financial and 
operating policy decisions of the investee, but does not have control 
nor joint control over those policies. 

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have 
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the 
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of 
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about 
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties 
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures 
are incorporated in the financial statements using the equity method 
of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for 
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5.

Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at 
cost and thereafter it is adjusted to recognise the investor’s share of 
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee after the date 
of acquisition, distributions received and any adjustments that are 
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or loss arising on derecognition of the property is included in profit 
or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised. The 
gain or loss is calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.

Investment property under development is recorded at fair value. If 
the fair value cannot be reasonably determined it is stated at cost.

Investment property under development is categorised as being 
under development until development work ceases and the property 
becomes income producing, at which time the categorisation “under 
development” will cease and the property will be included with 
other investment property.

1.10  Non-current assets held-for-sale

liabilities, that are expected to be recovered primarily through 
sale rather than through continuing use, are classified as held-for-
sale. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly 
probable and the non-current asset or disposal group is available for 
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and 
customary for sales of such assets and its sale is highly probable. For 
the sale to be highly probable, the appropriate level of management 
must be committed to a plan to sell the asset or disposal group.

Investment property classified as held-for-sale is measured in 
accordance with IAS 40 Investment property at fair value with gains 
and losses on subsequent measurement being recognised in profit 
or loss.

Disposal groups and non-current assets held-for-sale are presented 
separately from other assets and liabilities in the statement of 
financial position. Prior periods are not reclassified.

1.11   Financial instruments

Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset of 
one entity, and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the 
statements of financial position when the group becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. The group classifies 
financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition 
as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at 
fair value. Any gains or losses on these instruments do not affect 
distributable earnings. All transaction costs relating to financial 
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss are 
immediately expensed.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual 
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the 
rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset 
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in 
transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the entity is 
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual 
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

Offset

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount 
reported in the statement of financial position, when the group has 
an enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and intends 
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset, and settle the liability 
simultaneously.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments are measured 
as follows:

Financial assets

1.11.1  Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to 
insignificant risk of change in value. Cash and cash equivalents are 
measured at amortised cost. Interest earned on cash invested with 
financial institutions is recognised on an accrual basis using the 
effective interest method.

1.11.2 Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other receivables are carried at amortised cost less any 
accumulated impairments. An estimate is made for credit losses 
based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year end. Doubtful 
debts are provided for in the year in which they are identified, with 
such movement taken to profit or loss for the period. Short-term 
receivables are measured at original invoice amount when the effect 
of discounting is immaterial.

1.11.3  Loans receivable

Loans receivable are carried at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method, less any impairment. Interest earned is 
recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

1.11.4 Listed property securities 

Listed property securities are classified at fair value through profit 
or loss and are subsequently measured at fair value less the accrual 

deduction is made for transaction costs which may be incurred on 
sale or disposal. Gains or losses are transferred to non-distributable 
reserves in the Statement of Changes in Equity. 

Financial liabilities

1.11.5  Derivative instruments 

The entity uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure 
to interest rate risk arising from its financing activities. Derivative 
instruments are adjusted to fair value at each reporting date and 
have been designated by the group as instruments held for trading 
and accounted for at fair value through profit and loss. Gains or 
losses are transferred to non-distributable reserves in the statement 
of changes in equity. 

The group holds interest rate swap instruments. The fair value of 
interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the entity would 
receive or pay to terminate the swap at the reporting date, taking 
into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness 
of the swap counterparties.
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1.11.6 Trade payables 

Trade and other payables are recognised at cost and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. Short-term payables are measured at 
original invoice amount when the effect of discounting is immaterial. 

1.11.7 Other financial liabilities

bearing loans, other than debentures, are initially measured at fair 
value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement 
or redemption of borrowings, is recognised over the term of the 
borrowings in accordance with the group’s accounting policy for 
borrowing costs.

1.11.8 Debentures 

Debentures are designated as financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost. The debenture premium is amortised over the period 
over which the debentures will be repaid. The portion recorded in 
profit and loss for the amortisation of debentures is added back for 
distribution purposes.

1.11.9 Combined units

Each ordinary share issued is irrevocably linked to a debenture. The 
debentures are redeemable at the option of the holders and accrue 
interest half yearly. The debentures are classified as a liability, and 
the interest that accrues as debenture interest is expensed through 
profit or loss. The debentures issued are initially recognised at fair 
value. Debenture capital is subsequently carried at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. The fair value of the equity 
portion, which is insignificant, is allocated to share capital.

1.12  Impairment 

Financial assets

Financial assets other than those at fair value through profit or loss 
are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is 
any evidence of impairment. A financial asset is considered to be 
impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more events 
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flow of that 
asset. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s 
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised 
whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit 
exceeds its recoverable amount, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually.

An impairment loss is reversed, with the exception of goodwill, if 
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount and there is an indication that the impairment 
loss no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the carrying 
amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised.

1.13  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present legal 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and, in addition, a reliable estimate 
of the amount can be made. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the 
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of 
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
relevant to the obligation.

1.14  Share capital 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 

External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are 
shown as a deduction from equity.

1.15  Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective 
functional currency of the group at the exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at 
the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at that date.

currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to the 
functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair 
value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognised in 
profit or loss. 

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and 
fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to the group’s 
presentation currency (Rand) at the exchange rates at the reporting date. 
The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Rand 
at the dates of the transactions (an average rate is used).

Foreign currency translation reserve

Foreign currency differences on translation of the financial position 
and results of a foreign operation into the group’s presentation 
currency are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve 
(FCTR). When a foreign operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the 
relevant amount in the FCTR is transferred to profit and loss as part 
of the profit or loss on disposal.

1.16  Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits is recognised during the 
period in which the employees render the related service. Short 
term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis. The 
accrual for employee entitlements to salaries, bonuses and annual 
leave represents the amount which the group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay as a result of the employees’ services 
provided up to the reporting date.

INTEGRATED REPORT 2013    67



1.19  Taxation 

1.19.1 Current liabilities 

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, 
recognised as a liability. Current tax liabilities for the current and 
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to 
the tax authorities, using the tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

1.19.2 Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax 
is not recognised for the following temporary differences:

not a business combination and that affects neither accounting 
nor taxable profit.

combination

controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences can 
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or 
the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

The effect on deferred tax of any changes in tax rates is recognised 
in the profit or loss for the period, except to the extent that it 
relates to items previously charged or credited directly to other 
comprehensive income or equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they 
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same 
taxable entity. 

1.19.3 Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense 
and included in profit or loss for the period. 

Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other 
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or 
other comprehensive income respectively. The charge for current tax 
is based on the results for the period as adjusted for items which are 
disallowed and any tax payable in respect of previous years. Current 
tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, 
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan a post-employment benefit plan under 
which the group pays contributions to a separate entity and will have 
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts if the fund 
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits 
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 

The contributions are recognised as an employee benefit expense 
when they are due. 

Incentive scheme

The group operates a scheme that was formulated to reward 
employees who make a meaningful and sustainable contribution to 
the financial performance of Hyprop.

A liability is recognised in the statement of financial position. The 
liability is re-measured at each reporting period using the Phantom 
Scheme Calculation method to reflect the revised fair value, adjusted 
for changes in assumptions.

Changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

1.17  Revenue

Property portfolio revenue

Property portfolio revenue comprises operating lease income and 
operating cost recoveries from the letting of investment properties. 
Operating lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the lease.

Turnover rentals are included in revenue when the amounts can be 
reliably measured.

Listed securities revenue

Distributions from listed securities are recognised on an accrual basis 
over the effective holding period.

Interest received

Interest earned on cash invested with financial institutions is 
recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

1.18  Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost 
of that asset until such time as the asset is substantially ready for its 
intended use. 

of time to prepare for their intended use. 

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is the 
actual borrowing costs incurred on funds specifically borrowed in 
respect of the qualifying asset. Investment income earned on the 
temporary investment of borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost capitalised. 
Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to 
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period 
in which they are incurred. 
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1.20 Segment reporting 

The group determines and presents operating segments based on 
information that is provided internally to the chief operating decision 
maker (Executive Management Committee (Exco) and to the Board 
of Directors).

Segment results that are reported to Exco include items directly 
attributable to a segment or a region, as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis.

On a primary basis the operations are organised into the following 
business segments – super regional malls, large regional malls, value/
lifestyle centres, offices and listed property securities. 

1.21   Earnings, headline earnings and distributable earnings  
per combined unit

Earnings per combined unit are calculated on the weighted average 
number of units in issue for the year and are based on profit 
attributable to unitholders. Headline earnings per combined unit are 
calculated in terms of the requirements set out in Circular 3/2012 
issued by SAICA.

1.22 Key estimations and uncertainties 

Estimates and assumptions are an integral part of financial reporting 
and as such have an impact on the amounts reported as the group’s 
income, expenses, assets and liabilities. Judgement in these areas is 
based on historical experience and reasonable expectations relating 
to future events. 

Information on the key estimations and uncertainties that have the 
most significant effect on amounts recognised are set out below:

Investment property

The valuation of investment properties requires judgement in the 
determination of future cash flows and appropriate discount rates 
and capitalisation rates.

For more information, refer to note 2.

Building appurtenances

The determination of the useful life and residual values is subject to 
management estimates. Management reviews the depreciation rates 
and residual values on an annual basis to take account of any changes 
in circumstances.

For more information, refer to note 3.

Fair Value of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is 
normally the transaction price (the fair value of consideration paid 
or received). 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the fair values of financial 
instruments measured at fair value that are quoted in active markets 
are based on bid prices for assets. When quoted prices are not 
available, fair values are determined using valuation techniques that 
refer as far as possible to observable market inputs, either directly 
or indirectly.

The impact of discounting is not material for short term loans and 
trade debtors and creditors.

For more information, refer to notes 4, 10, 11, 19 and 21.

Interests in co-ownerships

Judgement is required to identify the relevant activities of the 
co-ownerships. Interests in co-ownerships are seen as interests in 
joint operations. There is a sharing of control of the co-ownerships 
and decisions regarding major capital expenditure projects require 
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Impairment of assets

The group tests whether assets have suffered any impairment in 
accordance with the impairment accounting policy. Recoverable 
amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on 
estimated future cash flows discounted to their present values using 
the appropriate rates. Estimates are based on forecasts.

Trade receivables

Management identifies impairments of trade receivables on an 
ongoing basis. Impairment adjustments are raised against trade 
receivables when collectability is considered doubtful. Management 
believes that there are no significant trade receivables that are 
doubtful and have not been provided for as doubtful debts or 
written off.

For more information, refer to note 11.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets are raised to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profit will be available against which the unused 
tax credits can be utilised. Assessment of future taxable income 
is performed in the form of estimated future cash flows using a 
suitable growth rate.

For more information, refer to note 20.

Phantom scheme liability

The liability is calculated based on the year-end market value of the 
Hyprop combined unit. The actual payment is based on a 30 day 
volume weighted average price to 30 March. 

Amortisation of debenture premium

The risk adjustment applied to the discount rate used in the 
amortisation of debenture premium requires a measure of judgement. 
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1.23 Standards not yet effective 

New standards and interpretations

At the date of approval of these financial statements, certain new 
accounting standards, amendments and interpretations to existing 
standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have 
not been early adopted by the company. 

Management anticipates that all of the pronouncements will be 
adopted in the group's accounting policies for the first period 
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. 
Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that 
are expected to be relevant to the company's financial statements or 
those for which the impact has not yet been assessed, is provided 
below. Certain other new standards and interpretations have been 
issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the 
company's financial statements.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments – presentation (amendments)

The amendments clarify that an entity currently has a legally 
enforceable right to set off if that right is not contingent on a future 
event, and is enforceable both in the normal course of business and 
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all 
counterparties. The amendments further clarify that gross settlement 
is equivalent to net settlement if, and only if, the gross settlement 
mechanism has features that eliminate or result in insignificant credit 
and liquidity risk, and process receivables and payables in a single 
settlement process or cycle.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or 
after 1 January 2014.

The company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in 
the 2014 financial statements.

The amendment will be applied retrospectively.

The impact of the standard is currently being assessed.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

This new standard is the first phase of a three phase project to replace 
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. To date, 
the standard includes chapters for classification, measurement and 
derecognition of financial assets and liabilities.

Under IFRS 9 there are two options in respect of the classification of 
financial assets, namely, financial assets measured at amortised cost 
or at fair value. Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when 
the business model is to hold assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and when they give rise to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. All 
other financial assets are measured at fair value.

Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from hybrid contracts 
that have a financial asset host.

IFRS 9 has retained in general the requirements of IAS 39 for financial 
liabilities, except for the following two aspects:

guarantees and loan commitments) designated at fair value 
through profit or loss, that are attributable to the changes 
in the credit risk of the liability, will be presented in other 
comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the fair value 
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change is recognised in profit or loss. However, if this requirement 
creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, then 
the whole fair value change is presented in profit or loss. The 
determination as to whether such presentation would create or 
enlarge an accounting mismatch is made on initial recognition 
and is not subsequently reassessed.

delivery of an unquoted equity instrument whose fair value 
cannot be reliably measured, are measured at fair value.

IFRS 9 incorporates the guidance in IAS 39 dealing with fair value 
measurement and accounting for derivatives embedded in a host 
contract that is not a financial asset, as well as the requirements of 
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 
1 January 2015.

The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time in 
the 2015 financial statements and the standard will be applied 
retrospectively, subject to transitional provisions.

The impact of this standard has not yet been estimated as the 
standard is not yet finalised.
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2. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000 R000 R000

2.1 Net carrying value
Historical cost  11 188 875  11 201 384  11 188 875  11 201 384 
Revaluation surplus  8 285 167  7 054 049  8 285 167  7 054 049 
Development property  (1 187 000)  (990 000)  (1 187 000)  (990 000)
Assets classified as held-for-sale  (130 000)  (130 000)

 18 287 042  17 135 433  18 287 042  17 135 433 
2.2 Movement for the year
Investment property at valuation 1 January  17 135 433  16 957 678  17 135 433  16 957 678 
Capital expenditure  160 193  109 721  160 193  109 721 
Change in fair value  1 198 105  1 137 924  1 198 105  1 137 924 
Disposals  (70 125)  (70 125)
Interest capitalised  6 190  13 443  6 190  13 443 
Straight-line rental income accrual  (15 879)  (9 208)  (15 879)  (9 208)
Development property  (197 000)  (874 000)  (197 000)  (874 000)
Transfer to non-current assets held-for-sale  (130 000)  (130 000)
Investment property at valuation  18 287 042  17 135 433  18 287 042  17 135 433 
2.3 Reconciliation to independent valuation
Investment property at valuation at year-end  18 287 042  17 135 433  18 287 042  17 135 433 
Straight-line rental income accrual  308 686  292 807  308 686  292 807 
Building appurtenances and tenant installations  63 065  55 356  62 899  55 206 
Centre management assets  (3 297)  (3 566)  (3 131)  (3 416)
Independent valuation(1)  18 655 496  17 480 030  18 655 496  17 480 030 
Capitalisation rate used to determine interest capitalised 7,6% 7,6% 7,6% 7,6%

(1) Excludes development property

Included in Investment property is property under leasehold in respect of Willowbridge North. The lessor is Transnet Ltd and the lease term runs untill 30 June 2033.

2.4 Investment property pledged as security

The following properties have been pledged as security by means of mortgage bonds (refer to note 18):    

To The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited to secure borrowing facilities totaling R450 million and to Standard Finance (Isle of Man) Limited to secure borrowing 
facilities of USD 40 million.    

1. A 75,15% undivided share in Erf 50 Gleneagles Extension 2 (The Glen)
2.  A 40% undivided share in Erf 5958 Montague Gardens, City of Cape Town (Canal Walk)

The market value of the bonded properties (75.15% and 40% respectively) at year-end was R4,67 billion. 

To Rand Merchant Bank (A division of FirstRand Bank Limited) to secure borrowing facilities totaling R1.1 billion.  

1.  A 40% undivided share in Erf 5958 Montague Gardens, City of Cape Town (Canal Walk)

The market value of the bonded property (40% thereof) at year-end was R2,81 billion.

To Nedbank Limited to secure borrowing facilities totaling R2,75 billion.

1. Erven 17792, 17793, 17052, 17053, 17054, 17055, 17056, Brackenfell Cape Town; Remainder of Ptn 130 (Ptn of Ptn 129) of the Farm Langeberg No. 311 (CapeGate)
2. Erf 3772, Faerie Glen, Ext 15 (Atterbury Value Mart)
3.   Erf 1590 Pretoriuspark Ext 5 & Erf 1591 Pretoriuspark Ext 22; Erf 1709 Pretoriuspark Ext 23 & Erf 1712 Pretoriuspark Ext 35; Portions 498 of the Farm Garsfontein 374 JR 

(Woodlands Boulevard)
4. Erf 929 Strubensvallei Ext 12 (Clearwater Mall)
5. Erf 38722, Bellville (Willowbridge South)

The market value of these properties at year-end was R8,2 billion.
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3.

2.5 Investment property valuation

It is the policy of the group to obtain an independent valuation of the investment property portfolio on a six monthly basis. Investment property is reflected at fair value at 30 
June 2013.

The portfolio was valued at R19.8 billion at 30 June 2013, excluding minority interests, by the Valuation Division of Old Mutual Investment Group South Africa led by Trevor King 
(BSc DipSurv MRICS, Valuer), Professional Registered Valuer (SA), member of the South African Council for the Valuers Profession, Chartered Valuation Surveyor and Associate of 
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (UK), using the Discounted Cash Flow method. The directors confirm that there have been no material changes to the assumptions 
applied by the registered valuer. The average annualised resultant portfolio yield produced by the Valuer was 7,1%. The average annualised resultant yield range across all 
properties was 6.6% to 9.9%. 

The group’s investment properties as at 30 June 2013 and related information have been ranked as per the fair value hierarchy below. Details of the fair value hierarchy are set out 
in note 36.  

Fair value as at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 30 June 2013

R000 R000 R000 R000
Investment property at valuation  18 287 042  18 287 042

BUILDING APPURTENANCES AND TENANT INSTALLATIONS

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000

3.1 Cost

Building appurtenances  74 520  62 340  74 137  62 026 
Tenant installations  70 116  67 478  70 116  67 478 

 144 636  129 818  144 253  129 504 
3.2 Accumulated depreciation
Building appurtenances  40 211  36 989  39 994  36 825 
Tenant installations  41 360  37 473  41 360  37 473 

 81 571  74 462  81 354  74 298 
3.3 Net carrying value
Building appurtenances  34 309  25 351  34 143  25 201 
Tenant installations  28 756  30 005  28 756  30 005 

 63 065  55 356  62 899  55 206 
3.4 Movement for the period
Net carrying value 1 January  55 356  35 873  55 206  35 647 
Capital expenditure  14 819  34 650  14 749  34 602 
Classified as held-for-sale  (3 012)  (3 012)
Depreciation  (7 110)  (12 155)  (7 056)  (12 031)
Net carrying value  63 065  55 356  62 899  55 206 
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GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 
2013

DECEMBER 
2012

JUNE 
2013

DECEMBER 
2012

NOTE R000 R000 R000 R000
Non-current financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Fair value at year-end

 Sycom Property Fund  2 282 095  2 282 095 
Balance at end of period  2 282 095  2 282 095 
Movement for the period

 Balance at beginning of period  2 282 095  2 176 173  2 282 095  2 176 173 
 Disposals - Acucap and Vunani units  (209 337)  (209 337)
 Change in fair value  (2 842)  315 259  (2 842)  315 259 
 Transfer to asset held-for-sale  (2 279 253)  (2 279 253)

Balance at end of period  2 282 095  2 282 095 
Hyprop's % interest: number of units held Stock Exchange  % held  % held  % held  % held 
Sycom Property Fund - Units held: 84 225 688 (2012: 84 225 688) JSE  29,9  33,9  29,9  33,9 

The investment in Sycom has been accounted for as an investment rather than equity accounted, since Hyprop does not exercise significant influence over Sycom. In particular, 
Hyprop does not have representation on the board of Sycom and does not participate in any policy-making decisions on behalf of Sycom.

The fair value of Sycom is based on the closing price on the JSE at 30 June 2013, less an accrual for distribution, which is included in receivables. Hyprop's interest in Sycom reduced 
from 33.9% to 29.9% during the period due to a Sycom rights offer in which Hyprop did not follow its rights.

Hyprop had pledged 75 328 391 Sycom units as security against a loan facility provided by Rand Merchant Bank (“RMB”). Subsequent to the Somerset Mall transaction, RMB 
released the pledged Sycom units. Refer to notes 13 and 18.

The investment in Sycom has been reclassified to non-current assets as held-for-sale. Refer to note 13.

4. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS 
(LISTED PROPERTY SECURITIES)
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GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 
2013

DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 
2013

DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000
Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited
The company acquired 100% of the issued capital in Hyprop Investments 
(Mauritius) Limited for 1 USD. Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited holds 
a 37,5% interest in Atterbury Africa. Refer to note 7.
Word4Word Marketing Proprietary Limited - marketing services company
Cost allocated to Word4Word  29 566  30 000
Impairment of subsidiary  (17 507)  (17 507)
Adjustment to purchase price   (434) 
Balance after impairment  12 059  12 059
Attfund Retail Limited - dormant subsidiary
On 1 September 2011, the company undertook a group restructure in terms of 
section 47 of the Income Tax act whereby all the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of 
Attfund Retail Limited were ceded and assigned to Hyprop.

  

Total investment in subsidiaries  12 059  12 059

The group tests goodwill annually for impairments. No impairment was recognised in the current financial period. Refer to note 9.

5. SUBSIDIARIES
5.1 Investment in subsidiaries

Details of the group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
 PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP INTEREST AND 

VOTING POWER HELD BY THE GROUP 

Name of subsidiary Principal activity
Place of incorporation 
and operation 30 June 2013 31 December 2012 

Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited Acquiring or developing 
retail, commercial and 
mixed-use properties 
in Africa

Mauritius 100%  100%

Word4Word Marketing Proprietary Limited Marketing services South Africa 100% 100%
Attfund Retail Limited Dormant company South Africa 100% 100%

5.3 Loan to subsidiaries

Capital gains taxation was payable on the sale during 2011 of Attfund Retail's 25% interest in Centurion Mall to Fountainhead Property Trust. The capital gains taxation was 
funded by Hyprop, which resulted in a debit loan in Hyprop and a credit loan in Attfund Retail. Attfund Retail is a dormant company and will be deregistered in due course. 
Therefore the loan was impaired through the company statement of comprehensive income during 2012.

Impairment of loan to subsidiary 67 285

5.2 Dividends received from subsidiaries

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 
2013

DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 
2013

DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000
Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited  1 434 

Word4Word Marketing Proprietary Limited  700 

Total dividends received  2 134 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

74    INTEGRATED REPORT 2013



JOINT OPERATIONS
The following is a summary of Hyprop’s undivided share in co-owned shopping centres at year-end:

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000
Canal Walk - 80%

Carrying value of investment property  5 627 200  5 200 000  5 627 200  5 200 000 
Current assets  212  5 535  212  5 535 
Current liabilities  50 725  51 796  50 725  51 796 
Net property income
Investment property income  244 917  460 729  244 917  460 729 
Expenses  (66 519)  (130 867)  (66 519)  (130 867)
Net property income  178 398  329 862  178 398  329 862 

The Glen - 75,15%
Carrying value of investment property  1 854 094  1 751 130  1 854 094  1 751 130 
Current assets  8 857  9 096  8 857  9 096 
Current liabilities  23 027  24 445  23 027  24 445 
Net property income
Investment property income  99 038  190 940  99 038  190 940 
Expenses  (35 436)  (67 375)  (35 436)  (67 375)
Net property income  63 602  123 565  63 602  123 565 

Stoneridge - 90%
Carrying value of investment property  421 200  432 900  421 200  432 900 
Current assets  1 969  2 218  1 969  2 218 
Current liabilities  41 861  33 144  41 861  33 144 
Net property income
Investment property income  32 096  62 567  32 096  62 567 
Expenses  (16 926)  (35 086)  (16 926)  (35 086)
Net property income  15 170  27 481  15 170  27 481 

Southcoast - 50%(1)

Carrying value of investment property
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net property income
Investment property income  12 346  12 346 
Expenses  (6 059)  (6 059)
Net property income  6 287  6 287 

(1) Hyprop’s 50% undivided share in Southcoast Mall was sold in July 2012.

6.
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JOINT VENTURE - ATTERBURY AFRICA
Hyprop’s wholly owned subsidiary, Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited, has a 37,5% interest in Atterbury Africa, a Mauritian based property investment company.  
The investment was made on 20 November 2012. Hyprop has 50% of the voting rights on the board of Atterbury Africa. Hyprop accordingly has joint control of   
Atterbury Africa.

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000
Initial investment in equity  #  # 
Share in equity accounted results  ^  ^ 

# Less than R 1000
^ Nil

As at 30 June 2013, Hyprop Mauritius’ 37,5% share of Atterbury Africa’s liabilities exceeded its assets, by R6,9 million (2012: R8,6 million).

Summarised financial information of the group’s 37,5% share in Atterbury Africa is as follows (all figures are disclosed at the group’s effective 37,5% share):

Summarised statements of comprehensive income
Share of profits of associates  8 431  664 
Other income  58 
Administrative expenses  (2 369)  (3 060)
Finance cost  (4 710)  (3 918)
Fair value gain on investment property  1 640 
Impairment  (3 400)
Profit / (loss) before taxation  1 352  (8 016)
Taxation  202  (191)

Profit / (loss) for the period  1 554  (8 207)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company  2 233  (8 697)
Non-controlling interests  (680)  489 
Summarised statements of financial position
Assets
Non-current assets  201 280  89 234 

Investment property  102 772  23 686 
Investment in associates  70 203  54 306 
Loan receivable  28 302  11 239 
Property, plant and equipment  3  3 

Current assets  18 953  19 002 
Total Assets  220 233  108 236 
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves  209 682  93 427 

Shareholders' deficit  (6 886)  (8 697)
Non-controlling interest  28 136  10 662 
Foreign currency translation reserve  162  226 
Borrowings  188 270  91 236 

Current liabilities  10 551  14 809 
Total equity and liabilities  220 233  108 236 

7.
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8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
Details of the group’s associates at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

 PROPORTION OF OWNERSHIP INTEREST AND 
VOTING POWER HELD BY THE GROUP 

Name of associate Principle activity
 Place of incorporation 
and operation  30 June 2013  31 December 2012 

Mantrablox Proprietary Limited(1) Property Investment 
company 

 South Africa 20% 20%

It's Called Advertising Proprietary Limited(2) Graphic design and 
advertising company 

 South Africa 40% 40%

(1) Mantrablox owns 100% of Garden Route Mall. The remaining 80% of Mantrablox is owned by Atterbury Investments Holdings Limited.
(2) 40% of It’s called Advertising Proprietary Limited is owned by Word4Word Marketing Proprietary Limited. Word4Word Marketing Proprietary Limited is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Hyprop. Refer to note 5.

Summarised financial information of the group’s associates is set out below:
Reconciliation to the statements of financial position:

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000
Mantrablox Proprietary Limited(3)

Total assets  1 054 935  1 005 019 
Total liabilities  1 035 088  1 023 917 
Net assets/(liabilities)  19 847  (18 898)
Group's share of net assets of Mantrablox Proprietary Limited  3 969  ^ 
It's called Advertising Proprietary Limited
Total assets  1 553  1 200 
Total liabilities  1 283  698 
Net assets  270  502 
Group's share of net assets of It's called Advertising Proprietary Limited  108  203 
Group's share of net assets of associates  4 077  203 
Loan advanced (Mantrablox Proprietary Limited)  117 600  117 600 
Transfer to non-current asset held-for-sale  (121 569)
Investment in associates  108  117 803 

^ Nil

Reconciliation to the statements of comprehensive income:
Mantrablox Proprietary Limited(3)

Total revenue  55 585  120 819 
Total profit/(loss) for the period  38 649  (35 027)
Group's share of profits of Mantrablox Proprietary Limited  3 969  NIL 
It’s called Advertising Proprietary Limited
Total revenue  1 744  3 326 
Total profit for the period  334  360 
Group's share of profits of It's called Advertising Proprietary Limited  293  144 
Group's share of profits  4 262  144 

(3)  In terms of the Mantrablox Shareholders agreement, Hyprop effectively only earns interest on a loan to Mantrablox. Hyprop will share in any upward revaluations 
of Garden Route Mall in the event that Atterbury Investments Holdings Limited purchases Hyprop’s interest in Mantrablox.
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9. GOODWILL
GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000 R000 R000

Goodwill arising on acquisition
Word4Word Marketing Proprietary Limited  12 059  12 059 
Impairment - -

Balance  12 059  12 059 

The group tests goodwill annually for impairments. In the current year, it was determined that the recoverable amount was greater than the carrying amount and therefore no 
impairment was recognised. 

The valuation of Word4Word Marketing Proprietary Limited was determined using the discounted cashflow method over 5 years and was based on the following key assumptions:

 - Budgets and forecasts prepared by management of Word4Word;
 - Income and expenses were increased by an average rate of 7% per annum;
 - Future cash flows were discounted at 18% (2012:18%) which is a comparable rate for companies of this nature.   

The determination of the fair value of goodwill was based on its value in use. Refer to note 5.
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10.

11.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000
Portion 113 Weltevreden Proprietary Limited, a company associated with Abland 
Proprietary Limited (“Abland”)  47 398  47 434  47 398  47 434
The above loan is repayable on 23 September 2013, bears interest at a rate linked to the 
three month JIBAR rate, interest is payable monthly in arrears.

    

The loan was advanced to Abland in 2008 to facilitate the acquisition by Abland of its 
10% interest in Stoneridge. Subsequent to year-end, Hyprop agreed to extend the loan 
for one year, to September 2014.
Mantrablox Proprietary Limited  117 600  117 600
The loan was advanced to Mantrablox Proprietary Limited, which is 80% owned by 
Atterbury Investment Holdings Proprietary Limited, on 1 September 2011, to facilitate 
the sale of Garden Route Mall by Attfund Retail to Mantrablox Proprietary Limited. At 
year-end Hyprop owned 20% of the issued shares in Mantrablox Proprietary Limited.
Atterbury Investments Holdings Ltd has a call option to purchase Hyprop’s 20% share 
in Mantrablox Proprietary Limited from Hyprop within 6 months of 1 September 2013. 
The loan is repayable when the option is excercised and bears interest at 8,5%, payable 
monthly in arrears.
Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited - wholly owned subsidiary of Hyprop  188  188
The loan is unsecured, bears no interest and is repayable on demand.
Atterbury Africa Limited - Rand equivalent of US Dollar loan  336 909  1 1 1  109
The loan repayment date is 30 June 2020 and represents Hyprop’s shareholder loan 
funding to Atterbury Africa. 
The loan is secured and bears interest at an initial rate of 8%, escalating at 4% per annum.
Hyprop investments (Mauritius) Limited has a 37,5% equity interest in Atterbury Africa.

 384 307  158 543  165 186  165 222
Reconciliation to the statements of financial position
Long term loan receivable  384 307  1 1 1  109  47 586  117 788
Short term loan receivable  47 434  117 600  47 434 
Total  384 307  158 543  165 186  165 222

Rent receivable  19 213  24 618  19 213  24 618 
Allowance for doubtful debts  (8 974)  (10 239)  (8 974)  (10 239)
Listed property securities - accrued distribution  113 262  38 323  113 262  38 323 
Other receivables  100 674  130 354  95 792  127 798 

 224 175  183 056  219 293  180 500 
Ageing of receivables past due but not impaired
30 days  1 796  1 990  1 796  1 990 
60 days  1 446  794  1 446  794 
90 + days  1 160  144  1 160  144 
Total  4 402  2 928  4 402  2 928 
Ageing of impaired receivables
30 days  1 618  1 704  1 618  1 704 
60 days  828  1 317  828  1 317 
90 + days  1 867  4 980  1 867  4 980 

 4 313  8 001  4 313  8 001 

No interest is charged on trade receivables for the first 7 days from the date of the invoice. Thereafter interest is charged at prime plus 2%. The allowance for doubtful debts 
has been determined on a tenant by tenant basis, taking into account the circumstances of each tenant. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair 
value of each class of receivable. A deposit or bank guarantee together with a surety from the legal entity/person who signs the lease agreement, is taken as security for tenant arrears.
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12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000 R000 R000

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash  74 821  167 874  70 625  162 074 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE
GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000 R000 R000

Sycom Property Fund  2 279 253  2 279 253 
Hyprop currently owns 84 225 688 Sycom units (2012: 84 225 688), being 29.9% of the 
Sycom units in issue. Refer to note 4.

During March 2013 Hyprop and Sycom Property Fund Managers Limited (SPFM) entered 
into an agreement whereby Hyprop will acquire 100% of Somerset Mall from Sycom for 
a purchase consideration of R 2.3 billion. 
The purchase consideration will be discharged by Hyprop transferring to SPFM 
81 500 000 Sycom units. ("The Somerset Mall transaction")

Hyprop will dispose of the remainder of its Sycom units within a period of 
150 days after the effective date of the Somerset Mall aquisition. 

The Sycom units owned by Hyprop are reflected at fair value, which is based on the 
closing price on the JSE at 30 June 2013, less an accrual for distribution, which 
is included in receivables.

Investment in associate - Mantrablox  121 569
Atterbury Investment Holdings Limited (Atterbury) has a call option to purchase 
Hyprop's 20% share in Mantrablox. Atterbury has indicated that it will exercise it's 
option to acquire Hyprop's 20% interest.  Refer to note 10.

 

Southern Sun Hydepark
Effective 31 August 2012, Hyprop entered into a sale agreement with Southern 
Sun Hotel Interests Proprietary Limited ("Southern Sun") to dispose of Southern Sun 
Hydepark ("the hotel").
The hotel was valued by the directors at R130m at 31 December 2012, being the same as 
the sale price to Southern Sun. 

The transfer of the hotel was completed during May 2013.
The assets and liabilities of Southern Sun Hydepark were reflected at 31 December 2012 
at the lower of fair value less cost to sell or the carrying amount:

Assets  140 692  140 692 
Investment property and building appurtenances  133 011  133 011 
Trade and other receivables  3 183  3 183 
Cash and cash equivalents  4 498  4 498 

Liabilities  9 618  9 618 
Trade and other payables  9 618  9 618 

Classified as held-for-sale on the statements of financial position  2 400 822  131 074  2 279 253  131 074 

13.
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14.

16.

SHARE CAPITAL
GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000 R000 R000

Authorised
500 000 000 no par value ordinary shares (2012: 500 000 000)

Issued
243 113 169 no par value ordinary shares (2012: 243 113 169)  1 661  1 661  1 661  1 661 

Each share is irrevocably linked to one debenture, together comprising one combined unit. Refer to note 17.

On initial recognition the ‘fair value’ portion of the equity instrument is allocated to share capital. However, since 100% of the distribution attributable to the combined unit is 
paid to unit holders as interest on debentures (no dividends are paid on the share component of the combined unit), the income stream attributable to the share is zero and 
therefore no value is attributed to the share on initial recognition. 

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE
The foreign currency translation reserve arose from the conversion of Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) from its functional currency, US Dollars, to South African Rand on 
consolidation. Refer to note 5.

Opening balance (6)
Movement 319
Closing balance  313  (6)
The closing exchange rate at 30 June 2013 was R9,87:USD 1 
(31 December 2012: R8,49:USD 1)

NON-DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Revaluation of: investment property  9 158 164  5 290 907  8 603 052  5 290 907 
 listed property securities  699 025  575 013  699 025  575 013 
 derivative instruments  (13 127)  (237 464)  (13 127)  (237 464)
Realised surplus on disposal of: investment properties  134 953  134 863  134 953  134 863 
 listed property securities  107 761  107 761  107 761  107 761 
Amortised debenture premium  1 153 342  1 104 224  1 153 342  1 104 224 
Non-distributable reserves of associate  125 344  121 374  121 375  121 374 
Impairment of Goodwill  (547 654)  (547 654)  25 400  25 400 
Impairment of investment in subsidiary (Word4Word Marketing Proprietary Limited)  (17 507)  (17 507)

10 817 808  6 549 024  10 814 274  7 104 571 

15.
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17. DEBENTURES AND DEBENTURE PREMIUM
GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000 R000 R000

Issued:
243 113 169 (2012: 243 113 169) unsecured unsubordinated variable rate debentures of 493 
cents each  1 198 548  1 198 548  1 198 548  1 198 548 
Premium on debentures  4 623 949  4 673 068  4 623 949  4 673 068 
 - Upon issue of combined units  5 777 292  5 777 292  5 777 292  5 777 292 
 - Debenture premium amortised  (1 153 343)  (1 104 224)  (1 153 343)  (1 104 224)

 5 822 497  5 871 616  5 822 497  5 871 616 
Movement for the period:

Balance at beginning of period  5 871 616  6 359 541  5 871 616  6 359 541 
Current period premium amortisation  (49 119)  (487 925)  (49 119)  (487 925)
Balance at end of period  5 822 497  5 871 616  5 822 497  5 871 616 

The debentures are irrevocably linked to the ordinary shares of the company and can only be traded together with the shares.

In terms of the Hyprop Debenture Trust Deed, interest on the debentures is calculated in accordance with a distributable earnings formula.

Interest payable on the debentures is determined in arrears once the distributable earnings have been determined in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed. In aggregate, not 
less than 100% of distributable earnings must be distributed to debenture holders through the payment of debenture interest. The board, in terms of the Debenture Trust Deed, is 
permitted to exercise its discretion to round any fraction of a cent in distributable earnings per combined unit down to the nearest whole cent. Debenture interest is paid to unit 
holders within 3 months of the expiry of a financial period.

The right of redemption of the debentures may be exercised only by special resolution of the debenture holders passed within 90 days after 25 January 2023 or every 10th 
anniversary thereafter. 

The debentures are redeemable at their par value on the last Friday in December of the fith year after which the debenture special resolution is passed. 

The debenture premium is measured at amortised cost based on the remaining period to redemption. A risk free bond rate (based on the R186 Government bond of 7,87%) is 
used and adjusted for risk factors applicable to the company. 

The Hyprop Debenture Trust Deed is available for inspection by combined unitholders or their duly authorised agents at the registered office of the company. 
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18. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Rand bank facilities:

Facility 

 R000 

Secured by 
investment 

property and 
other assets at 

fair value

Refer to note 2

Capital 
repayment 

date Interest rate

GROUP
JUNE 2013

R000

GROUP
DECEMBER 

2012
R000

COMPANY
JUNE 2013

R000

COMPANY
DECEMBER 

2012 
R000

Nedbank
R2,3 billion of the Nedbank loans are fixed at an average rate 
of 8,7% and have an average maturity of 4,3 years. 

R8,2 billion
 903 642 (investment 

property)
 April 2015 Prime - 1,8%  722 913  722 914  722 913  722 914 

 1 203 935  Aug 2016 Prime - 1,8%  655 087  655 086  655 087  655 086 
 1 540 304  June 2018 Prime - 1,8%  1 375 914  1 334 159  1 375 914  1 334 159 

Rand Merchant Bank (a division of FirstRand Bank Limited)
Fixed for the full term at an average rate of 10,1%.  200 000 R2,1 billion

(75 328 391 
Sycom units)(1)

Sep 2014 Jibar + 1,75%  200 000  200 000  200 000  200 000 

Fixed for the full term at 8,1%. Sep 2016 Jibar + 1,60%  200 000  200 000 
Floating 810 000 R2,8 billion 

(investment 
property)

Sep 2016 Jibar + 1,60% 448 000 448 000

Standard Bank of South Africa Limited

The drawn-down amount of R450 million is fixed for the full 
term at 9,4%.

R4,7 billion 
(investment 

property)

Base rate + 
1,60%

  

 
500 000 Oct 2013 450 000 #

 
450 000 #

 
450 000 #

 
450 000 #

US Dollar bank facilities
RMB
The drawn-down amount of R76,2 million (US$ 7,7 million)
is fixed for the full term at 4,3%  US$ 30 

million
May 2018 Libor + 3,2%  76 151

Standard Finance (Isle of Man) Limited  
The drawn-down amount of R256,4 million (US$ 26 million)
is fixed for the full term an an average rate of 4,2%. US$ 40 

million
Oct 2017

Libor + 
liquidity cost 

+ 1,2%

 
256 421

 
1 10 876

Debt Capital Markets funding:
Corporate Bonds
5 year bond - fixed for the full term at 7,3%.
5 year bond - fixed at an average rate of 7.7% and an average 
maturity of 4.1 years.
3 year bond(2)

Sep 2017

May 2018
July 2015

Jibar + 1,50%

Jibar + 1,45%
Jibar + 1,34%

 300 000
 

 450 000
 400 000 

 300 000 

 400 000 

 300 000 

 450 000 
 400 000 

 300 000 

 400 000 
Commercial paper
3 month commercial paper(2)

3 month commercial paper
July 2013
Aug 2013

 Jibar + 0,19%
Jibar + 0,19%

 
300 000 # 
198 000 #

 
300 000 #

 
300 000 # 
 198 000 #

 
300 000 # 

Total interest-bearing borrowings 5 384 486  5 121 035  5 051 914  5 010 159 
Reconciliation to the statements of financial position:
Long term loans 4 436 486 4 371 035 4 103 914 4 260 159
Short term loans  948 000  815 000  948 000  815 000 
 # Short-term portion of interest-bearing borrowings  948 000  750 000  948 000  750 000 
 Southern Sun Hotel Interest Proprietary Limited(3)  65 000  65 000 

Total interest-bearing borrowings  5 384 486  5 186 035  5 051 914  5 075 159 
 
(1)The Sycom units pledged as security to RMB were released on 11 July 2013.  
(2) The 3 year bond and the commercial paper are fixed at an average rate of 9,0% and have an average maturity of 3,7 years.
(3)  This loan represented an advance payment in respect of the sale price for Southern Sun Hyde Park. The loan was interest free and was off-set against the sale 

price of R130 million on the transfer date. Refer to note 13.      

}
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19. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
Derivative instruments comprise fixed interest rate agreements and interest rate swaps.

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000

Opening balance as at 1 January  237 464  67 394  237 464  67 394 
Fair value adjustment  (224 337)  170 070  (224 337)  170 070 
Closing balance  13 127  237 464  13 127  237 464 

The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited:
Assets:
Long term Interest rate swap  15 988  15 988 

Liabilities:
Long term Interest rate swap  16 973  61 476  16 973  61 476 
Short term Fixed interest rate agreement  32 945  32 945 

Rand Merchant Bank
Assets:
Long term Interest rate swap  23 869  23 869 

Liabilities:
Long term Interest rate swap  1 771  9 120  1 771  9 120 

Nedbank Limited:
Liabilities:
Long term Interest rate swap  34 240  133 923  34 240  133 923

 13 127  237 464  13 127  237 464
    

Reconciliation to the statements of financial position
Non-current assets  39 857  39 857
Non-current liabilities  52 984  204 519  52 984  204 519
Current liabilities   32 945   32 945 

 13 127  237 464  13 127  237 464 

Valuation of the derivative instruments was determined by discounting the future cash flows using the JIBAR swap curve.

The designation of such instruments has been further disclosed in note 36.  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
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20. DEFERRED TAXATION
GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000 R000 R000

Arising on:
Tenant installations and building appurtenances  110 113  116 724  110 113  116 724 
Taxation loss  (76 134)  (70 711)  (76 134)  (70 711)
Income received in advance  (10 964)  (16 482)  (10 964)  (16 482)
Other temporary differences  6 995  11 492  7 250  11 706 
Change in fair value of:  investment property  2 021 082  2 021 082 
 listed property securities  126 854  126 854 
Straight-line rental income accrual  81 986  81 986 

 30 010  2 270 945  30 265  2 271 159 
Reconciliation of the movement in the deferred taxation liability:
Opening balance 1 January  2 270 945  1 520 651  2 271 159  1 520 449 
Change in fair value of:  investment property(1)  (2 021 082)  211 133  (2 021 082)  211 133 
 listed property securities(1)  (126 854)  48 716  (126 854)  48 716 
Tenant installations and building appurtenances  (6 611)  26 088  (6 611)  26 088 
Taxation loss  (5 424)  (8 883)  (5 424)  (8 883)
Straight-line rental income accrual  (81 986)  2 579  (81 986)  2 579 
Income received in advance  5 518  (4 431)  5 518  (4 431)
Other temporary differences  (4 496)  4 488  (4 455)  4 904 
Change in taxation rate  470 604  470 604 
Closing balance  30 010  2 270 945  30 265  2 271 159 

(1) Hyprop converted to a REIT from 1 July 2013. Refer to note 37. South African REITs are not subject to capital gains taxation. Therefore, 100% of deferred capital 
gains taxation was eliminated through the statement of comprehensive income at year-end. Deferred taxation on other timing differences was calculated at 28% 
(December 2012: 28%). 
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21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000
Trade creditors and accrued expenses  155 209  154 044  155 209  147 181 
Tenant deposits  53 150  51 964  53 150  51 964 
Gift vouchers  2 327  2 629  2 327  2 629 
Interest payable  51 052  44 503  51 052  44 503 
Phantom scheme liability (refer to note 26)  1 277  8 259  1 277  8 259 
Debtors with credit balances  39 157  58 848  39 157  58 848 
Other payables  51 630  48 863  43 497  48 863 

 353 802  369 110  345 669  362 247 

INTEREST RECEIVED

From positive bank balances  3 101  6 904  3 101  6 254 
From loans receivable  14 133  15 276  6 573  15 276 

 17 234  22 180  9 674  21 530 

INTEREST PAID
On interest-bearing borrowings  215 147  440 450  211 453  440 108 
Interest capitalised  (6 190)  (13 443)  (6 190)  (13 443)

 208 957  427 007  205 263  426 665 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
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NET OPERATING INCOME
GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000 R000 R000

Net operating income is arrived at after accounting for the following:
Contingent rental income (turnover rental)  6 795  17 787  6 795  17 787 
Depreciation  7 110  12 155  7 056  12 032 
Consulting fee  450  450 

Key management remuneration
The following key management remuneration was paid/provided for during the period:
Salaries  12 560  22 187  12 560  22 187 
Bonuses (2013: provided for but not paid)  5 886  10 603  5 886  10 603 
Top 3 salaries plus bonus earned by employees other than directors were as follows: 
A 2 338 3 241 2 338 3 241
B 1 716 2 133 1 716 2 133
C 1 540 1 771 1 540 1 771
Directors’ remuneration

Independent non-executive  967 1 670  967 1 670 
Michael Aitken (Paid to Corovest Property Group Holdings Proprietary Limited, Retired 
June 2013)

 148  317  148  317 

Ethan Dube (Paid to Vunani Capital Proprietary Limited)  117  212  117  212 
Lindie Engelbrecht  189  339  189  339 
Jabulane Mabuza (Resigned June 2013)  92  85  92  85 
Gavin Tipper  169  219  169  219 
Louis van der Watt (Paid to Atterbury Property Holdings Ltd)  92  170  92  170 
Les Weil (Deceased June 2013)  160  328  160  328 

Non-executive  540 954  540 954
Kevin Ellerine  92  170  92  170 
Mike Lewin (Paid to Redefine Properties Limited)  112  191  112  191 
Louis Norval  92  175  92  175 
Stewart Shaw-Taylor (Paid to the Standard Bank of South Africa Limited)  132  222  132  222 
Marc Wainer (Paid to Redefine Properties Limited, Resigned June 2013)  112  196  112  196 

Executive  4 614  8 528  4 614  8 528 
Pieter Prinsloo (CEO)  2 688  4 800  2 688  4 800 
Basic salary  1 478  2 706  1 478  2 706 
Pension fund contributions  68  94  68  94 
Performance bonus (Paid in December)  2 000  2 000 
Incentive scheme  1 142  1 142 

Laurence Cohen (FD)  1 926  3 728  1 926  3 728 
Basic salary  847  1 651  847  1 651 
Pension fund contributions  146  149  146  149 
Performance bonus (Paid in December)  1 450  1 450 
Incentive scheme  933  478  933  478 

24.
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26.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000 R000 R000
Auditor’s remuneration - fees paid to external auditors for attest function
Audit fee - current year  1 250  1 635  1 230  1 635 

1 250 1 635 1 230 1 635

Other auditor’s remuneration 
Internal audit fees  331  417  331  417 
Other services  35 200 35 200

366 617 366 617

INCENTIVE SCHEME
The Hyprop board recognises that a key factor in the success of Hyprop is the retention and incentivisation of management and staff. Accordingly, a scheme was 
formulated to reward employees who make a meaningful and sustainable contribution to the financial performance of Hyprop by providing them with the opportunity to 
participate in its future growth. Senior Hyprop management and staff were offered this incentive.  

The incentive is directly linked to the performance of Hyprop’s combined units. Employees were granted ‘phantom’ Hyprop combined units at a notional strike price (“the initial 
price” (IP)). Employees receive an award equivalent to the increase in the market value of the Hyprop combined unit over the initial price. This award is paid in four payments 
within 30 days after the date on which the relevant payment is calculated. 

The payment is calculated as follows: 
Cash bonus = 1/4 AS x (P - IP) – relevant taxes 
AS = allocated ‘phantom’ units 
P = volume weighted average traded price of Hyprop combined units for the 30 JSE trading days prior to the calculation date
IP = initial price 

If the market price of the Hyprop combined unit on the relevant calculation date is not greater than the initial price, no payment is made. The award is only applicable if the 
employee is in the employ of Hyprop on the payment date. 473 979 ‘phantom’ Hyprop combined units were in issue at 30 June 2013 (December 2012: 1 276 923). 

Provision is made in June and December of each year, to ensure adequate provision for the coming year's 'phantom' scheme payment. The majority of the 'phantom' scheme 
(66%) expired in April 2013. Refer to note 21.

25.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

88    INTEGRATED REPORT 2013



27. TAXATION
GROUP GROUP COMPANY COMPANY

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012 JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000 R000 R000

Major components of the taxation expense:
Current taxation  (1 927)  (601)
Deferred taxation  2 240 935  (751 125)  2 240 894  (750 709)
Capital gains taxation  (1 443)
Tax for the period  2 239 008  (753 169)  2 240 894  (750 709)

No provision has been made for current taxation since the company has an assessed loss for taxation purposes.

Reconciliation of taxation charge
Net profit before taxation  419 115  491 933  417 719  472 340 
Permanent differences:

Amortisation of debenture premium  (13 753)  (136 619)  (13 753)  (136 619)
Fair value adjustment to: 
   Investment property  (331 023)  (105 557)

 
(331 023)  (105 557)

   Listed property securities  796  (29 483)  796  (29 483)
   Derivative instruments  (62 814)  47 620  (62 814)  47 620 
Capital (loss)/profit on disposal of: 
   Investment property

 
(25)

 
3 328 

 
(25)  3 328 

   Listed property securities  (7 832)  934  (7 832)  934 
Impairment of subsidiary loan  18 839 
Straight lining  (4 446)  (4 446)
Other permanent differences  (20 008)  1 073  (20 008)  1 073 

Prior year income tax adjustment  1 552  256 
Distribution accrual - Listed property securities  (2 142)  (2 142)
Adjustment to assessed loss  (2 574)  (2 574)
Capital gains taxation rate adjustment(¹)  (2 147 936)  (2 147 936)
Straight-line rental income adjustment  (81 986)  (81 986)
Change in taxation rate  470 604  470 604 
Capital gains taxation  10 414  13 789  10 414  12 346 
Adjustment in respect of Hyprop Investments (Mauritius)  (1 062)  7 
Taxation expense recognised in statements of comprehensive income  (2 239 008)  753 169  (2 240 894)  750 709 

The taxation rate applied in the reconciliations above was 28%.

(1)  Hyprop converted to a REIT from 1 July 2013. Refer to note 37. South African REITs are not subject to capital gains taxation therefore, 100% of deferred capital 
gains taxation was eliminated through the statement of comprehensive income at year-end.
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EARNINGS, HEADLINE EARNINGS AND DISTRIBUTABLE EARNINGS PER COMBINED UNIT
As at 30 June 2013, the company had 243 113 169 combined units in issue.

GROUP GROUP
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000
Reconciliation - earnings, headline earnings and distributable earnings
Total profit for the period  3 740 109  1 003 880 
Debenture interest  517 831  994 333 
Earnings  4 257 940  1 998 213 
Headline earnings adjustments  (3 296 367)  (915 940)

Change in fair value of investment property  (3 219 187)  (443 236)
Change in fair value before adjusting for deferred taxation  (1 198 105)  (1 137 924)
Deferred taxation  (2 021 082)  694 688 

(Profit)/Loss on disposal of investment property  (90)  11 886 
Profit on sale of Sycom rights offer nil paid letters  (27 971)
Amortisation of debenture premium  (49 119)  (487 925)
Loss on disposal of listed property securities  3 335 

Headline earnings  961 573  1 082 273 
Distributable earnings adjustments  (444 320)  (86 014)

Change in fair value of listed property securities  2 842  (259 238)
Change in fair value before adjusting for deferred taxation  2 842  (315 259)
Deferred taxation  56 021 

Change in fair value of derivative instruments  (224 337)  170 070 
Taxation  1 520  1 443 
Deferred taxation - listed property securities and other  (219 812)
Hyprop Investments (Mauritius)  (2 355)
Investment in associate - Mantrablox  (3 969)
Transaction costs - Attfund and Sycom  1 791  1 711 

Distributable earnings  517 253  996 259 
Total combined units in issue  243 113 169  243 113 169 
Weighted average combined units in issue - for earnings, headline earnings and distributable earnings  243 113 169  243 113 169 
Earnings, headline earnings and distributable earnings per combined unit  Cents  Cents 

Basic and diluted earnings per combined unit  1 751,4  821,9 
Basic and diluted headline earnings per combined unit  395,5  445,2 
Distributable earnings per combined unit  212,8  409,8 

28.
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NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
29.1 The following convention applies to figures other than adjustments:

Outflows of cash are represented by figures in brackets.
Inflows of cash are represented by figures without brackets.

 GROUP  GROUP  COMPANY COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012

 R000  R000  R000  R000 
29.2 Cash generated from operations

Net income before taxation  1 501 101  1 757 049  1 493 990  1 686 928 
Adjustments:  (783 984)  (344 735)  (778 363)  (276 282)

Change in fair value: Investment property  (1 198 105) (1 137 924)  (1 198 105)  (1 137 924)
 Listed property securities  2 842  (315 259)  2 842  (315 259)
 Derivative instruments  (224 337)  170 070  (224 337)  170 070 
Impairment of Intercompany loan  67 285 
(Profit) / loss on disposal of investment property  (90)  11 886  (90)  11 886 
(Profit) / loss on disposal of listed property securities  (27 971)  3 335  (27 971)  3 335 
Share of income from associate  (4 262)  (144)
Dividends received  (2 134)
Depreciation  7 110  12 547  7 056  12 424 
Interest received  (17 234)  (22 180)  (9 674)  (21 530)
Interest paid  208 957  427 007  205 263  426 665 
Debenture interest paid  517 831  994 333  517 831  994 333 
Amortisation of debenture premium  (49 119)  (487 925)  (49 119)  (487 925)
Other non-cash items  394  (481)  75  358 

Operating profit before working capital changes  717 117  1 412 314  715 627  1 410 646 
Decrease in working capital  (56 412)  66 286  (53 922)  67 985 

Increase in receivables  (41 105)  (63 809)  (37 344)  (61 990)
(Decrease) / Increase in payables  (15 307)  130 095  (16 578)  129 975 

Cash generated from operations  660 705  1 478 600  661 705  1 478 631 
29.3 Debenture interest paid to combined unitholders

Interest payable at the beginning of the period  (512 969)  (333 065)  (512 969)  (333 065)
Per statement of comprehensive income  (517 831)  (994 333)  (517 831)  (994 333)
Interest payable at the end of the period  517 831  512 969  517 831  512 969 

 (512 969)  (814 429)  (512 969)  (814 429)
29.4 Taxation paid

Taxation payable at the beginning of the period  3 980  70 003 
Per statement of comprehensive income  1 927  2 044 
Taxation payable at the end of the period  (5 923)  (3 980)

 (16)  68 067 
29.5 Dividends received

Per statement of comprehensive income   2 134
Dividends receivable at the end of the period (1 434)

 700

29.
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COMMITMENTS
GROUP AND GROUP AND

COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000
30.1 Capital commitments

Approved and committed  603 426  921 520 
Approved but not yet committed  82 887  115 566 

 686 313  1 037 086 
Capital commitments approved and committed comprise the following:
Development costs

 - Rosebank Mall  565 348  917 348 
 - Canal Walk  27 063 
 - Hyde Park  4 300 
 - The Glen  6 715 
 - Rosebank Mall Offices  2 781 
 - Clearwater  1 391 

 603 426  921 520 
Capital commitments approved but not yet committed  82 887  115 566 

The above expenditure will be financed out of available cash resources, banking facilities and debt capital market funding.

30.2 Operating expense commitments
Hyprop has entered into various service contracts for the cleaning, upkeep and general maintenance of its investment 
property portfolio.
Operating expense commitments payable to service providers in future years have been classified as follows:

- short-term contracts (up to one year )  12 736  7 848 
- medium-term contracts (greater than one year and up to five years ) NIL NIL 

MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE
Minimum lease payments comprise contractual rental income and operating expense recoveries from investment property.
The minimum lease payments receivable from tenants have been classified into the following categories:

- short-term (up to one year)  1 345 541  1 150 180 
- medium-term (greater than one year and up to five years)  2 680 104  2 394 475 
- long-term (greater than five years)  845 365  830 600 

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
All eligible employees are members of the Hyprop Investments Limited Pension Fund. The retirement funding and risk related benefits are market related. All benefits from the 
pension fund accrue to the members. 

The pension fund complies with all current legislation. The company has no commitment for post-retirement medical aid benefits. 
R4 140 986 (2012: R7 415 656) was contributed to the pension fund during the period for group risk benefits and recognised as an expense.

30.

31.

32.
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties with whom the group transacted during the period were:

GROUP AND GROUP AND
COMPANY COMPANY
JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012

R000 R000
The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited

Rental income received  10 513  22 647 
Expenditure comprising: Interest on borrowings  53 287  110 870 
Long-term loans payable  1 168 616  1 167 539 
Guarantee Fees Paid - Atterbury Africa Funding  1 202  675 
Fees paid - DCM Programme  38  524 

Relationship: Directorial
Mantrablox Proprietary Limited

Loan receivable  117 600  117 600 
Interest received  4 957  10 023 

Relationship: Directorial
Atterbury Africa Limited
Co-investor with Hyprop

Loan receivable  336 909  111 109 
Interest received  7 560  649 

Relationship: Directorial
Ellerine Bros Proprietary Limited

Rental income received - Stuttafords Branches  12 700  22 730 
Relationship: Directorial
Fledge Capital Proprietary Limited

Rental income received - Dischem Pharmacies  11 985  20 919 
Rental income received - Maneki  487  843 

Relationship: Directorial
Tholo Investments Proprietary Limited

Rental income received - Cappuccino's  1 264  1 927 
Rental income received - Mugg & Bean  763  1 504 

Relationship: Directorial
Southern Sun Hotel Interest (Proprietary) Limited

Sale of Southern Sun Hyde Park  130 000 
Short-term loan payable - advance payment on the sale price made by Southern Sun  65 000 

Relationship: Directorial
Redefine Properties Limited  

Sales of 50% interest In Southcoast Mall  110 500
Relationship: Directorial
Arcotospark Proprietary Limited

Purchase of bulk rights at CapeGate  25 000 
Relationship: Directorial
Parkdev Investments Proprietary Limited

Consulting Fees Paid  450 
Relationship: Directorial

All related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in similar arms length transactions.

33.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The group's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, loans from banks, receivables, fixed interest rate agreements, interest rate swaps, listed property securities, 
debentures, payables and a foreign currency investment. In respect of the abovementioned financial instruments, book values approximate fair value. Exposure to interest rate, 
credit, liquidity, market, price and currency risks occur in the normal course of business.

Interest rate risk

The group is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed 
and floating rate borrowings and by the use of fixed interest rate agreements and interest rate swaps.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis includes the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative instruments at the end of the financial year. 

For floating rate liabilities it is assumed that the liability outstanding at the end of the period was outstanding for the whole period. A 150 basis point increase or decrease in 
interest rate was used in the analysis.

If interest rates had increased/decreased by 150 basis points and all other variables were held constant, the group's profit for the period ended 30 June 2013 would increase/
decrease by R5.3 million (based on year end floating debt).

The group's sensitivity to interest rates has reduced during the current period due to an increase in the proportion of fixed debt to 87% of total debt (31 December 2012: 82%).

Fixed interest rate agreements and interest swaps

Refer to note 18 for further detail in respect of fixed interest rates.

The group's exposure to interest rate risk and interest rates on financial instruments at the reporting date was as follows:

Liquidity and interest rate risk table

Weighted average One to five years More than five years
Year ended 30 June 2013 effective interest rate One year or less Total

% R000 R000 R000 R000
Financial assets
Listed property securities - held for sale  2 279 253  2 279 253 
Derivative instruments  39 857  39 857 
Receivables  224 175  224 175 
Cash and cash equivalents  74 821  74 821 
Total financial assets  2 578 249  39 857  2 618 106 

Financial liabilities
Debenture capital  Variable  5 822 497  5 822 497 
Interest-bearing borrowings  8.1  948 000  4 436 486  5 384 486 
Payables  353 802  353 802 
Combined unitholders for distribution  Variable  517 831  517 831 
Derivative instruments  52 984  52 984 
Total financial liabilities  1 819 633  4 489 470  5 822 497  12 131 600 
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Weighted average One to five years More than five years
Year ended 31 December 2012 effective interest rate One year or less Total

% R000 R000 R000 R000
Financial assets
Listed property securities - non current  2 282 095  2 282 095 
Receivables  183 056  183 056 
Cash and cash equivalents  167 874  167 874 
Total financial assets  350 930  2 282 095  2 633 025 
Financial liabilities
Debenture capital  Variable  5 871 616  5 871 616 
Interest-bearing borrowings  8.4  815 000  4 371 035  5 186 035 
Payables  369 110  369 110 
Combined unitholders for distribution  Variable  512 969  512 969 
Derivative instruments  32 945  204 519  237 464 
Total financial liabilities  1 730 024  4 575 554  5 871 616  12 177 194 

Interest rates are monitored and appropriate steps taken to ensure that Hyprop's exposure to interest rate fluctuations is limited.
Interest rates have been fixed for periods ranging from 2013 to 2019 with an average maturity of 4.3 years. The average maturity of the fixed interest rate agreements and interest 
rate swaps is disclosed in note 18. The average rate of interest at year-end (applicable to total debt) was 8,1% (2012: 8,4%).

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the risk that a counterparty may default or not meet its obligations timeously. Credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets at the 
reporting date.

Receivables

Trade receivables consist of a large, wide-spread tenant base. The financial position of these tenants is monitored on an ongoing basis.
An allowance is made for all specific doubtful debts at year-end. Management does not consider there to be any material credit risk exposure
that is not already covered by a doubtful debt allowance. The carrying value of receivables is considered to be a reasonable approximation
of fair value.

Listed property securities

Listed property securities represents Hyprop's investment in Sycom. The value of this investment is monitored closely by management and the credit risk exposure is 
regarded as minimal.

Cash and cash equivalents

It is company policy to deposit short-term cash investments with reputable financial institutions.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will be unable to meet financial commitments. This risk is minimised by holding cash balances and by a floating loan facility. In addition, the 
company monitors liquidity risk by regularly monitoring forecast cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Price risk

The group is exposed to price risk due to its investment in listed property securities. Equity investments are held for strategic purposes and the group does not actively trade 
these instruments.

The exposure to price risk as at the end of the period is as follows:

JUNE 2013 DECEMBER 2012
R000 R000

Sycom Property Fund  2 279 253  2 282 095 
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In terms of Hyprops’ exposure to the Sycom unit price, a sensitivity analysis was conducted. Assuming a 5% fluctuation in Sycom's unit price, the fair value adjustment in the 
statement of comprehensive income (financial assets through profit and loss) will fluctuate by R114 million.

Foreign exchange risk      

The company operates beyond South African borders and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from an exposure to the US dollar.      
 
Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. Currently this exposure arises only through Hyprop's 37.5% interest in 
Atterbury Africa, via it's wholly owned subsidiary, Hyprop Investments (Mauritius) Limited.    

Currently, the company does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations. 

 JUNE 2013  DECEMBER 2012
Foreign currency exposure at the end of the reporting period: R000 R000

Non current assets 
Loan to Atterbury Africa Investments (USD 34 143 276)  336 909  111 109 
Current assets 
Receivables (USD 2 095)  21 
Cash and cash equivalents (USD 706)  7  32 

Liabilities 
Interest bearing debt (USD 33 703 739)  332 572  110 876 
Payables (USD 155 659)  1 536  110 
Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items were:
USD 9.87  8.49 

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The company's borrowings (excluding debentures) are limited by its MOI to 55% of the directors' bona fide valuation of the consolidated property portfolio, including listed property 
securities.

The company is funded by debentures and external borrowings. The company's capital management objective is to maintain a strong capital base to provide sustainable returns to 
combined unitholders and other stakeholders over the long term. 

Hyprop's unutilised borrowing capacity at 30 June can be summarised as follows:

 GROUP  GROUP  COMPANY COMPANY
2013 2012 2013 2012

 R000  R000  R000  R000 
Value of property portfolio(1) 22 246 615 20 886 766 22 124 880 20 886 615 
55% thereof 12 235 638 11 487 721 12 168 684 11 487 638 
Total gross borrowings (long-term and short-term) 5 384 486 5 186 035 5 051 914 5 075 159 
Unutilised borrowing capacity 6 851 152 6 301 686 7 116 770 6 412 479 

(1) Includes listed property securities

35.
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FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The accounting policies have been applied to the various financial instruments as indicated below:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless 
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the group takes into account the 
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements 
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety. These are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at the measurement date. These quoted prices are unadjusted.

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value by the level into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

Loans and receivables
Assets designated at fair 

value through profit and loss Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets R000 R000 R000 R000 R000
30 June 2013
Listed property securities(1)  2 279 253  2 279 253 
Derivative instruments(2)  39 857 39 857 
Loans receivable  384 307(3) 
Receivables  224 175(3) 
Cash and cash equivalents  74 821(3)

31 December 2012
Listed property securities(1)  2 282 095  2 282 095 
Loans receivable  47 434(3) 

Receivables  183 056(3) 
Cash and cash equivalents  167 874(3) 

Liabilities measured at 
amortised cost

Liabilities designated at fair value 
through profit and loss Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Liabilities R000 R000 R000 R000 R000
30 June 2013
Debentures and debenture premium  5 822 497(3)

Loans - long term
 - short term

 4 436 486(3) 
948 000(3)

Derivative instruments   52 984 52 984  
Payables  353 802(3)  
31 December 2012  
Debentures and debenture premium  5 871 616(3)

Loans - long term
 - short term

 4 371 035(3) 

815 000(3)

Derivative instruments   237 464 237 464  
Payables  369 110(3)

(1) Refer to note 4 for revaluation technique and key inputs.
(2) Refer to note 19 for revaluation technique and key inputs.
(3) Valued at amortised cost.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair 
values. 

CHANGES IN LEGISLATION SUBSEQUENT TO YEAR-END - CONVERSION TO A REIT
Hyprop converted to a Real Estate Investment Trust ("REIT"), effective 1 July 2013. The conversion to a REIT has resulted in the elimination of deferred capital gains taxation. Refer 
to note 20. The conversion to a REIT will likely also result in a change in the capital structure of the company. Refer to Directors report page 57.

37.

36.
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SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

PROPERTY  
PORTFOLIO

STATEMENTS OF 
 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENTS OF  
FINANCIAL POSITION

Business segment

GLA (m2)
Total
value

Value
attributable

to Hyprop Revenue

Net
property

income

Historic 
yield(3)

% Receivables Payables Loans
30 JUNE 2013 (R000) (R000) (R000) (R000) (R000) (R000) (R000)
Canal Walk 153 531 7 034 000 5 627 200 244 917 178 398  3.4 212 50 725
Super Regional 153 531 7 034 000 5 627 200 244 917 178 398 212 50 725
Clearwater 86 031 3 203 000 3 203 000 154 291 102 821  3.5 22 854 34 988
The Glen 74 348 2 467 000 1 854 094 99 038 63 602  3.6 8 857 23 027
Woodlands Boulevard 71 607 1 886 000 1 886 000 94 511 65 380  3.7 23 948 19 558
Cape Gate 97 346 1 602 000 1 602 000 94 695 59 298  3.9 15 878 35 834
Large Regional 329 332 9 158 000 8 545 094 442 535 291 101 71 537 113 407
Hyde Park 37 003 1 556 000 1 556 000 83 504 53 686  3.8 6 728 19 120
Regional 37 003 1 556 000 1 556 000 83 504 53 686 6 728 19 120
Atterbury Value Mart 47 745 987 000 987 000 51 026 38 363  4.0 4 733 10 424
Willowbridge 44 663 585 000 585 000 40 028 22 644  3.7 4 766 10 520
Stoneridge 48 584 468 000 421 200 32 096 15 170  3.5 1 969 41 861
Somerset Value Mart 12 386 185 000 185 000 10 822 7 036  4.1 754 3 572
Value centres 153 378 2 225 000 2 178 200 133 972 83 213 12 222 66 377
Shopping Centres 673 244 19 973 000 17 906 494 904 928 606 398 90 699 249 629
Stand-alone offices 52 206 749 000 749 000 53 424 34 034  4.8 7 532 17 983
Development property(1) 35 950 1 187 000 1 187 000 44 745 19 953 4 213 3 157
Held-for-sale(2)  (185)
Investment property 761 400 21 909 000 19 842 494 1 003 097 660 200 102 444 270 769
Listed property securities(4) 2 279 253 2 279 253 74 939 74 939
Fund management  (26 212) 116 847 74 202 5 384 486
Net interest  (195 237)
Atterbury Africa 111 109 336 994 1 434
Hyprop Mauritius 21 1 536
Word4Word Marketing 5 573 1 121 4 861 7 295
Straight line rental income accrual 15 879
Non-core income  1 009 

761 400 24 299 362 22 458 741 1 099 488 517 254 224 173 353 802 5 384 486
(1) Rosebank Mall - transferred to development property from September 2012.
(2) Southern Sun Hyde Park.
(3) Based on 2013 net property income for 6 months and December 2012 valuations.
(4) Investments in Sycom - held-for-sale.

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

98    INTEGRATED REPORT 2013



PROPERTY  
PORTFOLIO

STATEMENTS OF 
 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

STATEMENTS OF  
FINANCIAL POSITION

Business segment

GLA (m2)
Total
value

Value
attributable

to Hyprop Revenue

Net
property

income

Historic 
yield(4)

% Receivables Payables Loans
31 DECEMBER 2012 (R000) (R000) (R000) (R000) (R000) (R000) (R000)
Canal Walk  157 447  6 500 000  5 200 000  460 729  329 862  6.8  5 535  51 796 
Super Regional  157 447  6 500 000  5 200 000  460 729  329 862  5 535  51 796 
Clearwater  85 174  2 945 000  2 945 000  294 002  199 195  8.0  27 738  37 079 
The Glen  74 624  2 330 000  1 751 130  190 940  123 565  7.6  9 096  24 445 
Woodlands Boulevard  70 319  1 770 000  1 770 000  182 097  124 583  7.8  25 074  27 083 
Cape Gate  99 619  1 509 000  1 509 000  182 725  116 776  8.1  19 501  21 623 
Large Regional  329 736  8 554 000  7 975 130  849 764  564 119  81 409  110 229 
Hyde Park  36 894  1 420 000  1 420 000  166 129  104 094  7.8  7 290  25 160 
Southcoast Mall(1)  12 346  6 287 
Regional  36 894  1 420 000  1 420 000  178 475  110 381  7 290  25 160 
Atterbury Value Mart  47 707  952 000  952 000  97 751  75 915  8.6  5 406  11 312 
Willowbridge  44 027  620 000  620 000  76 667  45 308  7.5  9 191  10 495 
Stoneridge  51 293  481 000  432 900  62 567  27 482  6.7  2 218  33 144 
Somerset Value Mart  12 546  170 000  170 000  20 583  14 106  9.2  942  2 447 
Value centres  155 573  2 223 000  2 174 900  257 568  162 811  17 757  57 398 
Shopping Centres  679 650  18 697 000  16 770 030  1 746 536  1 167 173  111 991  244 583 
Stand-alone Offices  51 243  710 000  710 000  110 820  72 438  9.4  9 672  20 824 
Hotels(2)  130 000  130 000  33 861  1 207 
Development property(3)  35 950  990 000  990 000  103 545  58 364  2 367  6 305 
Investment property  766 843  20 527 000  18 600 030  1 994 762  1 299 182  124 030  271 712 
Listed property securities(5)  2 282 095  2 282 095  152 233  152 233 
Fund management  (53 550)  56 470  90 535  5 186 035 
Net interest  (403 451)
Atterbury Africa  111 109  111 109 
Hyprop Mauritius  110 
Word4Word Marketing  21 422  1 845  2 556  6 753 
Straight line rental income accrual  9 208 

 766 843  22 920 204  20 993 234  2 177 624  996 259  183 056  369 110  5 186 035 

(1) Sold July 2012.
(2) Southern Sun Hydepark - sold September 2012.
(3) Rosebank Mall - transferred to development property from September 2012.
(4) Based on 2012 net property income and December 2011 valuations.
(5) Investments in Sycom.
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UNITHOLDER ANALYSIS

UNITHOLDER SPREAD
No of 

unitholders % No of units %
1 - 1000 units 3 765 44.4 1 987 872 0.8
1001 - 10 000 units 3 845 45.3 11 895 187 4.9
10 001 - 100 000 units 668 7.9 19 102 537 7.8
100 001 - 1 000 000 units 162 1.9 52 151 230 21.5
1000 001 units and over 45 0.5 157 976 343 65.0
Total 8 485 100.0 243 113 169 100.0

DISTRIBUTION OF UNITHOLDERS
No of 

unitholders % No of units %
Banks 49 0.6 9 472 566 3.9
Close corporations 82 1.0 405 089 0.2
Endowment funds 144 1.7 1 946 283 0.8
Individuals 5 844 68.8 13 786 597 5.7
Insurance companies 48 0.6 11 284 608 4.6
Investment companies 23 0.3 1 204 888 0.5
Medical schemes 16 0.2 286 627 0.1
Mutual funds 216 2.5 91 497 833 37.6
Nominees & trusts 1 561 18.4 12 076 580 5.0
Other corporations 37 0.4 73 961 0.0
Private companies 205 2.4 12 176 647 5.0
Public companies 9 0.1 32 611 016 13.4
Retirement funds 251 3.0 56 290 474 23.2
Total             8 485 100.0 243 113 169 100.0

PUBLIC / NON-PUBLIC UNITHOLDERS
No of 

unitholders % No of units %
Non-public unitholders 8 0.1 36 331 914 14.9
Directors of the company 4 0.1 8 561 231 3.5
Strategic holdings (more than 10%) 4 0.0 27 770 683 11.4
Public unitholders 8 477 99.9 206 781 255 85.1
Total 8 485 100.00 243 113 169 100.00

PUBLIC / NON-PUBLIC UNITHOLDERS No of units %
Redefine Properties Ltd 27 770 683 11.4
Government Employees Pension Fund 25 536 079 10.5
STANLIB 19 610 829 8.1
Investec 15 004 317 6.2
Old Mutual 13 101 452 5.4
Total 101 023 360 41.6
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DEFINITIONS 

“Atterbury Africa” Atterbury Africa Limited, the vehicle through which Hyprop has invested, together with Attfund Group, in retail develop-
ments in Africa

“Attfund Retail” Attfund Retail Limited (formerly Femtoworx Limited), acquired by Hyprop, effective 1 September 2011
“the board” The board of directors of Hyprop Investments Limited
“Canal Walk” Canal Walk Shopping Centre, located in Cape Town
“CapeGate” CapeGate Retail Precinct, located in Cape Town 
“Clearwater” Clearwater Mall, located in Johannesburg 
“Companies Act” The South African Companies Act 71 of 2008
“Current period” Six months to June 2013
“DCM” Debt capital market, an alternative capital raising platform for Hyprop
“Footfall” Consumer traffic into a shopping centre measured by footcount
“GBCSA” Green Building Council of South Africa
“GLA” Gross lettable area
“The Glen” The Glen Shopping Centre, located in Johannesburg
“GRI” Global Reporting Initiative
“The group” Hyprop and its subsidiaries and associates
“Hyde Park” Hyde Park Corner, located in Johannesburg
“Hyprop” or “the company” Hyprop Investments Limited
“JSE” JSE Limited, the South African securities exchange on which Hyprop is listed
“King III Report” King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2009
“Large regional” A shopping centre of GLA 50 000 - 100 000 m²
“MOI” Memorandum of Incorporation, formerly known as Memorandum and Articles of Association
“OHS” South African Occupational Health and Safety Act 85 of 1993
“the period” or “the period under review” The six months ended 30 June 2013
“prior year” The year ended 31 December 2012
“Redefine” Redefine Properties Limited
“Regional” A regional shopping centre of GLA 30 000 - 50 000 m²

“REIT”

Real Estate Investment Trust, a structure which is an international standard for property investments, where 
a tax dispensation ensures flow through of net property income after expenses and interest. More than 25 countries 
use a similar REIT model including, the US, Australia, Belgium, France, Hong Kong, Japan, Singapore and the UK. In some 
jurisdictions, including South Africa, REITs are exempt from capital gains tax. (www.sareit.com)

“Rosebank Mall” Rosebank Mall, including the development site previously called Rosebank Gardens, Gauteng
"SENS" Stock Exchange News Service
 “Somerset Value Mart” Somerset Value Mart, located in the Western Cape
“Stoneridge” Stoneridge Shopping Centre, located in Johannesburg
“Super regional” A shopping centre with GLA larger than 100 000 m²
“Sycom” Sycom Property Fund Limited
“Vunani” Vunani Property Investment Fund Limited
“Vunani Properties” Vunani Properties Proprietary Limited
“VPIF” Vunani Property Investment Fund Proprietary Limited
“Willowbridge” Willowbridge Lifestyle Centre, located in Cape Town
“Woodlands” Woodlands Boulevard, located in Pretoria

INTEGRATED REPORT 2013    101



GOVERNANCE: APPLICATION OF KING III

Principle 
number Description Compliance

Chapter 2: Boards and directors

2.1 The board should act as the focal point for and custodian 
of corporate governance

In accordance with the board charter, the board acts as the focal point for, and custodian of, 
corporate governance by managing its relationship with management, the unitholders and other 
stakeholders of the group along sound corporate governance principles.

2.2 The board should appreciate that strategy, risk, perfor-
mance and sustainability are inseparable.

The board, in accordance with the board charter, is responsible for aligning the strategic 
objectives, vision and mission with risk and performance. The group’s formalised risk 
management process takes into account the full range of risks including strategic and 
operational risk encompassing performance and sustainability. A social and ethics committee is 
in place which is responsible for sustainability issues.

2.3 The board should provide effective leadership based on an 
ethical foundation.

The board, in accordance with the board charter, is responsible for aligning the strategic 
objectives, vision and mission with risk and performance. The group’s formalised risk manage-
ment process takes into account the full range of risks including strategic and operational risk 
encompassing performance and sustainability. A social and ethics committee is in place which is 
responsible for sustainability and ethical issues.

2.4 The board should ensure that the company is and is seen 
to be a responsible corporate citizen.

In accordance with the board charter the board is the guardian of the values and ethics of 
the group and provides effective leadership on an ethical foundation. The group’s Code of 
Ethics sets out the company’s commitment to the highest level of ethical conduct, fair dealing 
and integrity in business practice as an operational imperative. The board charter governs the 
board’s activities.

2.5 The board should ensure that the company's ethics are 
managed effectively. 

In accordance with the board charter the board ensures that the company’s ethics are managed 
effectively. The social and ethics committee assists the board with the oversight of social and 
ethical matters in respect of the group. Hyprop’s Code of Ethics, to which all members of the 
board, management and employees of the group are required to adhere, promotes ethical 
business practices. A fraud hotline was introduced during the year where employees and the 
public can report any acts of fraud and unethical behaviour.

2.6 The board should ensure that the company has an 
effective and independent audit committee.

On 28 August 2013, Thabo Mokgatlha was appointed to the board of Hyprop as an independent 
non-executive director. Thabo was also appointed to the audit committee. The audit 
committee now comprises three independent non-executive directors in line with King III 
guidelines. Memebers are elected by unitholders at the annual general meeting.

2.7 The board should be responsible for the governance of risk. The risk committee is responsible for overseeing the group’s risk management programme. 
The committee reports directly to the board which retains ultimate responsibility for the 
control and management of risk. 
The risk committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing the company’s risk control 
systems and ensures that risk policies and strategies are effectively managed. Specifically the 
role of the committee is to assist the board in ensuring that:

enhance its ability to achieve its strategic objectives; 

2.8 The board should be responsible for information 
technology (IT) governance. 

The board through the risk committee is responsible for effectively managing relevant IT risks. 

2.9 The board should ensure that the company complies with 
applicable laws and considers adherence to non-binding 
rules, codes and standards.

In accordance with the board charter the board ensures that Hyprop complies with applicable 
laws and considers, with the assistance of the risk committee, adherence to non-binding rules 
and standards.

2.10 The board should ensure that there is an effective risk-
based internal audit.

KPMG provides an outsourced internal audit function, which is risk-based. The internal auditor 
reports directly to the audit committee and attends all the audit committee meetings
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2.11 The board should appreciate that stakeholders` 
perceptions affect the company's reputation.

Hyprop recognises that engaging with appropriate individuals or groups enhances the 
operations of the company and better enables it to manage risk and reputation. Investor 
relations and stakeholder engagement are key focus areas for the board.

2.12 The board should ensure the integrity of the company's 
integrated report.

The board’s audit committee oversees integrated reporting and is responsible for recommend-
ing the integrity of the integrated report to the board.

2.13 The board should report on the effectiveness of the 
company's system of internal controls.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing internal audit, including the appointment of 
the internal audit function, monitoring its performance and approving the internal audit plan. 
Further the committee ensures that the internal audit function is subject to an independent 
quality review, as and when the committee determines it appropriate. Internal audit is 
outsourced and independent. It assists management in assessing whether or not systems of 
internal control are adequate and effective. Internal audit prepares a plan aligned to the key 
risks of the company. 

2.14 The board and its directors should act in the best interests 
of the company. 

The board acknowledges its role as a trustee on behalf of the unitholders. In accordance with 
the board charter it acts in the best interests of the group by ensuring that individual directors 
adhere to legal standards of conduct; are permitted to take independent advice in connection 
with their duties following an agreed procedure; disclose real or perceived conflicts to the 
board and deal with them accordingly; and deal in securities only in accordance with the policy 
adopted by the board.

2.15 The board should consider business rescue proceeding or 
other turnaround mechanisms as soon as the company is 
financially distressed as defined in the Act.

The board, in accordance with the board charter, is responsible for commencing business rescue 
proceedings should circumstances warrant it. The audit committee reviews the going concern 
principle, as well as the solvency and liquidity principle as set out in the Companies Act, 
Chapter 1, Part A, Section 4.

2.16 The board should elect a chairman of the board who is 
an independent non-executive director. The CEO of the 
company should not also fulfil the role of chairman of the 
board.

The Chairman of Hyprop is an independent non-executive director.

2.17 The board should appoint the chief executive officer and 
establish a framework for the delegation of authority. 

The board has appointed Pieter Prinsloo as CEO and has approved a framework for the 
delegation of authority. 

2.18 The board should comprise a balance of power, with a 
majority of non-executive directors. The majority of non-
executive directors should be independent.

The majority (9) of directors are non-executive, of whom five are categorised as independent. 

2.19 Directors should be appointed through a formal process. In accordance with the board charter a formal and transparent process is in place for appointing 
directors. The remuneration and nomination committee assists with the process of identifying 
suitable candidates to be proposed to unitholders.

2.20 The induction of and ongoing training and development 
of directors should be conducted 
through formal processes.

In accordance with the board charter a formal induction programme is established for new 
directors. Inexperienced directors are developed through mentorship programmes. Continuing 
professional development programmes are implemented which ensure that directors receive 
regular briefings on changes in risks, laws and the environment.

2.21 The board should be assisted by a competent, suitably 
qualified and experienced company secretary.

The company secretary, Probity Business Services (Pty) Limited, an independent company 
secretarial practice, is appointed in compliance with the Companies Act 2008, the JSE Listings 
Requirements and the recommendations of King III. The board deems its representative, Neville 
Toerien, to be suitably qualified.

2.22 The evaluation of the board, its committees and the 
individual directors should be performed every year.

The board was evaluated by individual directors during May 2012. A sub committee assessment 
process has been developed and will be implemented during the 2013 financial year.
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GOVERNANCE: APPLICATION OF KING III CONTINUED

2.23 The board should delegate certain functions to well-
structured committees but without abdicating its own 
responsibilities.

The board delegates certain functions without abdicating its own responsibilities to the 
following committees: 

Each of these committees has a formal charter approved by the board and reviewed on a 
regular basis.

2.24 A governance framework should be agreed between the 
group and its subsidiary boards.

All policies and procedures are communicated to subsidiary boards. 

2.25 Companies should remunerate directors and executives 
fairly and responsibly.

In accordance with the board charter the board is responsible for ensuring that the 
company has an appropriate remuneration strategy in place. The group’s remuneration and 
nomination committee has an independent role, making recommendations to the board for 
its consideration and final approval ensuring the group remunerates directors (including fees 
payable to non-executive directors) and executives fairly and responsibly; and the disclosure of 
directors’ remuneration is accurate, complete and transparent. Remuneration is set out in the 
Director’s Report. In addition, fees for board and committee members are approved annually at 
the annual general meeting.

2.26 Companies should disclose the remuneration of each 
individual director and certain senior executives.

The remuneration of directors and key management is disclosed in note 24 of the financial 
statements. 

2.27 Unitholders should approve the company’s remuneration 
policy.

Full details of the remuneration policy are set out on page 47. The remuneration policy is 
submitted to unitholders to consider and endorse by way of a non-binding advisory vote at the 
annual general meeting. 
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ADMINISTRATION

Registered office and business address 
Registration number: 1987/005284/06 
2nd Floor, Cradock Heights, 21 Cradock Avenue, Rosebank, 2196 
PO Box 52509, Saxonwold, 2132 
Tel: +27 11 447 0090 
Fax: +27 11 447 0092 
Website: www.hyprop.co.za 

Company secretary 
Probity Business Services Proprietary Limited 
3rd Floor, The Mall Offices, 11 Cradock Avenue 
Rosebank, 2196 
PO Box 85392, Emmarentia, 2029 

Corporate advisor and sponsor 
Java Capital 
2 Arnold Road, Rosebank, 2196 
PO Box 2087, Parklands, 2121 

Transfer secretaries 
Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited 
Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street 
Johannesburg, 2001 
PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107 

Trustee for debenture holders 
Webber Wentzel Bowens 
3rd Floor, Granger Bay Court, Beach Road V&A Waterfront, Cape Town 
PO Box 1820, Cape Town, 8000 

Independent auditors 
Grant Thornton 
(Member firm of Grant Thornton International) 
137 Daisy Street, cnr Grayston Drive 
Sandton, 2196 

Editorial Design & layout

COMBINED UNITHOLDERS’ DIARY

DISTRIBUTION DETAILS

Financial year-end   30 June

Publication of financial results   29 August 2013

Annual general meeting   5 December 2013

Interim report posted to combined unitholders   February 2014

Distribution
 number 2013 (cents) 2012 (cents)

Interest on debentures
Six months ended:

30 June 2012 50 198
31 December 2012 51 211

409

Six months ended:
30 June 2013 52 213
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